
AGENDA 
~ 

MERIDIAN A 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

TOWNSHIP BOARD - REGULAR MEETING 
T OW N S H I P., • .,, 
~ 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE-Alycia Boik 

4. ROLLCALL 

5. PRESENTATION 

A. New Police Officer Introduction 

May 9, 2024 6:00 PM 

B. New Mass Notification Platform (RAVE)- Ingham County 911 Director Barb Davidson 

C. Community /Senior Center 

D. Tribute to Supervisor Patricia Herr ing Jackson 

6. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDAITEMS 

7. INTERIM TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

8. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

9. APPROVALOFAGENDA 

10. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Communications 

B. Minutes-

(!} April 16-17, 2024 Regular Township Board Meeting (2) April 21, 2024 Special Township Board Meeting 

C. Bills 

D. Meridian Pride Liquor License 

E. Meridian Pride Outdoor Gathering Pennit 

F. Pins and Pints Outdoor Gathering Permit 

G. Pins and Pints Special Event Liquor License 

H. EDC Appointment 

I. ZBA Appointment 

J. Treasurer's 1st Quarter Report 

11. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY 

12. HEARINGS 

A. Recreational Marijuana License Application in Zone 3 

13. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Recreational Marijuana License Application in Zone 4 

B. Appointment to the Ingham County Materials Management Planning Committee 

14. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Recreational Marijuana License Application in Zone 3 

B. Community /Senior Center Site Selection 

C. Village of Okemos Concept Plan 

D. Supervisor Appointment Process 

15. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

16. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

17. CLOSED SESSION- I move the Township Board enter closed session pursuant to MCL 15.268(1}(h) to consult with 
the Township attorney about a confidential written legal opinion regarding a development project. 

18. ADJOURNMENT 

AD oomments limired to 3 minutes. unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the SupelVisor. Appointment of Supervisor Pro Tern and/ or Temporary Cieri< if necessary. Individuals 
with disabilities requirtngauxiliaiy aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting: Interim Township Manager Tim Schmitt 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 or 
517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. 

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 

Providing a safe and welooming. sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
merkllon.ml.us ----



“Provide exemplary service, safeguard life and well-being, align resources with those in need” 

To: Meridian Township Board 
From: Barb Davidson, Director, Ingham County 9-1-1 Center 
Ref: Transition to RAVE Mass Notification Platform 

In today's fast-paced world, where crises can unfold in a matter of minutes, emergency notification 
systems have become an essential tool for organizations, institutions, and governments to swiftly 
respond to critical situations. These systems enable the rapid dissemination of vital information to the 
right people, at the right time, to ensure their safety and well-being. Whether it's a natural disaster, an 
active shooter, a cyberattack, or a system failure, emergency notification systems play a pivotal role in 
mitigating the impact of such events and facilitating a swift return to normalcy. 

After careful evaluation of the MSU incident last February, we have determined that the RAVE platform 
offers several benefits that will better serve our citizens and public safety partners.  

The RAVE platform also offers advanced features such as geo-targeting, which enables us to tailor 
notifications to specific locations and ensure that only those affected by an emergency receive alerts. 
Additionally, RAVE provides a more user-friendly interface for both administrators and citizens, making 
it easier to manage and receive notifications. 

One of the key advantages of RAVE is its seamless integration with the SMART911 system, which allows 
individuals to provide critical information about themselves and their households to 911 dispatchers in 
the event of an emergency. This information can include details such as medical conditions, allergies, 
and emergency contacts, which can be crucial in responding to emergency situations. 

By transitioning to the RAVE platform, we will be able to provide more targeted and effective emergency 
notifications to our community. This will help to keep our citizens safer and more informed during 
emergency situations. 

We believe that this transition will have a positive impact on our community and are excited to take 
advantage of the advanced features and capabilities offered by the RAVE platform. 

I look forward to discussing this platform with you at your next meeting.  

Respectfully, 

Barb Davidson 
Ingham County 911 Director 

INGHAM COUNTY 9-1-1 CENTRAL DISPATCH
710 East Jolly Rd. Lansing, MI  48910     (517) 244-8098 

Barb Davidson ENP, 911 Director    
Kyla Carranco ENP, 911 Staff Services Manager    Missy Harris ENP, 911 Staff Services Manager 

Bruce Gaukel ENP, 911 Systems Manager 

5. B



Rave Facility lets you create a private and secure facility profile, including geo-fences 

that will trigger the profile should any phone dial 9-1 -1 within the boundaries. You can 

include details such as multiple buildings, gates and access codes, floor plans, and 

points of contact on site. 

Plan ahead now and create your facility profile at www.RaveFacility.com 

RAVE Facility™ 
Scan the QR code to sign up today 



School Safety Checklist: 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

Talk to your teen about walking safety. Teach your child to remove all distractions, to walk 
on sidewalks and to look before crossing the street. 

Review texting & social networking safety tips. Discuss the types of information that 
should not be shared and set boundaries. 

Discuss bullying with your teen. Encourage your child to come to you if they ever witness 
a bullying act or become the victim of it. 

Remind your child to dial 9-1-1 in the event of an emergency. 

Create a Smart911 Safety Profile at www.smart911.com to provide 9-1-1 and 
first responders additional information that can help protect your fAmilv in r1n AmAmAnr.v. 

Sign up today by scanning the QR code 

riJ Smart911.com™ 



My Smart911 Profile 

Hi , Rebecca 

♦ People I Hoosehold a 
Acibocco ~z.Aonofdo . 
~ytopt@gmilil.oom 
FC11t!le • May, 1985 
~ I Edd Pmn1taosJ Mfefqf 
!nb l -

LIZZieRO'lltdo 
Fe'l\ale • Febfumt. 20t0 ~ ,-_,..,, 
too, ( llano:,.t 

a 
12 Weblgton A38d Medford MA O:i1~ 

•,"4 1 ~ 1 Oo • • • 
Alc,l ''-', <•T -Q< "'~< 

' - ,. 
~-.\ ~i! Rebecca • i~ 

Q 

0 
0 

~ ',• l,!~1.,y, • • •< 9 '-"' 

0 

0 

1! !1 I~ 0o •• • 
.. ..,. • P.- '••• <;~t CH ....,.,. 

~ ::.::.
0
;;;,~st~ted!Oo.s.l)leA .:;lOAM > 

T?ior•••-.,,.~-"'"9 !~ ,u~t!Of' 

Myl~ll ll"lf """'Ntorir9 ~•-~ 

A, sm,rto11 ... ,...,, > 
'-" Thi~il~r,m,krll 

"'""' '"'• 10ft .i.,u,f',CI '-" NYo· 10 <l<ld 
.l'lfOM':l.'IIIOl'lto)'O!A~'fll'oi Wllndlllt. 

J!l .(\\ ®· •• • 
·--~ "" "' ..... ""•' ... , 

By leveraging community-provided data including 

addresses, medical conditions, and photos, Smart911 

protects over 66 million people nationwide. 

• Database of Resident Community Information 
Share critical caller details in real time for faster response 

Access and Functional Needs Registry 
Identify those community members who need special 

assistance during an emergency 

Personal Safety Profiles and Caller Notes 
Flag conditions to better protect community 

members and first responders 

No one plans to call 9-1-1, but now you can plan ahead. 

Creating a Safety Profile gives 9-1-1 valuable information 

about yourself, family members, home, pets, and even 

vehicles that will automatically display on the 9-1-1 call 

taker's screen when an emergency call is made. It's 

private, secure, and the user controls what information is 

in their profile. These details can save valuable seconds or 

even minutes during an emergency. Smart911 is currently 

available in all 50 states and is used in more than 3,500 

municipalities across the country. 

1 I-



riJ Smart911· Frequently Asked Questions 

How does Smart911 work? 
Smart9i i allows individuals to provide the additional details that 9-i -i call takers may need in order to assist 
them during an emergency. When you dial 9- i - i today the information received by the 9-i - i call center can be 
limited based on the type of phone you are calling on. With Smart9i i, anytime you make an emergency call 
from a phone registered with your Safety Profile, the 9-i - i system recognizes your phone number and 
automatically displays your profile on the screen of the call taker who receives your call. 

What is a Safety Profile? 
A Safety Profile is a set of information about an individual, or a household that is contained within one account 
on Smart9i i .com or on the Smart9i i App. Information can include details about all members of the 
household, all phone numbers (mobile, landline or VOiP) and all addresses including home, work and even 
vacation homes. Users can also add details about medical conditions, medications, vehicles, pets and even 
emergency contacts. 

What is Smart911 App? 
The Smart9i i App provides 9-i - i and first responders information in an emergency and receives targeted 
alerts including from the National Weather Service. The Smart9i i App is available and free on the Apple Store 
or Google Play. 

What kind of information can I list in my safety profile? 
You can include as little or as much information in your profile as you like. Information may include address, 
medical and security information. This service is voluntary, so you decide what information you want emergency 
responders to know about you when you call 9-i - i . 

Who should create a Safety Profile? 
Anyone can create a safety profile. Those that are especially encouraged to sign up are people with medical or 
disability information. Wireless phone users are also encouraged, as wireless phone calls to 9-i- i only provide 
a general location of the caller, not an exact address. Adding your home, school and work addresses (including 
apartment and room numbers) can help responders locate you more easily. 

How long does it take to create a Safety Profile? 
Setting up a profile can take as little as 5-i O minutes, depending on how much information you wish to provide. 
You can always go back and update existing, or add additional information to your profile. 

How do I know if my Safety Profile was successfully created? 
When you complete registration, Smart9i i wi ll automatically direct you to your Smart9i i Safety Profile and will 
send a message to your registered email address confirming your account. Smart9i i will not deliver your 
Safety Profile to 9-i - i answering centers unless you have verified the phone(s) listed in your profile by 
responding to the text message or automated call placed to that phone. 

Is there a cost to sign up for Smart911? 
There is no fee to create or maintain a Safety Profile with Smart9i i . 

Sign up today by 
scanning this QR code 

► GET IT ON I 

Google Play @ m Smart91 1.com· 



riJ Smart911· Frequently Asked Questions 

Can I include my family members? 
You are encouraged to create a Safety Profile that includes everyone in your household. You can also create 
Safety Profiles on behalf of elderly parents, those with disabilities, or anyone not comfortable with computers, 
designating yourself as the emergency contact. 

What if English is not my primary language? 
You can create a Safety Profile in multiple languages and specify your primary language on Smart9i i .com. 
When your profile displays at the 9- i - i center, it will be translated back into English. If an interpreter is required, 
the 9-i - i call taker will be able to see which language you designated as your primary language. 

Once I have signed up do I need to do anything else? 
The more up-to-date your information is, the better. Smart9i i prompts users to verify their information every 
six months. However, you should update your profile anytime there is any change to your information. 

Is my information secure? 
Yes. Your privacy is important to us. Your information is made available ONLY to 9-i-i call takers and 
responders ONLY in the event you call 9- i -i. Your information is stored in geo-redundant databases that 
restrict access to everyone- including Rave Mobile Safety employees. Your Safety Profile is non-searchable and 
your information will only be displayed to 9- i - i dispatchers for a limited amount of time. In some areas, you 
can choose to allow Smart9i i to share your profile with Emergency Managers as they prepare for and respond 
to emergencies. If you reside or work in one of these areas, you will be presented with this option. 

Will my Safety Profile still work if something happens to the Rave 
Mobile Safety databases? 
Yes. Your information is stored in geo-redundant databases that are located on opposite sides of the country. 
In the unlikely event of a database shutdown, the system will automatically transition all of your information to 
the backup database, resulting in zero impact to your Safety Profile. 

► GET IT ON 

Google Play , ® liJ Smart91 1.com·· 























• EST.1842 • 

MERIDIAN A 
T O W N S H I P•t•1' 
~ 

CONSENT AGENDA 
BOARD 

COMMUNICATIONS 

10.A 



From: Tanna  < > 
Sent: Sunday, April 21, 2024 11:07 AM 
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: Frank Walsh 

I have been a Township resident since 1998. In recent years I have watched all the 
televised meetings for all the boards and commissions. I follow the happenings in our 
township and I am proud to live here. 

I agree with every public comment given during today's April 21, 2024 meeting from the 
employees and residents. 

Additionally, Frank Walsh's comments convince me he should not be hired as a 
consultant. I was undecided on that issue until I heard him speak. What he said 
didn't help my opinion of him. He sounded like a guy with a huge ego saying I'm not 
perfect, but go ask all the people who love me to tell you how awesome I am. He 
didn't apologize for any behavior, he didn't admit any wrongdoing, etc. He's tooted 
his own horn and listed his accomplishments. That is not how a true leader acts at a 
time like this. 

Thank you. 

Tanna 

-



From: -> 
Sent: Sunday, April 21, 2024 10:57:36 AM 
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us> 
Cc: Tim Schmitt <schmitt@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: Meridian Township April 21 Board Meeting 

Good Morning Board members, 

As a resident and staff member of the Township I want to express my personal 
disappointment in the leadership of the Board, Deputy Manager Opsommer, and former 
Manager Frank Walsh in your management of the personnel issue regarding Manager 
Walsh. Of the staff members involved, I openly admit to speaking with HR Manager Tithof in 
June of last year regard ing the harassing, isolating, bullying, and inappropriate behavior of 
the Manager. In September the issue was laid bare to you and 8 months later you have your 
first communication on the subject. As a department head, you would be disappointed in 
me if I had led Economic Development issues in a similar matter. It is unbecoming of the 
leadership of "A Prime Community" for you to do so. 

I am a staff member that was interviewed by Zausmer during the invest igat ion. If Heidi 
included the information I gave her during my interview you would know that my experience 
here at Meridian has been tainted with bias of race, bias of gender, inappropriate language, 
bullying or targeted activities. It is beyond me how 6 leaders are willing to allow that toxic 
behavior to go unchecked for 8 months. Did you know that during these 8 months I again 
had to tell the Manager that I do not want a token DEi position, t itle or other activity that 
makes my race my job? His last request like this was January 2024 when he stated he 
wanted to change my title. That is horribly offensive as there is no way my 
Black/Cherokee/ African genes should be a commodity for the Township. If the situation 
was handled in the professional manner we are used to from the Board, he would have 
been suspended. He would have been removed and would be unable to continue to 
contribute harm to employees. Your behavior has made the situation look like Board 
members care more about the image of the organzation instead of the organization itself. 
Board members have recently spoken up with apologizes to members of the public. Know 
that I am also a member of the public. Know that I have decisions to make this election and 
people will ask of me my opinion of the people that run this organization. Economic 
Development is an externally facing department and community relations is a large part of 
this role. The lack of communication f rom the Board affects the external relationships of 
our community. I would like the Board to provide staff with an apology, details to why they 
have made the decision they made, and offer template communications or steps for 
external partners to have their questions answered. The communication and leadership 
from the Board regarding the Manager's inappropriate behavior is abysmal. Our taxpayers 
(myself included) deserve better. The staff deserve better. 

We are "A Prime Community", all of the things we say that make Meridian Township a 
wonderful place to live are true. These elements are maintained, created, supported, 



imagined, and more by 95% of staff. You have approximately 160 employees of the 
Township and you have mistreated them all with your lack of leadership. I am asking for 
your apology and commitment to do better.  
 
 
Amber Clark 
Speak Kindly. Dont Assume.  
Do Your Best! 
 



On Apr 24, 2024, at 10:25 AM, Roxie < > wrote: 
 
This is total BS. No one is indispensable….if he got hit by a truck the Township would 
survive and the budget would be handled. Will he be working full or part -time? This is 
OUTRAGEOUS. 
 
How do you know that he will not still be doing his private business on my tax dollar??? 
Thank you for your response. 
 
Meridian Twp. inks deal with former Manager Frank Walsh. Here's what's in it 
 
https://www.lansingstatejournal.com/story/news/local/2024/04/23/frank-walsh-
meridian-township-manager-resign-consulting/73425295007/ 
 
 



From: John  < >  
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2024 10:53 AM 
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: Refuse collection fees and surcharges 

  

Having moved from a suburban-type area to the Township, I'm amazed at the fees the 
Township is charging for refuse cart service. At my previous address, my property taxes 
covered this service, which like here is provided through a private contractor. Why are 
property taxes insufficient to cover this service in the Township? Before moving here, I paid 
$25/year for yard waste collection. Why is the Township charging about 10 times more for 
the same service? Also why does the Township continue levying fuel surcharges? Is it still 
expecting gas prices to drop significantly and remain lower? Thank you. 

 

1111 



From: Patricia Herring Jackson 
Sent: Thursday, May 2, 2024 8:33 AM 
To: Board; Clerk's Office 
Cc: Clerk's Office 
Subject: Resignation from Township Board Supervisor Position 

To the Township Board of the Meridian Charter Township. I, Patricia Herring Jackson asks that you 
consider and accept my resignation from the position of Meridian Township Board Supervisor and the 
Township Board, beginning May 9. 2024. 

Thank you, 

Patricia Herring Jackson 
Get Outlook for iOS 

1 



 
 

From: 
Sent: 

To: 
Subject: 

Justin S  

Friday, May 3, 2024 9:28 AM 

Board 

Comment - Village of Okemos Concept Plans 
 
 

 
 

Hello Board, 

 

After reviewing the publicly posted plans for the Village of Okemos project, Plan A looks the most 

appealing for the township. Plan C, where the new buildings are set back behind an expansive parking lot 

and the utility lines are still overhead, will both look bad and will not bring in the shoppers/diners that the 

township wants as the buildings will be tucked too far back from Okemos Road to be visible to travelers. 

The township should approve Plan A and bury the utility lines. 

Thanks, 

Justin Stojsih 

 



 
 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Roxanne 

   Friday, May 3, 2024 10:18 AM 

Board 

Green space on NW corner of Kinawa and Dobie 
 
 

 

Please advise if Okemos Schools is planning to SELL or BUILD ON this location. I live at 1707 Kinawa 

Dr.across the street. I want to stay here, but if this happens, I will have to move. 

I have asked this of John Hood when he was at the Senior Center discussing the millage and he said no. But 

as a former teacher, I know that superintendents and plans can change. 

 
Roxanne Murner 

 

Thank you. 



From: 
To: 
Subject: 

Date: 

Philip 
Board 

Support Plan A for downtown Okemos 

Friday, May 3, 2024 12:20:50 PM 

Dear Board members, 

I'm writing to express my strong support for Plan A for downtown Okemos. 

I realize that the Township will have to pay for burying utility cables, but I believe this is a wise investment and will 

produce a more attractive development that better meets the needs of our community. 

This project has taken such a long time that the community needs and deserves a downtown that we can all be proud 

of. 

Please approve Plan A and let's get this project moving! 

Sincerely, 

Philip F. Maitinez 

 

  



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

some Assembly Reaujred LLc 
floMd 
Plans for downtown development 
Friday, May 3, 2024 5:28:1'1 PM 

I am writing to encourage you to please select option A. J recognize this would be at a greater 
cost to our township as it involves burying the power lines. But overall , this is by far the better 
option. That proposal allows fo r a much closer alignment with the vision for the four corners 
that most residents have hoped for. ln addition, burying the power lines is a smart decision for 
ow- township as well. If we were to go with one of the other options with parking located in 
front of the businesses, we would lose the downtown effect. It would instead just look like 
another strip maJI which we most certainly do not need. 1 encourage the board to be bold in 
embracing something contemporary and positive for our township. We need a valued 
downtown area to invigorate the commercial environment in our community. I would much 
prefer the board provide the funding for the infrastructure improvements and in turn hold the 
developer accountable for high quality design and appearance for the four comers overall. 

Let's make the four corners a destination. 

Thank You, 
Tracey Pickard 
Meridian Township Resident. 



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

~tie Schreur 
~ 
Village of Okernos 
Sunday, May 5, 2024 9:49:13 AM 

Dear Elected Township Officials, 

My name is Katherine Schreur and I am a resident of Okemos. J am writing in regards to the 
planned development for the Village of Okemos. 1 do not approve of the plans to build 
apartment bui I dings in this space. I do not believe this is the best use of the space to serve our 
community. I recognize the land is privately owned, with possible limitations at this time. 

When my husband and I were looking for where we want to start our family and purchase our 
first house we landed on Okemos, as many other fami lies do. However, we had several 
significant drawbacks to Okemos compared to other local areas. The first of these being the 
public library. The Okemos PubJic Library is outdated, small, and with minimal space for 
community use. I propose the buildjng of a larger library and community center to take place 
in the proposed Village of Okemos lots. A library with a large children's area, youth space, 
computer rooms, study rooms, cafe, outdoor seating, space for community classes, and more 
would be a huge asset to our community. Downtown Okemos would be the perfect location to 
build a new library, giving new li fe to the downtown area and serving the families who live in 
our community. 

In addition to the new library, a new township park in the adjoining lot equipped with an 
accessible pathway and playground would serve our community's needs. The creation of an 
accessible park equipped for those with disabilities located nearby to the community library 
would serve our community members to easily enjoy our downtown area with ease to move 
from one location to the next. 

This proposed new development would further enhance our community along with the 
upcoming development of Chippewa, K.inawa, and Cornell Schools. This downtown 
development would strengthen the townships ability to serve its residents and bring wonderful 
engagement to downtown. Okemos is a family town, it needs to meet the needs of the families 
who call this town home. I am asking you to reconsider the needs of the community when 
deciding how to move forward with the downtown development. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Katherine Schreur 



From: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Date: 
Attachments: 

~ 
~ 

COMMEl'IT ON VILLAGE OF OKEMOS CONCEPT PLANS 
Sunday, May 5, 2024 6:11:56 PM 

Okemos Downtown u~ 

The attached letter was emailed to all Homeowner Association presidents in Meridian 

township. Please include these comments in the upcoming Township Board meeting packet 
regarding Okemos development concept plans. Contact me if you require additional 
information. 

Tom Cooper 
President 
Indian Hills Homeowners Association 



Dear Okemos Community Leaders: 

In 2018, the Meridian Township board initially approved a project for the redevelopment of 
downtown Okemos (the four corners at the intersection of Okemos and Hamilton Roads). As 
originally conceived, this effort was intended to revitalize downtown Okemos with new market 
rate housing, retail, and commercial space. A charming downtown Okemos redevelopment 
would cement Meridian Township as a desirable place to live. 

The developer purchased the property and is technically able to construct virtually any building 
on the site provided it complies with the Township's Code of Ordinances and MUPUD (Mixed 
Use Planned Unit Development). Over the course of the project, there have been several issues 
which caused the developer to request amendments to its original plans for the property. The 
Township Board has approved several amendments and now the developer is asking for more. 

At the May 9th Meridian Township Board 6:00 p.m. meeting, the developer will be proposing the 
latest version to the development plans. One plan for the redevelopment consists of 156 
apartments, 8,909 square feet of commercial space and 285 parking spaces. In addition, the 
developers are requiring the Township Board to foot the bill for burying the power lines and 
other infrastructure at a cost of $4,5 to 7 million. The other plan moves the development to 
Ardmore and Hamilton Roads (facing Douglas J) with 5,000 square feet of commercial space 
and 199 parking spaces (requiring a parking variance) along the corner of Okemos and 
Hamilton Roads. 

It is important to note that the developer has received substantial state and community-based 
financial support in the past few years. In my opinion, and I hope in yours as well, this plan is 
not in the best interest of Okemos and Meridian Township. I am appealing to you and the 
residents of your respective homeowners' associations to attend the May 9th Meridian Township 
Board meeting and express, in the strongest terms possible, your disapproval with the direction 
of this project. 

Public comments for the downtown Okemos project will be limited to the Public Comments in 
the early agenda items and also at the end of the meeting. Presentation of the two plans and 
Board discussion will be later on the Townoship Board's agenda. The developer's proposal will 
be voted on at a subsequent meeting. 

Your voice is needed at the Township Board Meeting on May 9111 at 6 p.m. at the Township Hall, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos. Please share this letter with your HOA members and others and 
please join us at next Thursday's Meridian Township Board meeting. 

Okemos is ripe for a project to restore its historic and charming downtown; the current direction 
of this redevelopment effort will come nowhere close to attracting residents and visitors to our 
beautiful town. 

Thank you for all your support. 

Tom Cooper 
President 
Indian Hills Homeowners Association 
coopert@msu.edu 



From: MARILYN LATTERMAN < >  
Sent: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 12:33 PM 
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: downtown okemos 
 
i just want you to know how we’re hoping something is going to happen at the 4 corners in okemos.  
I realize you want that too and it’s private property…heard there is currently a plan for apartments 
and dumpsters. Really?  After all the plans have been presented to us, we’re supposed to be ok with 
that?  We want a downtown area that’s a walkable pleasure.  Please keep negotiating.  Thank you-  
joey latterman and fred humbly-       
 



From: Charles Kotz < >  
Sent: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 6:36 PM 
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: Village of Okemos Concept Plan 

 
Dear Board: 
 
            I have reviewed both “concept plans” for the Village of Okemos, and I am 
frankly appalled at how far fetched, and removed from reality both plans 
are.  This location has a direct interface with the busiest traffic road in our 
Township: Okemos Road.  Thousands of all manner of vehicles pass through the 
Hamilton Road, Okemos Road intersection daily, and at all hours of the day, at 
speeds often exceeding 40 miles per hour.  To propose cramming apartments, 
parking lots, and retail into this space is ludicrous.  Who would want to live in the 
middle of this traffic snarl, with semi-trucks barreling past a few feet away?  This 
site is not conducive to any outdoor dining due to the traffic noise and air 
pollution.  Foot or bicycle transportation would be even more dangerous than it 
is currently.  There is simply no way that this development could be considered a 
“safe streets” worthy project. 
 
            I also feel that due to the current upheaval with the Township Board and 
Manager, that these people are not capable of making such a consequential 
decision that will impact Meridian Township for years to come.  I propose a vote 
of “no confidence” toward this Board.  They have no Supervisor, the Clerk is a 
lame duck, and the controversy regarding the manner in which they covertly 
handled the Township Manager resignation, makes all of them in my view, 
suspect and untrustworthy.  Leave the Village of Okemos decision until we have 
a new Board and Manager, that will, hopefully look out for improving the quality 
of life of township residents.  These people have given developers everything 
they wanted, with a pat on the back, while current residents wonder why more 
100 year old trees are being cut down along Powell Road, and bulldozers are 
ravaging the land along Central Park Dr. 
 
            Sincerely, 
 
            Charles Kotz 
 



- ~ 

~1USSELMANREALTY 
Service BeyM1cf'f~ 2'004or over 100 years 

Meridian Township Trustees 
May 9 Meeting 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos Michigan 48864 

Re; Public Comments-Zone 3 Marijuana License Application 

RECEIVED 

I MAY O 1 2024 I 
Meridian Township 

Clerk's Office 

I write to support the applicat ion of Amsterdam Recreational Cannabis Dispensary being 
considered for Zone Three, in a Leased Building I own located at 4792 Marsh Road, Okemos, the 
previous long-time home of Capital National Bank. Attached please find supporting material that 
has pictures of the building and interior spaces, as the fact that this building was last used as a 
bank, is that it was designed as highly secure, has built in Safe's and a private vehicle enclosed 
delivery garage for added safety measures. 

The principal of Amsterdam is Mr. Savinder Singh who owns a beautiful home with his wife Jagit 
Singh located at 3665 Bandera Lane, Okemos, and Amsterdam is a family run company with 
locations in Battle Creek and Harrison Michigan. In doing my due diligence to approve of this 
tenant, I toured each location and found both buildings to be above average quality and very well 
maintained, and the Harrison building was previously also a bank building and highly secure. 

The applicant and I attending the Staff Sub Committee meeting chaired by Timothy Schmidt, where 
they discussed two applications for Zone three, and ultimately the committee recommended the 
application of DVNK. We were surprised to learn at that meeting that an error had been made by 
Amsterdam in submitting their application in that the Security Plan they had obtained for this 
space, was mistakenly not included in their submittal packet. I myself have forgot to click 
"attachment" many items over the years and can certainly understand how that happened. Since 
that time, Amsterdam has resubmitted their detailed security plan, and we hope that you will 
strongly consider their application with a favorable recommendation to proceed with their special 
use permit. The staff subcommittee placed a great deal emphasis on their decision making in 
selecting DVNK comparing their security plan to the one of Amsterdam, that was mistakenly not 
included. The sub committed letter issued by chairman Schmidt with their recommendations, also 
indicated that both applicants did Not have any violations with the State of Michigan. That is in 
error. Attached please find a State of Michigan Consent Order and Formal Complaint levied against 
DVNK where they were found to be in violation of two counts of the State of Michigan Administrative 
Code and were fined $5000.00. Amsterdam has never been found to be in violation and or fined, of 
such an important code with the State if Michigan. Amsterdam's true security plan when 
resubmitted, was to be reviewed by the Meridian Police Chief and we trust that he found it to be 
well prepared and thoroughly thought out. 

In Conclusion, please vote in favor of this applicant to move forward. I my opinion, this type of 
Retail use is best found in low profile secure buildings/locations, and where better to keep 
economic commerce than in the central business district of Meridian Township. 

Sincerely, 
David Ledebuhr, 4766 Cornell Road, Okemos Michigan 48864 

~---~ ~1/l_ 
322 Abbot Rd., East Lansing, MI 48823 Phone: 517-332-3582 Fax: 517-332-3503 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 

In the Matter of 

DVNK Lapeer, Inc. / 
dba Consume 
License No.: PC-000274 

ENF No.: 23-00073 

_ _ ___________ / CONSENT ORDER AND STIPULATION 

CONSENT ORDER 

On March 24, 2023, the Cannabis Regulatory Agency (CRA) issued a formal 

complaint against the medical marijuana provisioning center license PC-000274 of 

DVNK Lapeer, Inc. dba Consume (Respondent) under the Medical Marihuana Facilities 

Licensing Act (MM FLA), MCL 333.27101 et seq. , and the administrative rules 

promulgated thereunder. The formal complaint alleged Respondent violated Mich Admin 

Code, R 420.502(1 ), R 420.504(1)(c), R 420.504(1 )(h), and R 420.504(1 )(v). 

The executive director reviewed the stipulation contained in this document and 

agrees the publ ic interest is best served by resolution of the formal complaint. 

Therefore, the executive director finds that the allegations contained in the formal 

complaint are true and that Respondent violated Mich Adm in Code, R 420.502(1 ), R 

420.504(1 )(c), R 420.504(1 )(h), and R 420.504(1 )(v). 

Accordingly, for these violations, IT IS ORDERED: 

1. Respondent must pay a fine in the amount of five thousand and 00/100 

---=:::> dollars ($5,000). This fine shall be paid within 30 days of the effective date of 

this order by check, money order, or online through Accela Citizen Access 

{ACA). Instructions on how to make online payments can be found under the 

Tips for Licensees bulletin section at www.michigan.gov/cra. Check or money 

ENF No. 22-00073 
CRA 5044 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 
2407 NORTH GRAND RIVER • P 0. BOX 30205 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 

\\ W\\ .miclugan.gov/CRA 
LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program 



orders shall be made payable to the State of Michigan with enforcement 

number "23-00073" and license number "PC-000274" clearly displayed on the 

check or money order. Respondent shall mail the fine to Department of 

Licensing and Regulatory Affairs, Cannabis Regulatory Agency, PO BOX 

30205, Lansing, Michigan 48909. 

2. Within 30 days of the effective date of this order, Respondent must: 

a. Formally train all managers and inventory employees on the updated 

standard operating procedure (SOP) for product labelling referenced in 

paragraph 3(c) of the stipulation below, and 

b. Provide a document signed by a manager, with names and positions of all 

employees trained, and dates the training was completed. 

3. If Respondent fails to timely comply with the terms of this order, Respondent's 

license shall be suspended until compliance is demonstrated. 

4 . Unless otherwise specified in this order, Respondent shall direct any 

communications to the CRA that are required by the terms of this order to 

CRA-LegalHearings@michiqan.gov. 

5. Respondent shall be responsible for all costs and expenses incurred in 

complying with the terms and conditions of this consent order. 

6. If Respondent violates any term or condition set forth in this order, 

Respondent will be subject to fines and/or other sanctions under section 

407(1) of the MMFLA, MCL 333.27407(1 ), and Mich Admin Code, R 420.808. 

7. Upon timely compliance of the terms of this order by Respondent, the matters 

set forth in the formal complaint shall be deemed resolved and closed subject 

to this consent order. 

ENF No. 22-00073 
CRA 5044 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 
2407 NORTH GRAND RIVER • P.O. BOX 30205 • LANSING, MICHlGAN 48909 

\\ ww.m1d11gan.g0\ /CRA 
LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program 

2 



This order shall be effective 30 days after the date signed by the CRA's 

executive director or his designee, as set forth below. 

Signed on: 07/18/2023 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 

. °"''"''~.,,.,,,._ Brian Hanna !JPICN•llrian...,,,.-• 
~a,1.p C •USO,._ 

By: ------~'-r--""'"'~=2;'--':,:'--'-,.-''•'36"'-,.-'-.... '""'w _ _ _ 

Brian Hanna, Executive Director 
or his designee 
Cannabis Regulatory Agency 

STIPULATION 

The parties stipulate to the following: 

1. The facts alleged in the formal complaint are true and constitute a violation of 

the administrative rules promulgated under the MMFLA. 

2. Respondent understands and intends that by signing this stipulation , 

Respondent is waiving the right under the MMFLA, administrative rules 

promulgated thereunder, and the Administrative Procedures Act of 1969, 

MCL 24.201 et seq., to require the CRA to prove the violations set forth in the 

formal complaint by presentation of evidence and legal authority, and to 

present a defense to the violations. 

3. The parties considered the following in reaching this agreement: 

ENF No. 22-00073 
CRA 5044 

a. Respondent stated an employee missed checking a box on its point-of­

sale system when printing the label for this product, and the missing 

data did not get pulled from Metre. 

b. Respondent stated it contacted the customer and allowed the 

customer to obtain a replacement product. 

c. Respondent provided an updated SOP requiring inventory teams to 

print and check labels for accuracy and completeness before products 

are placed on the sales floor, and again before they are sold or 

CANNABIS REGULA TORY AGENCY 
2407 NORTH GRAND RIVER • P.O. BOX 30205 • LANSING. MICHIGAN 48909 

,,ww.m1ch1gan.gowCRA 
LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program 

3 



transferred; and to promptly contact a manager for assistance if 

corrections are needed. 

d. Respondent was cooperative and wishes to resolve the allegations 

without the need for and expense of an administrative hearing. 

4. The CRA's operations director or his designee must approve this proposed 

agreement before it is forwarded to the CRA's executive director or his 

designee for review and issuance of the above consent order. The parties 

reserve the right to proceed to an administrative hearing without prejudice to 

either party, should the CRA's operations director, executive director, or their 

designees reject the proposed consent order. 

By signing this stipulation, the parties confirm that they have read, understand, 

and agree with the terms of the consent order. 

AGREED TO BY: 

Desmond 
Mitchell 

Digitally signed by 
Desmond Mitchell 
Date: 2023.07.17 
16:54:32 .()4'00' 

Desmond Mitchell, Operations Director 
or his designee 
Cannabis Regulatory Agency 

Dated: 07/17/2023 

AGREED TO BY: 

JJ , Director Sv. lo..kc... 
on behalf of Respondent 
DVNK Lapeer, Inc. 

Dated: 7/13/2023 
--------

CANNAOIS REGUI..I\TORY AGENCY 

ENf No 22-00073 
CRA j~4 

2407 NORTI I GRAND RIVl:R • r O UOX 30203 • LANSING, MICI IIGAN 48909 
,u,,, 0'h-hwmJ :.'''' 't'ft__u 

I.ARA i~ :111 c:qu3I oppor1umty .:mployc:r/pror,:im 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

CANNABIS REGULA TORY AGENCY 

In the Matter of 

DNVK Lapeer, Inc. dba Cansume Cannabis 
License No(s).: PC-000274 

ENF No: 23-00073 

_________ _____ ./ 

FORMAL COMPLAINT 

The Cannabis Regulatory Agency ("CRA") files this formal complaint against 

DNVK Lapeer, Inc. dba Consume Cannabis ("Respondent") alleging upon information 

and belief as follows: 

1. The CRA is authorized under the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act 

(MMFLA), MCL 333.27101 et seq. , and Executive Reorganization Order No.2019-2, 

MCL 333.27001 , to investigate alleged violations of the MMFLA and the administrative 

rules promulgated thereunder, take disciplinary action to prevent such violations, and 

impose fines and other sanctions against applicants and licensees that violate the 

MMFLA or administrative rules. 

2. Section 402(12) of the MMFLA provides that the expiration of a license does not 

terminate the CRA's authority to impose sanctions on the license. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS AND INTENDED ACTION OF THE CRA 

3. Respondent holds an active state operating license under the MMFLA to operate 

a medical marijuana Provisioning Center in the state of Michigan. 

4. Respondent operated at 2401 W. Genesee St., Lapeer, Ml 48446 and 528 

Warwick Sr. Alma, Ml 48801 at all times relevant to this complaint. 

5. Following an investigation, the CRA determined that Respondent violated the 

MMFLA and/or administrative rules promulgated thereunder as set forth below: 

Formal Complaint 
ENF No.: 23-00073 
CRA 5039 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 
2407 NORTH GRAND RIVER • P.O. BOX 30205 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 

www.michigan.gov/CRA 
LARA is an equal opporitunity employer/program 

Page I of 5 



a. On February 2, 2022, CRA made an unannounced visit to Respondent's 

facility. The unannounced visit was the result of a complaint accusing the 

Respondent of noncompliant labeling. 

b. On February 2, 2022, the CRA Regulation Officer observed the label on 

Metre tag # 1A405010001 F20D000003095 was missing the following 

information: the harvest date, lab name, and test date. No other products 

were found to be out of compliance. At the time of the visit, all the product 

in question were sold out. This matches the quantity indicated in Metre. A 

Respondent's representative confirmed that the label on the product in 

question was incomplete and that it was immediately corrected upon 

becoming aware of the issue. 

Count I 

Respondent's actions as described above in paragraphs a and b demonstrate a 

violation of Mich Admin Code R 420.502(1) which states, each marihuana products 

sold or transferred must be clearly labeled with the tracking identification numbers 

assigned by the statewide monitoring system affixed, tagged, or labeled and 

recorded, and any other information required by the agency, the acts, and these 

rules. 

Countll ~ 
Respondent's actions as described above in paragraphs a and b demonstrate a 

violation of Mich Admin Code R 420.504(1) which states, before a marihuana 

product is sold or transferred to or by a marihuana sales location, the container, 

bag, or product holding the marihuana product must be sealed and labeled with all 

of the following information: (c) Date of harvest, if applicable. (h) Name of the 

laboratory that performed any passing compliance testing on the product in final 

form and any test analysis date. (v) In clearly legible type and surrounded by a 

continuous heavy line: "WARNING: USE BY PREGNANT OR BREASTFEEDING 

WOMEN, OR BY WOMEN PLANNING TO BECOME PREGNANT, MAY RESULT 

Formal Complaint 
ENF No.: 23-00073 

CRA 5039 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 
2407 NORTH GRAND RIVER • P.O. BOX 30205 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 

www.michigan.gov/CRA 
LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program 

Page 2 of 5 



IN FETAL INJURY, PRETERMBIRTH, LOWBIRTHWEIGHT, OR 

DEVELOPMENTAL PROBLEMS FOR THE CHILD." 

THEREFORE, based on the above, the CRA gives notice of its intent to impose 

fines and/or other sanctions against Respondent's license, which may include the 

suspension, revocation, restriction, and/or refusal to renew Respondent's license. 

Under MCL 333.27407(4) and Mich Admin Code, R 420.704(2), any party aggrieved 

by an action of the CRA suspending, revoking, restricting, or refusing to renew a 

license, or imposing a fine, shall be given a hearing upon request. A request for a 

hearing must be submitted to the CRA in writing within 21 days after service of this 

complaint. Notice served by certified mail is considered complete on the business day 

following the date of the mailing. 

Respondent also has the right to request a compliance conference under Mich 

Admin Code, R 420.704(1) A compliance conference is an informal meeting at which 

Respondent has the opportunity to discuss the allegations in this complaint and 

demonstrate compliance under the MMFLA and/or the administrative rules. A 

compliance conference request must be submitted to the CRA in writing. 

Hearing and compliance conference requests must be submitted in writing by one of 

the following methods: 

By Mail: 

In Person: 

Formal Complaint 
ENF No.: 23--00073 
CRA 5039 

Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 

Cannabis Regulatory Agency 

P.O. Box 30205 

Lansing, Michigan 48909 

Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 

Cannabis Regulatory Agency 

2407 North Grand River 

Lansing, Michigan 48906 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 
2407 NORTH GRAND RIVER • P.O. BOX 30205 • LANSING, MICHLGAN 48909 

www.michigan.gov/CRA 
LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program 

Page 3 of 5 



By Email: CRA-LegalHearings@michigan.gov 

If Respondent fails to timely respond to this formal complaint, a contested case 

hearing will be scheduled to resolve this matter. 

Questions about this complaint should be directed to the Cannabis Regulatory 

Agency at (517) 284-8599 or CRA-LegalHearings@michigan.gov. 

Dated: 3/24/23 

Fonnal Complaint 
ENF No.: 23-00073 

CRA 5039 

. Digitally signed by Alyssa A. 
Alyssa A. Grissom Grissom 

By: _________ o_at_•: _20_23_.0_3_2_4_10_:3_7:4_9_-04_'00_ 

Alyssa A. Grissom 
Legal Section Manager 
Cannabis Regulatory Agency 

CANNABIS REGULATORY AGENCY 
2407 NORTH GRAND RIVER • P.O. BOX 30205 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 

www.michigan.gov/CRA 
LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program 

Page 4 of5 



~ 
MUSSELMAN REALTY 
Service Beyond The Sole for o,er 100 yea" 

December 15, 2023 

Meridian Township, Department of Community Planning and Development 

5151 Marsh Road 

Okemos Michigan 48864 

RE: Application for License - Amsterdam Recreational Cannabis Dispensary {Marihuana) 

4792 Marsh Road, Okemos (Zone 3) 

I write to offer my support for the License application and proposed use for the above entity in this 
Leased location. 

The applicant and the owners are bound to a lease obligation should the license and subsequent special 
use permit be approved which we are in favor of. This 3000 sq. ft location is the perfect site for this use 
having previously been the Capitol National Bank retail operation for over 20 years. As you know, with 
the bank usage, it is a highly secure building as that was the bank's primary interest in choosing this site 
many years ago. It's a slab on grade building with handicap access and ample parking per the attached 
site plan with visible limited parking on front facing Marsh, with a large parking lot on the rear of the 
building. The structure is screened well from the street with nice landscaping including large trees, has a 
low profile, and gives this a secluded appeal and is pleasing to the eye. This south suite (previously bank 
space) is currently vacant. The north suite is occupied by long-term tenant Williams Carpet {4794 Marsh 
Road), as this is two buildings with one common wall with each building having its own HVAC system so 
t here is no common air exchange. Also, the devising wall is concrete cinder block all the way through t he 
ceiling so there is no sound, nor air exchange. 

I have closely followed t he steps Meridian Township has taken to get to this point in welcoming retail 
sales of Recreational use Cannabis within the township and can't think of a better applicant. I have 
personally interviewed several other companies wanting this site and choose Amsterdam for several 
reasons. First, they are a family-run entity which is very important to the owners of the building. The 
principal CEO Savinder Singh lives in Okemos in a beautiful home, and his daughter currently attends 
Michigan State University. Many of his family members are involved in the business so we know it will 
be well managed. Second, Amsterdam has two very successful dispensaries in Battle Creek and Harrison 
Michigan. I have personally toured each and find them to be quality run locations and well received in 
their communities. Third, Amsterdam has their own grow facility located in Marshall Michigan. They 
also have an excellent t rack record of professional operations, and we look forward to their long-term 
success of this family business locating within their hometown location within Meridian Township. 

Sincerely, ,,,,,, ...... ,,,,,, 
.... V F 11

' 

~ v1__ ,,, es o,., ,,,, 
,to' ~ .•• - • • • O"e ,,, 

....ca _ __. $ -..'tf .• •• ~ ,, 
~ ~I. NOTARY PUBLIC • • '"::. 

David Ledebuhr (Principle Partner in the Ledebuhr Family Partnership and Betty Eiler;'LLC•, ~~ \ 1 
owners.) ! : My~Expns ': 1 

- I "'""' -

;. .. theP0Untfof : i 
\ ~f\\~6Wf:!"\ ,/~j 

-:. ")-; .. -· .. ~ ~ 
-:. ..d'),. • .... v ~ ,.,--.,,?--•····· 'X'' ...... 

,,,,,,,"; OF t,A\~,,•••"'' I -z.( 1~/ 2-3-
~ \J. rttt1-C>1:"\..L. ,,,,., .. , .... ,,, 

322 Abbot Rd., East Lansing, MI 48823 P e: 517-332-3582 Fax: 517-332-3503 





r 

Building Photos (22 photos) 





........ ,, 
~ ...... , 

ROOM 
10'4" X 7'11" 

RECEPTION 
17'10" X 12'11" 

ROOM 
29'10" X 25'4" 

WI NDOWSTILL 

ROM 
s·s· x r11· 

ROOM 
11'6" x 7'1" 

L 
BATH BATH 

6'9" X 7'111.-------■~--; 

ROOM 
11'4" X 12'11" 

HALL 
14'2" X 3'7" 

HALL 
31'3" X 9'7" 

ROOM 
11'0" X 12'11 " 

TOTAL: 2432 sq. ft 
FLOOR 1: 2432 sq. ft 

ROOM 
12·0· x s·s· 

ROOM 
11'6" X 12'11" 

EXCLUDED AREAS: GARAGE: 415 sq. ft, UNDEFINED: 15 sq. ft 
SIZES ANO DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. ACTUAL MAY VARY 

GARAGE 
26'5" X 15'8" 

ENTRY 
14•3• x s·s· 

ROOM 
13'11" x 12'11" 



t?(,-t!. l.{7o/i>­
/t 

4790 MARSH RD OKEMOS. Ml 48864 (Property Address) 

Parcel Number: 33-02-02-22-153-002 Account Number: MARS-004790-0000-01 

Property Owner: LEDEBUHR FAMILY LTD PARTNERSHIP & 

Summary Information 
> Commercial/Industrial Building Summary 

Yr Built 1978 - # of Buildings. 2 

- WB~~qFt. 

> Assessed Value: $666,000 I Taxable Value: $666,000 
> 13 Building Department records found 

> Property Tax information found 
> Utility Billing information found 

ltein 11ctfmge / 2 Sketches 

Owner and Taxpayer Information 

Owner LEDEBUHR FAMILY LTD 

PARTNERSHIP & 
BETTY EILER LLC 
322 ABBOT RD 

EAST LANSING, Ml 48823 

Taxpayer SEE OWNER INFORMATION 

General Information for Tax Year 2023 

Property Class 

School District 
MG 
APPRAISAL 
C. AREA 
INFLUENCE 
Historical District 
SOLAR/EV 

201 COMMERCIAL· Unit 02 MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 
IMPROVED 

OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $666,000 

No Data to Display Taxable Value $666,000 
Not Available State Equalized Value $666,000 

Not Available Date of Last Name Change 05/05/2017 

Not Available Notes Not Avodoble 

Not Available Census Block Group Na Data to Display 
Not Available Exemption No Doto to Display 

Principal Residence Exemption Information 

Homestead Date No Dato to Display 

Principal Residence Exemption 

2023 

Previous Year Information 

Year 

2022 

2021 

2020 

Land Information 

Zoning Code 
Land Value 
Renaissance Zone 

ECF Neighborhood 

C-3 

$418,000 

MBOR Assessed 

$699,800 

$674,400 

$701,900 

Total Acres 
Land Improvements 

No Renaissance Zone 
Expiration Date 

2010 GRAND Mortgage Code 
RIVER/ JOLLY /MARSH/N EWM 

AN RETAIL 

June 1st 

0.0000 % 

Final SEV 

$699,800 

$674,400 

$701,900 

1.422 

Not Available 
No Dora to Display 

999 

Lot Dimensions/Comments No Dato to Display Neighborhood Enterprise No 

Zone 

Lot(s> Frontage 

No lot s found. 

Total Frontage: 0.00 ft 

➔ Legal Descrrpt1on 

Final 

0.0000 % 

Final Taxable 

$639,454 

$619,027 

$610,481 

Depth 

Average Depth: 0.00 ft 

M22 7 2-6 COM AT W 1/4 COR OF SEC 22- S 89 DEG 07' 22 E 115 50 FT TO PT ON CEN LINE OF MARSH RD N 45 DEG 57' 46" E ALONG SAID CEN 

LINE 726 05 FT TO PT ON CEN LINE OF GRAND RIVER AVE S 69 DEG 28' 42" E ALONG SAID CEN LINE OF GRAND RIVER AVE 220 FT· N 11 DEG 39' 
25 W 1608 FT ALONG E'LY LINE OF CLEAR VISION AREA TO PT ON E'LY R/W LINE OF MARSH RD N 46 DEG 40' 26" E ALONG SAID R;W LINE 359 

By continuing to use this website you agree to the BS&A Online Terms of Use X ON CURVE TO LEFT 325.04 FT SAID CURVE HAVING RADIUS OF 1069.3 



 
THOMAS STANKO                CHAIR 
ANGELA WRIGHT                VICE CHAIR 
PETER CAMPBELL                SECRETARY 

RENEE KORREY         MEMBER 
DON ROMAIN           MEMBER 
BILL CAWOOD     MEMBER 

 

 

May 6, 2024 
Meridian Township Board 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48840 
 
RE: Village of Okemos Development Concepts A & B 2024 Review 
 
Township Board Members, 
 
After several years since the first approval, the Downtown Development Authority members were 
granted the opportunity to review the most recent proposal for concepts of the “Village of Okemos” 
mixed-use project. Though the project lies in the DDA, the viewpoint of our Board has held limited 
authority over the project. The DDA is committed to supporting projects and programs that will assist 
the district to see exponential growth through revitalization in the next few years. A catalyst project was 
proposed to us in 2018 and is the reason why the DDA made updates to the Tax Increment Financing 
plan. The DDA has the mission to beautify and revitalize the district as a desirable place to shop, live, 
and do business. We have a commitment to create a friendly, walkable, community; embracing the 
natural aesthetics of the river and parks. Our hope is that you will receive and reflect on the mission of 
the DDA, while considering your support of the project being proposed.  
 
It is the opinion of all of the DDA members that concept C, is not a catalyst mixed-use project that 
supports our vision of revitalization. The 5-story building would immediately shroud Douglas J and place 
a vast parking lot as the element people would see when they enter the DDA.  At the DDA meeting we 
did discuss concept A, with some belief that it could be a viable option if the parties are able to come to 
new terms. The developer mentions in their letter, concept B, stating the removal of the boulevard does 
not support getting the project to construction.  With concept A, the project will only move forward if 
the Township pays for the burial of the HVD, widening of Okemos road, and all public infrastructure. This 
is a large financial request, to see the development of a smaller building and less commercial than what 
is approved. We recognize this project has several hurdles that must be overcome to reach construction. 
It is our desire to support a transformational project at the corner of Hamilton and Okemos road. The 
question before the public and DDA is whether this project meets our expectation of revitalization and 
mixed-use. As a DDA body, we struggle with how far from its original version and intent the project has 
become. We struggle with the path forward to construction with concept A, unless new terms are 
created. It is for these reasons we are not in support of the concepts as they currently are presented.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Thomas A. Stanko
Chair
Downtown Development Authority
Meridian Charter Township







 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Special Use Permit #24007 

MONDAY, May 13, 2024 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Special Use Permit #24007 (5681 Shaw) 
Public Hearing 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian will 
hold a public hearing on Monday, May 13, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to 
hear all persons interested in a Special Use Permit request. The applicant, Lilliac LLC, is 
proposing to redevelop an existing structure on the property from an office complex to a 
four-unit residential building.   
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday and on the Township website under Planning & Development 
Documents at https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/community-planning-
development.   
 
Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to the Planning Commission, 
Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, or by email to 
shorkey@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 

 
Publish:   City Pulse     Deborah Guthrie 
   April 24, 2024     Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us ------



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime comm  
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Special Use Permit #24008 

 (2745 Mount Hope) 

MONDAY, May 13, 2024 

  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Special Use Permit #24008 
(2745 Mount Hope) 

Public Hearing 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian will 
hold a public hearing on Monday, May 13, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal Building, 
Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to hear all 
persons interested in a special use permit (SUP) request from Montessori Radmoor School. The 
applicant is requesting to expand the parking lot to add 12 spaces at 2745 Mount Hope Road. 
The approximate 9.64-acre subject site is zoned RR (Rural Residential).  

Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Planning Commission, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, or by email to 
planningcommission@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   City Pulse    Deborah Guthrie 
   April 24, 2024    Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us ------



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime comm  
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Special Use Permit #24009 

 (SANDDS Meridian LLC) 

MONDAY, May 18, 2024 

  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Special Use Permit #24009 (SANDDS Meridian LLC)  
Public Hearing 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian will 
hold a public hearing on Monday, May 13, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal Building, 
Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to hear all 
persons interested in a special use permit request. SANDDS Meridian LLC is proposing to 
establish a commercial adult use marihuana provisioning center in an existing shopping center 
located at 3520 Okemos Road, suites 8, 9, and 10.  The approximate 0.39 acre site is zoned C-2 
(Commercial).  
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday and on the Township website under Planning & Development 
Documents at https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/community-planning-
development.   
 
Comments may be sent prior to the public hearing by writing to the Planning Commission, 
Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, by phone at 
phone 517-853-4560, or by email at schmitt@meridian.mi.us. Comments may also be given 
in person at the public hearing. 

 
Publish:   City Pulse     Deborah Guthrie 
   April 24, 2024     Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us ------



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime comm  
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 24-04 
2810 Hannah Blvd. 

WEDNESDAY, May 15, 2024 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request 24-04 
2810 Hannah Boulevard 

Public Hearing 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, May 15, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517.853.4560) to 
hear all persons interested in a variance request from Metro Detroit Signs. The applicant is 
proposing to add two wall signs. One wall sign does not meet the size requirement and one wall 
sign does not meet the location requirement on the building facade. The subject site is zoned 
RP, Research Park.   
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   City Pulse   Deborah Guthrie 
   April 24, 2024   Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us ------



~ 
MERIDIAN A 

T O W N S H I P., • .,, 
~ 

CONSENT AGENDA 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

( 1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of April 16, 2024 and the minutes of the Special 
Meeting of April 21, 2024 as submitted. (1) 

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

10.B 

(1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 16, 
2024 and the minutes of the Special Meeting of April 21, 2024 with the 
following amendment(s):[insert amendments] 



Page 1 

 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Township Hall Room 
Tuesday, April 16, 2024, 6:00 pm 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee 

Sundland, Trustee Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

ABSENT: Supervisor Jackson 

 
STAFF: Chief Grillo, Manager Walsh, Director Schmitt, Deputy Manager Opsommer, Chief Hamel, 

Officer Short 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Supervisor Pro-Tem Hendrickson called the April 2, 2024, Regular Township Board meeting to 
order at 6:00 pm.   
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Supervisor Pro-Tem Hendrickson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 
Clerk Guthrie called the roll of the Board. Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie, 
Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson present at 6:00 
pm.  
 

4. PRESENTATION  
 

A. New Police Officer Introductions 
 

Chief Grillo presented new Officer Dustin Short who attended Police Academy at Northern 
Michigan. 
 

 
5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Supervisor Pro-Tem Hendrickson opened comments from the public at 6:04 pm. 
 
Supervisor Pro-Tem Hendrickson closed comments from the public at 6:04 pm. 
 

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
 
Manager Walsh gave updates about the following: 
 

• Good progress on Police hiring 
• Improvements to Marshall Park are taking place 
• Haslett Village Square TIF changes will be forthcoming 



Page 2 

• Village of Okemos will be before the Planning Commission, then the Board on May 9th 
• Silverleaf Development is getting underway 
• Trader Joes is on schedule 
• 2023 Audit begins this week 
• Will celebrate Administrative Professionals next week 
• CAMTV equipment will be replaced in the next two weeks 
• Township Survey questions are being compiled 
• Recognized employee anniversaries 

 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
Trustee Wilson updated the board on the Community & Senior Center task force activities.  
 
Trustee Trezise updated the board on the actions of the Environmental Commission. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine noted that the Parks Community Service day will be April 27. 
 
 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson announced that a last-minute agenda item was added: 9.J 
Charitable Gaming License-Hiawatha Elementary PTO and asked the board to review it if they 
had not already done so. 
 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Supported by Clerk Guthrie. 

 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Supported by Trustee 
Wilson 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  
Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY 

 
NONE 
 

11. HEARINGS 
 



Page 3 

12. ACTION ITEMS 
  

A. Ordinance 2024-03 – Planning Commission Membership – FINAL ADOPTION 
 

Director Schmitt outlined the discussion that has occurred to this date regarding this 
Ordinance change. 
 
Trustee Trezise moved to adopt Text Amendment 2024-03, an Ordinance to amend 
the Code of Ordinances of the Charter Township of Meridian at Section 2-287 to 
change the number of Planning Commission members from nine to seven.  Supported 
by Trustee Wilson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
B. 2022 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Resolution #5 

 
Deputy Manager Opsommer reviewed the discussions and hearings that have already taken 
place regarding this Resolution. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine  moved to approve the 2022 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special 
Assessment District #20 Resolution #5, which adopts the Special Assessment Roll; 
designates the project as “2022 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment 
District # 20”; adopts the Assessment Roll as the “2022 Order to Maintain Sidewalk 
Special Assessment District No. 20 Special Assessment Roll”; adopts the District as 
“2022 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District # 20”; adopts the 
amount of $50,227.52 as the final amount for the Assessment Roll; and orders and 
directs the Assessment Roll to be paid and collected.  Supported By Clerk Guthrie. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
C. Unruh Drain Conversion – Chapter 20 to Chapter 3/4  

 
Deputy Manager Opsommer outlined the reasoning behind changing the drain from 
Chapter 20 to Chapter 3/4 and gave details about the differences between Chapter 20 and 
Chapter 3/4 drains.  
 



Page 4 

Trustee Trezise moved to adopt the Resolution authorizing Ch. 3 application for 
Unruh Drain Drainage District and authorize the Supervisor and Clerk to execute the 
Application for laying out and designating a Drainage District and the Petition for 
locating, establishing, and constructing a Drain.  Seconded by Trustee Sundland. 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

D. Fire Apparatus 
 
Chief Hamel explained financing for the apparatus and recommended waiting until fall to 
finance because the vehicle cannot be received until then.  Manager Walsh outlined use of 
the Motor Pool fund to pay a portion of the cost for the fire apparatus.  Clerk Guthrie asked 
if there would be funds recouped from the cost of the malfunctioning vehicle. Chief Hamel 
stated that there are many variables, and the determination won’t be made until after 
litigation is complete. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to authorize the Township Manager to sign the 
appropriate documents for the purchase of Suthpen Corporation’s G9 Program 1 
Pumper.  Further, the Township Board appropriates $200,000 from the Motor Pool 
Fund as a future down payment to reduce the overall interest rate exposure.  
Seconded by Trustee Wilson. 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
E. Policy Review Working Group 

 
Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson outlined the need for a Policy Review Working Group. 
 
Trustee Wilson moved to establish the Policy Review Working Group consisting of 
two Township Board Members, the Township Manager (or their representative), the 
Human Resources Director, and a relevant rotating Departmental Director, based on 
the Policy to be updated.  The Working Group will recommend new and revised 
policies to the Township Board for final approval.  Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine. 

 
VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 



Page 5 

 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
Trustee Wilson moved to appoint Trustee Peter Trezise and Clerk Deborah Guthrie 
to be the Board’s representatives on the Policy Review Working Group.  Seconded by 
Treasurer Deschaine.  

 
VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
F. Recreational Marijuana License Applications in Zones 1 & 5 

 
1. Zone 1 application – Haslett Gallery 

 
Director Schmitt gave an overview of the previous discussion regarding this application.  
The Planning Department looked into the Board’s questions from the previous meeting 
and reported that the lease is valid and that the number of shareholders was a 
typographical error, that there are only two shareholders at this time.  Inspections and 
code requirements have been met and the applicant is following the permitting process. 

 
Trustee Sundland moved to adopt the Resolution granting CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 
of the Recreational Marijuana License Application to Haslett Gallery, LLC for the 
proposed marijuana retailer location at 2119 Haslett Rd, Suite A.  The property is 
zoned C-1 Commercial and is located within the Marijuana Facilities Overly District.  
Seconded by Trustee Trezise 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
2. Zone 5 application – SANDDS Meridian 

 
Director Schmitt gave an overview of the previous discussion regarding this application. 
 

Clerk Guthrie moved to adopt the Resolution granting CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of 
the Recreational Marijuana License Application to SANDDS Meridian LLC for the 
proposed marijuana retailer location at 3520 Okemos Road, Suites 9 and 10.  The 
property is zoned C-2 Commercial and is located within the Marijuana Facilities 
Overly District.  Seconded by Trustee Trezise. 



Page 6 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  

A. Recreational Marijuana License Applications in Zone 4  
 

Anderson Grandstaff, counsel to the Applicant, Okemos Local Investments, presented 
information to answer the Board’s questions regarding the application.    

 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson opened comments from the public at 7:31 pm 
 
Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson closed comments from the public at 7:31 pm 
 
 

15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
NONE 
 

16. CLOSED SESSION 
 

At 7:32 pm the board moved to enter Closed Session 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to go into a closed session to discuss a personnel issue 
under MCL 15.268(1)(a). Seconded by Trustee Wilson. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE  YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  
Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
At 11:15 pm Open Session resumed.   
 
Supervisor Pro Tem stated that the Board and the Manager have agreed that given the lateness 
of the hour and the importance of the discussion at hand, the Board has decided to recess until 
6:00 pm April 17, 2024 with the intention of re-entering closed session to complete the 
discussion.  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson asked the board if there were any opposed to 
recess.  No opposition was voiced.  The board recessed at 11:16 pm. 
 
At 6:00 pm the April 16, 2024 Township Board Meeting resumed. 
 



Page 7 

Trustee Wilson moved to reconvene from recess to go into closed session to discuss a 
personnel issue under MCL 15.268(1)(a). Seconded by Trustee Trezise. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE  YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  
Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
 

 At 7:22 pm Open Session resumed.  
 

Treasurer Deschaine moved to direct counsel to work with Trustee Sundland and 
Truste Trezise to negotiate a resignation agreement and consultation agreement 
with Frank Walsh.  Seconded by Trustee Wilson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE  YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson made a brief statement. “We are grateful for our 
employees’ and the public’s patience with regard to the time we have spent to consider the 
matters before us. We appreciate the manager’s service to the Township and his service to 
our residents. The decision to move forward in this way was reached on a mutual basis and 
we appreciate Mr. Walsh’s professionalism and willingness to put the Township first. We 
believe that the actions taken here and over the next several weeks represent the best 
possible solution for the Township, our employees, and our residents.” 

 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Trustee Wilson moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Trezise. 
 

VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Pro Tem Hendrickson, Clerk Guthrie,  
Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:23 pm. 

 
__________________________________ 

Patricia Jackson 
Township Supervisor 

 
__________________________________ 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 



Page 1 

 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Township Hall Room 
Sunday, April 21, 2024, 10:00 am 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Trustee Hendrickson, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 

Trezise, Trustee Wilson 

ABSENT: Treasurer Deschaine 

 
STAFF: Manager Walsh 

 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Supervisor Jackson called the April 21, 2024, Special Township Board meeting to order at 10:00 
am.   
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Supervisor Jackson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 
Clerk Guthrie called the roll of the Board. Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Trustee 
Hendrickson, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, Trustee Wilson present at 10:01 am.  
 

4. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Supervisor Jackson opened comments from the public at 10:01 am. 
 
Mike McCurdy, candidate for Township Clerk, expressed need for transparency from the 
Township Board. 
 
Supervisor Jackson closed comments from the public at 10:04 am. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Trustee Trezise moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Supported by Trustee 
Wilson. 

 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Trustees Hendrickson, Sundland, 

Trezise and Wilson 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6 – 0 
 

6. ACTION ITEMS 



Page 2 

  
A. Resignation Agreement 

 
Trustee Hendrickson moved to accept the letter of resignation from Frank Walsh and 
approve the resignation agreement with Frank Walsh as presented this morning.  
Supported by Wilson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Trustee Hendrickson, 

Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, Trustee Wilson. 
 

NAYS: NONE  
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
B. Consultation Agreement  

 
Trustee Trezise expressed the need to retain Mr. Walsh for the budget season and possible 
development of a community center for continued smooth operation of the Township.  
Trustee Hendrickson added that the consultation agreement broadly covers what Mr. 
Walsh will be consulted upon over the next eight month, but it does not cover the manner 
in which these items will be accomplished, and more discussion needs to occur regarding 
these logistics.  Clerk Guthrie asked for clarification about how Mr. Walsh will communicate 
through Board Members.  Trustee Trezise clarified that the Board Members will not be the 
sole source of communication for Mr. Walsh, that he will communicate with department 
heads and other staff, through their department heads, as necessary. 
 
Trustee Trezise moved to accept and approve the consulting agreement with Mr. 
Walsh to continue on as a consultant as well as working on certain key issues for the 
balance of the 2024 year.  Supported by Trustee Wilson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS: Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Trustee Hendrickson, 

Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, Trustee Wilson. 
 

NAYS: NONE  
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
C. Appointment of Interim Manager 

 
Trustee Wilson detailed Director Schmitt’s capabilities that led to the decision to appoint 
him to this Interim position. 
 
Trustee Wilson moved the appointment of Community Planning and Development 
Director Timothy Schmitt as Interim Manager of Meridian Township.  Supported by 
Trustee Hendrickson. 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Trustee Hendrickson, 

Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, Trustee Wilson. 



Page 3 

 
NAYS: NONE  
 
Motion carried: 6-0 
 

D. Other action as the board deems appropriate 

Trustee Hendrickson made a statement on behalf of the board.  Beginning August 2023, Board 
Members sought legal counsel for review and recommendations regarding complaints about Mr. 
Walsh.  The investigation involved interviews with current and former employees and former 
Manager Walsh. A report was prepared and returned to the Township Board in Mid-February.  
The Township Board met with the investigator and the Township attorney in closed session on 
March 17 to discuss the confidential legal opinion. When the Board returned open session, the 
Board instructed the investigator and Township attorney to follow up on that discussion with Mr. 
Walsh.  On April 16 at Mr. Walsh’s request, the Board discussed this matter in closed session. At 
the conclusion of the meeting, two Board Members were appointed to negotiate the terms of a 
resignation agreement with Mr. Walsh.  The Township Board commends Mr. Walsh’s service to 
the community over the past 11 years.  The Board is confident that this decision will serve the 
residents now and moving forward, and thanked residents and staff for their patience as the 
investigation has moved forward.  The Board expresses their support for and confidence in 
Director Schmitt as the Interim Manager. 

 
7. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Supervisor Jackson opened comments from the public at 10:20 am 
 
Michelle Prinz, speaking as a resident not as an employee, expressed her disappointment that 
the board has not been transparent, and there was no packet provided today allowing residents 
to see the consulting agreement, the resignation letter, or the resignation agreement.  On behalf 
of the employees, the lack of communication between the Board and the employees has been 
extremely poor.  Would like to know when the investigation report will be made public. 
 
Carol Hasse, speaking as a 15-year employee of the township, expressed her concern that the 
process to select a new manager be done sincerely, correctly, in a valid way, and the most 
appropriate way for residents and employees.  Individuals feel like they have not been heard 
through the investigation process. 
 
Samantha Diehl, speaking as the Communications Manager for Meridian Township, expressed 
her frustration with the silence and lack of transparency and concern that the board has failed 
to protect employees by creating a consulting agreement with Frank Walsh after his 
resignation.  Expressed concern that work conditions will be uncomfortable while Frank Walsh 
continues working for the Township.  Employees are upset by the long and difficult process, 
and do not feel supported. 
 
Milton Scales expressed disappointment with the lack of transparency, the lack of a packet even 
though there must be information in writing.  Asked that information be provided to residents 
about what has been done and what will be done moving forward. 
 
Mike McCurdy returned to the podium to state his support for Township employees and 
expressed concern that the news reports stated that employees wished to remain anonymous 
for fear of retaliation.  Wants more information about the payments Mr. Walsh will receive 
regarding both his resignation agreement and his consulting agreement to ensure that there 
will be no double-dipping. 



Page 4 

 
Supervisor Jackson closed comments from the public at 10:31 am 
 

8. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
Trustee Hendrickson agreed with residents and employees regarding the need for the contents 
of the agreements to be made public and stated that the consulting agreement and resignation 
agreement should be put into a packet.  Stated that the Board placed the privacy and anonymity 
of employees, including Mr. Walsh, as priority. 
 
Clerk Guthrie, speaking as both a staff member and elected official, stressed the need for 
transparency, communications, DEI initiatives, sensitivity training, and healing.  Apologized to 
staff, that how communication was handled was unacceptable. 
 
Michelle Prinz was invited back to the podium by Supervisor Jackson. Asked the Board why Mr. 
Walsh is being contracted to work on the Community Center project when retired Parks 
Director Maisner has already been contracted lead the project.  There are current and former 
staff that have all the tools and abilities to complete the budget.  Would like more information 
on why the Board required an employee to resign and then engaged in a contract with the same 
employee.  Expressed concern about the ability to move forward if Mr. Walsh is still working 
with the Township. 
 
Trustee Wilson reiterated the priority of employee privacy and anonymity while conducting 
the investigation and that the report from the attorneys will not be made public.  Stressed that 
both retired Director Maisner and former Manager Walsh are critical to completing the Senior 
& Community Center project, and that he will not be in the building while performing that role.  
It is helpful to have Mr. Walsh in the budget process because he has 11 years of experience 
creating the Township budget. 
 
Frank Walsh was invited to the podium by Supervisor Jackson.  Apologized for his contribution 
to this issue.  Spoke of events and instances where he led the Township through difficulties.  
Asked people to remember 3 things: leadership, team building, and community.  Will donate 
$20,000 to Meridian Cares. Stated his appreciation for the Meridian Township team. 
 
Trustee Wilson added that the resignation contract, the consultation contract, and board 
comments will be made available after the board meeting. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Hendrickson moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Wilson 
 

VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Trustee Hendrickson, 
Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, Trustee Wilson. 

 
NAYS: NONE  
 
Motion carried: 6-0 
 

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:57 am 

 
__________________________________ 

Patricia Jackson 
Township Supervisor 

 
__________________________________ 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
\[O ~ ~S~~ i, 
~ 

To: Board Members 

From: Dante Ianni, Finance Director 

Date: May 2, 2024 

Charter Township of Meridian 

Board Meeting 

5/9/2024 

MOVED THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD APPROVE THE TOWNSHIP 

INVOICES/EXPENSES AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMON CASH 

PUBLIC WORKS 

TRUST & AGENCY 

CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS 

04/11/2024 to 05/01/2024 

ACH PAYMENTS 

TOTAL CHECKS: 

TOTAL PURCHASES: 

~ 
Providing a safu and welcoming, sustainable, prime community; 

10.C 

$ 669,218.80 

$ 73,616.82 

$ 356,214.69 

$ 1,099,050.31 

$ 15,703.17 

$ 1.114.753.48 

$ 1,130,596.86 

A. PRIME COMMUNJTY 

meridian.ml.us ---



05/02/2024 03:56 PM 
User: GRAHAM 
DB: Meridian 

Vendor Name 

1.AT&T 

2. AIS CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT 

3. ALLIED SIGNS INC 

4. AMERICAN RENTALS 

5. ANTHONY KOZLOWSKI 

6. ASAP PRINTING 

7. AT & T 

8. AT & T MOBILITY 

9. AUTO VALUE OF EAST LANSING 

10. AVI SYSTEMS INC 

11. AXON ENTERPRISE, INC 

12. BARYAMES CLEANERS 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Description 

APR 9 - MAY 8 2024 - INTERNET Fl 327775054 
APR 15 - MAY 14 2024 - INTERNET Sl 

CEMETARY UNIT #94 - PARTS 
UNIT #94 - FUEL FILTER 
UNIT #94 - ACCT 55963 - FILTER 

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES OVERPMT 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

4/21/24 TO 5/21/24 - TRANSFER STATION PORTABLE TOI 

SCBA MASK FITTING REIMBURSEMENT 

INSPECTION LABELS 
T. SCHMITT & K. LOVE BUSINESS CARDS 

TOTAL 

APR 7 - MAY 6 2024 - TELEPHONE+ INTERNET Ml 83100 
MAR 11 - APR 10 2024 - INTERNET ASE 8310008214218 

TOTAL 

APR 5 - MAY 4 2024 - WIRELESS 287252740666 517.332 
MAR 7 - APR 6 2024 - FIRSTNET 287312082574 517.331 

UNIT 95 CEMETARY - REPAIR PARTS 
UNIT 95 CEMETARY - SOUND PADS 
SHOP SUPPLY - REPAIR PARTS 
SHOP SUPPLY - WHEEL WEIGHTS 
SHOP SUPPLY - FLUID FILM 
BEARING - REPAIR PARTS 
SHOP SUPPLY - LOCKON GRS COUPLING 
UNIT 98 CEMETARY - REPAIR PARTS 

TOTAL 

CREDIT RETURN BEARING PROT - REPAIR PARTS 
UNIT 31 SEWER - REPAIR PARTS 
SHOP SUPPLY - CAR FUSES/LITE MATE 
SHOP SUPPLY - 30LB R134A 
SHOP SUPPLY - WASHER SOLVENT/DSLEXH 
UNIT 680 POLICE - REPAIR PARTS 
STOCK - CABIN FILTER 
AIR FILTER - REPAIR PARTS 
AIR FILTER - REPAIR PARTS 
SHOP SUPPLY - RIGHT STUFF/WEATHERSTRIP ADHESIVE 
UNIT 13 WATER - REPAIR PARTS 

TOTAL 

CABLECAST CHANNEL EQUIPMENT FOR HOMTV AND CAMTV 

POLICE BODY WORN CAMERAS 

Amount 

195.25 
195.25 

390.50 

252.68 
52.32 
75.00 

380.00 

150.00 

86.00 

149.00 

437.44 
60.20 

497.64 

1,300.36 
3,763.02 

5,063.38 

76.32 
172. 96 

249.28 

50.47 
265.40 
181. 47 

52.52 
74.94 
83.38 
85.38 
73.59 

(83.38) 
32.56 
66.08 

325.00 
213.96 

25.99 
77.97 
17.84 
17.84 
61. 67 

570.66 

2,193.34 

31,614.74 

03/15/2024 TO 04/01/2024 - POLICE UNIFORM CLEANING 
13. BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN 

17,687.89 

450.19 

2,206.24 5/1/24 TO 5/31/24 BCBS PPO RETIREE HEALTH INSURANC 

Check# 

111916 
111926 

111930 
111930 
111930 

111917 

111918 
111918 

111919 
111919 

111951 

111920 

111931 



05/02/2024 03:56 PM 
User: GRAHAM 
DB: Meridian 

Vendor Name 

14 . BLUE CROSS COMPLETE 

15. BLUE LINE CUSTOMS LLC 

16. BOUNDTREE MEDICAL 

17. BOYNTON FIRE SAFETY SERVICE 

18. BRIGHTLINE TECHNOLOGIES 

19. CARLISLE WORTMAN ASSOC 

20. CDW 

21. CINTAS CORPORATION #725 

22. CITY PULSE 

23. CMP DISTRIBUTORS INC. 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Description 

J OBREGON 3/20/23 - AMBULANCE OVERPAYMENT 
J OBREGON 3/05/23 - AMBULANCE OVERPAYMENT 

TOTAL 

SHIRTS TWP POLICE 

ORDER 105222747 - MEDICAL SUPPLIES FOR AMBULANCES 

SERVICE CENTER -2024 ANNUAL FIRE SAFETY INSPECTION 
S. FIRE - 2024 ANNUAL FIRE SAFETY INSPECTION 
CENTRAL FIRE - 2024 ANNUAL FIRE SAFETY INSPECTION 
PUBLIC SAFETY - 2024 ANNUAL FIRE SAFETY INSPECTION 

TOTAL 

DELL PERC RAID CONTROLLER FOR SQL SERVER 
TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING SERVICES HOURS BLOCK 

TOTAL 

OKEMOS SCHOOL BLDG PERMIT REVIEW-CHIPPEWA MIDDLES 

ORDER #1CDKL67 - AMBULANCE LAPTOP REPLACEMENT 

04/10/2024 - MECHANICS UNIFORMS 
4/17/2024 - MECHANICS UNIFORMS 
4-24-2024 - MECHANICS UNIFORMS 

TWP NOTICES - 3/27/2024 

TOTAL 

Amount 

275.73 
283.59 

559.32 

76.00 

4,245.24 

370.00 
285.00 
880.00 
805.00 

2,340.00 

1,120.00 
11,500.00 

12,620.00 

370.00 

3,053.47 

48.08 
48.08 

519.44 

615.60 

ACCT #1281 - COLT RIFLE - POLICE 
24. COLLIERS ENGINEERING & DESIGN, 

296. 00 

699.00 

1,633.75 

547.69 
248.73 

32.01 

25. COMCAST 

2 6. CONSUMERS ENERGY 

27. COUNTRYSIDE PARTY RENTALS 

28. CRYSTAL FLASH 

2 9. D. C BYERS COMPANY 

30. DAVID BORNEMAN, LLC 

31. DELL MARKETING LP 

32. DOUGLASS C SAYLOR 

33. DREAM BUILDERS 

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES THRU 3/31/2024 - P 

MAY 2024 - INTERNET+ TV Ml 
APR 29 - MAY 28 2024 - TELEPHONE+ INTERNET S2 
APR 29 - MAY 28 2024 - TV Pl 8529114160257253 
APR 19 - MAY 18 2024 - INTERNET SCADA 852911416029 

TOTAL 

GRAVES - EMERGENCY UTILITY ASSISTANCE 

2024 MEMORIAL DAY - TENT & CHAIRS RENTAL 

MOTOR POOL - ACCT 97833 - FLEET FUEL 

S FIRE STATION - MASONRY REPAIRS 
S FIRE STATION - HIGH BAY DOOR REPAIRS 

TOTAL 

SPRING 2024 - PRESCRIBED BURN DAVIS FOSTER PRESERV 

NEW DELL 24-INCH MONITORS - SECOND ORDER 

EMERGENCY DOOR REPAIR NEMOKE TRAIL - POLICE DEPT 
50% DEPOSIT EMERGENCY DOOR REPAIR - POLICE DEPT 

TOTAL 

REFUND FOR PERMIT- PLANS DID NOT MEET MINIMUM SUBM 

257.90 

1,086.33 

500.00 

648.75 

17,304.27 

5,150.00 
5,700.00 

10,850.00 

5,337.50 

1,522.50 

585.00 
585.00 

1,170.00 

800.00 

Check# 

111932 

111952 
111952 

111953 

111954 
111954 
111954 

111955 

111933 

111927 
111921 
111921 
111921 

111934 

111956 

111935 

111949 
111946 



05/02/2024 03:56 PM 
User: GRAHAM 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

DB: Meridian BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 

Vendor Name 

34. EDGEWOOD VILLAGE APARTMENTS 

35. ELECTION SOURCE 

36. FD HAYES ELECTRIC 

BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Description 

EMERGENCY RENT ASSISTANCE - KURGER 

2024 ELECTION PARKING SIGNS AND NAME BADGES 

LABOR AND MATERIALS OKEMOS LIBRARY CAMERA 
REPLACED CAMERA AT OKEMOS LIBARY 

TOTAL 

37. FLEETPRIDE HEAVY DUTY PARTS&SERVICE 
SHOP SUPPLY - SILICONE 

38. FORESIGHT GROUP 

39. GANNETT MEDIA CORP 

40. GRANGER 

41 . HAMMOND FARMS 

DECAL VEHICLES UNIT #684 
WATER BILLS 4/16/2024 AND POSTAGE 

TOTAL 

MAR 1 - MAR 31 2024 - LSJ NOTICES 

DEC 2023 - GAYLORD C SMITH - RUBBISH DISPOSAL SERV 
ACCT NO. 17334070 APRIL 2024 MUNICIPAL RECYCLING 
APRIL 2024 - ACCT 1106200 - GAYLORD C SMITH - RUBB 
2024 - SEASONAL TRASH SERVICE IN PARKS 

TOTAL 

MULCH FOR PARKS AND PATHWAYS 
42. HASLETT CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

2024 GREEN GRANT - HASLETT CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTE 
43. HASLETT COMMUNITY CHURCH 

44. HASLETT-OKEMOS ROTARY 
2024 GREEN GRANT - HASLETT COMMUNITY CHURCH 

R GRILLO - 2ND QTR 2024 - ROTARY DUES 
D. GUTHRIE - 2ND QTR 2024 - ROTARY DUES 

TOTAL 

45. HSI EMERGENCY CARE SOLUTIONS INC 
4/22/2024 - 4/22/2025 - 24/7 EMS ONLINE TRAINING 

46. INGHAM COUNTY HEALTH DEPT 
MAY - SEPT 2024, 22 WEEKS - SURFACE WATER SAMPLING 

47. INGHAM COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS 
RECORDING FEE DOCUMENT 2024-005598 

48. JACK DOHENY COMPANIES INC 

4 9. JEDVIN LLC 

50. JESSEY M. ADAMS 

51. KCI 

52. KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY INC 

MOTOR POOL - WATER - VACTOR REPAIR PARTS 
SEWER - VACTOR RUBBER SEAL 

TOTAL 

REPLACED DAMAGED VALVES MUN BLDG 

5/17/2024 - MARKETPLACE SONGWRITER SHOWCASE PERFOR 

JOB #175390 - PCT 18 & 19 POLLING LOCATION CHANGE 

DUTY AMMUNITION 
53. KIMBALL MIDWEST 

MISC FASTENER/WASHERS FOR SHOP 
54. LAFONTAINE AUTOMOTIVE GROUP 

POLICE - UNIT 668 - REPAIR PARTS BODY CLIPS 
POLICE - UNIT #668 TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING SYSTEM 

TOTAL 

55. LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES 
MARCH 2024 INTERPRETATION SERVICES 

56. LANSING SANITARY SUPPLY INC 
MISC JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR PARKS 

Amount 

221.00 

252.66 

350.00 
350.00 

700.00 

7.65 

826.14 
608.86 

1,435.00 

764.50 

320.31 
86.96 

339.20 
246.34 

992.81 

620.00 

830.00 

2,172.50 

150.00 
150.00 

300.00 

1,188.00 

2,481.60 

30.00 

289.30 
71.37 

360.67 

824.66 

200.00 

167.56 

2,196.00 

384.78 

39.84 
110. 38 

150.22 

25.20 

1,558.45 

Check# 

111947 

111957 
111957 

111958 

111959 

111960 

111922 

111950 

111936 

111937 



05/02/2024 03:56 PM 
User: GRAHAM 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

DB: Meridian BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Vendor Name 

57. LANSING UNIFORM COMPANY 

Description 

SHORT - OFFICER UNIFORM ITEMS 
SHORT - OFFICER BOOTS 
JACKETS - CUMMINS, BROWN, IRELAND & STOCK NAME TAG 
COLEY, BERMAN, COLE - OFFICER UNIFORM ITEMS 
OFFICER UNIFORM ITEMS - REINKE 
HILLIARD - FIRE UNIFORM ITEMS 
STOCK - OFFICER UNIFORM ITEMS 
BOOTS - SPENCER 

TOTAL 

58. LARGE COMPANY INC 
REPAINTING OF CABINETS IN MUN BLDG 

59. LAW OFFICES OF PATRICK MCDONALD PC 
LEGAL REVIEW, DECISION AND AWARD 

60. LEAK PETROLEUM EQUIPMENT INC 
4/15/2024 - REPAIRS FOR HOIST 
4/18/2024 REPAIRS FOR HOIST 

61. LEXISNEXIS CLAIMS SOLUTIONS INC 

TOTAL 

3/2/24 TO 3/31/24 - SEARCH SERVICES 
2/1/24 TO 12/31/24 - IEYTEK ANNUAL MAINT POLICE EC 

TOTAL 

62. LOPEZ CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION 
2024 CONCRETE REPAIR CONTRACT 

63. MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO 
MAY 2024 LIFE/DISABILITY INSURANCE 

64. MAGGIE COLE 
3/24/24 TO 3/29/24 - MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 

65. MANER COSTERISAN & ELLIS PC 
CONTRACTED FINANCE/ACCOUNTING SERVICES PREPARATION 

66. MATT FOREMAN 

67. MEI TOTAL ELEVATOR SERVICES 

68. MERIDIAN GARDEN CLUB 

69. MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP RETAINAGE 

5/17/2024 - MARKETPLACE SONGWRITER SHOWCASE SOUND 

MI1767 - ELEVATOR MI27847 -TROUBLE CALL LABOR 
MI1767 - ELEVATOR MI27847 - TROUBLE SERVICE CALL R 
MI1767 - ELEVATOR MI27847 - SERVICE TROUBLE CALL R 
MI1767 - ELEVATOR MI27847 - SERVICE TROUBLE CALL R 

TOTAL 

2024 MERIDIAN GARDEN CLUB PLANTING EXPENSE 

LOPEZ CONCRETE - 2024 CONCRETE REPAIR CONTRACT 
70. MICHIGAN ASSOC OF MUNICIPAL CLERKS 

MEMBER EDUCATION DAY - SIMAR PAWAR 
71. MICHIGAN CAT 

UNIT #6 - BACKHOE RUBBER GROMMET 

72. MICHIGAN SEPTIC LLC 
4/17/24 - PUMP OUT PIT TOILETS@ HNC 

73. MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP ASSOCIATION 
RENEWABLE ENERGY SITING WEBINAR 

74. MID MICHIGAN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT 
UPFITTING PATROL VEHICLE - SLICKTOP 

75. MID-MICHIGAN ENVIRONMENTAL 
2024 GREEN GRANT - 50% 

76. MID-MICHIGAN LAND CONSERVANCY 
2024 GREEN GRANT - 50% 

77, MIDSTATES RECREATION LLC 
TABLES & CHAIRS - MARKETPLACE ON THE GREEN 

78. MIDWEST TREE SERVICE 
EEMERGENCY TREE CLEAN-UP - CIDER MILL DR 

79. MI-MAUI 
2024 MI-MAUI MEMBERHSIP ASSESSMENT 

80. MORRIES OKEMOS FORD 
UNIT #126 REAR WIPER BLADE ASSEMBLY 

Amount 

854.45 
219.95 
937.50 
189.90 
299.80 
149.90 

1,314.00 
219.95 

4,185.45 

17,023.00 

3,750.00 

315.12 
172. 75 

487.87 

200.00 
1,836.45 

2,036.45 

41,219.23 

3,809.61 

194.30 

8,660.70 

200.00 

376.00 
1,504.00 
2,068.00 

376.00 

4,324.00 

800.00 

4,579.91 

50.00 

57.82 

478.00 

25.00 

6,819.71 

1,375.00 

350.00 

11,272.00 

5,300.00 

3,495.21 

46.76 

Check# 

111938 
111938 
111938 
111938 
111938 
111938 
111938 
111938 

111928 

111929 

111939 

111940 

111941 

111961 

111942 



05/02/2024 03:56 PM 
User: GRAHAM 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

DB: Meridian BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Vendor Name 

81. MOST DEPENDABLE FOUNTAINS 

82. MTECH 

83. MY GREEN MICHIGAN LLC 

Description 

REPLACEMENT COLLAR DRINKING FOUNTAIN N, MOORE PARK 

STREET SWEEPER RADIATOR UNIT 649 

MAY 2024 COMPOST SERVICE 
84. NIELSEN COMMERCIAL CONSTUCTION CO 

CENTRAL PARK PAVILION RENOVATION PROJECT 
85. ON DEMAND MOSQUITO MAN INC 

8 6. O-SUN COMPANY 

2024 - ANNUAL WEED CONTROL & FERTILIZER - BUILDING 
2024 - ANNUAL WEED CONTROL & FERTILIZER - BUILDING 

TOTAL 

BLACK SILICON POLISH 
87. OUTDOOR LIVING INC 

CONTTRACTOR CANCELLED PERMIT 80% REFUND 
88. PALMER CONSTRUCTION 

CHAPEL ROOF REPLACEMENT - HISTORICAL VILLAGE 
89. PITNEY BOWES BANK INC RESERVE ACCT 

ACCT#247 088 51 TWP POSTAGE 
90. PRO-COMM INC 

MOTOROLA REPAIRS 
91. PROGRESSIVE AE 

PROF SERV THRU MAR 29 2024 - SENIOR CENTER CONCEPT 
92. PURITY CYLINDER GASES INC 

93. QUALITY TIRE INC 

94. RECLAIMED BY DESIGN 

95. REGAL EAGLE PHOTOGRAPHY 

96. RYAN BEAUDRY 

97. SCOTT HENDRICKSON 

98. SHAHEEN CHEVROLET INC 

99. SHILA KIANDER 

100 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS 

101 ST MARTHA CONFERENCE OF 

102 ST THOMAS AQUINAS PARISH 

103 STRYKER FLEX FINANCIAL 

ACCT 46504 - SHOP SUPPLY - TOOLS 

UNIT #77 TIRES 
FIRE - UNIT #691 - TIRES 
MOTOR POOL - TIRE DISPOAL FEE 
CREDIT DUPLICATE INVOICE PAID I-GS119864 
CREDIT DUPLICATE INV I-GS110471 SENT 2 INVOICES -

TOTAL 

2024 GREEN GRANT - 50% PINE CREEK CONDO ASSOC/RECL 
2ND QTR 2024 - RECYCLING CENTER OPERATIONS 

TOTAL 

POLICE DEPARTMENT COMPOSITE 

5/17/2024 - MARKETPLACE SONGWRITER SHOWCASE PERFOR 

REFUND FOR OVERPAYMENT ON FOIA-2024-39 

UNIT #663 - AIR CONDITIONER COMPRESSOR 

ASSESSING COURSE 

REPAIR PARTS FOR UNIT #79 

EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE - J THOMPSON 
EMERGENCY RENT ASSISTANCE - NEASON 
EMERENCY RENT ASSISTANCE - C SHAFFER 

TOTAL 

EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE - A KELLY 
N. BURUNATE - EMERGENCY RENT ASSISTANCE 
EMERGENCY RENT ASSISTANCE - T KEMP 

TOTAL 

1ST YR - 360 10-YEAR ANNUAL EQUIP CONTRACT ARPA 

Amount 

300.00 

5,676.20 

177.00 

114,537.63 

5,510.00 
895.00 

6,405.00 

48.54 

96.00 

16,580.00 

10,000.00 

11. 00 

6,439.41 

215.97 

246.90 
58.00 
78.00 

(632.32) 
(287.40) 

(536.82) 

500.00 
6,000.00 

6,500.00 

1,997.50 

200.00 

24.75 

330.52 

75.00 

212.44 

500.00 
500.00 
400.00 

1,400.00 

500.00 
500.00 
750.00 

1,750.00 

214,677.43 

Check# 

111923 

111924 
111948 

111943 



05/02/2024 03:56 PM 
User: GRAHAM 
DB: Meridian 

Vendor Name 

104 STRYKER MEDICIAL 

105 SUNBELT RENTALS, INC 

106 SUPREME SANITATION 

107 T MOBILE 

108 THE HARKNESS LAW FIRM PLLC 

109 ULINE 

110 UNIQUE INTERIORS 

111 VERIZON WIRELESS 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Description 

QUIK-COMBO ELECTRODES, FILTERLINE, PATIENT SIMULAT 
MEDICAL SUPPLIES - ELECTRODE ECG 
6-WIRE ECG CABLE COMB 
6-WIRE ECG CABLE COMB (2ND ORDER) 

TOTAL 

2024 - FLOOR SCRUBBER RENTAL 2X PER MO - MARKETPLA 
FINAL SEASON RENTAL - FLOOR SCRUBBER - MARKETPLACE 

TOTAL 

4/1/24 TO 4/30/2024 - TOWNER RD PARK - PORTABLE TO 
4/1/24 TO 4/30/2024 - N. MOORE PARK - PORTABLE TOI 
4/1/24 TO 4/30/2024 - HILLBROOK PARK - PORTABLE TO 
4/1/24 TO 4/30/2024 - BENNETT WOODS SCHOOL - PORTA 
4/1/24 TO 4/30/2024 - NEWTON ST - PORTABLE TOILET 
4/1/24 TO 4/30/2024 - EASTGATE PARK - PORTABLE TOI 

TOTAL 

3/21/24-4/20/24 - CELLULAR 517.980.0920 

APRIL 2024 PROSECUTING FEES 

DOG BAGS AND MISC 

PAINTING CADET ROOM/FRONT BATHROOMS PSB 

Amount 

2,037.18 
217.36 

53.20 
53.20 

2,360.94 

332.02 
332.02 

664.04 

90.00 
90.00 
90.00 
90.00 
90.00 
90.00 

540.00 

30.23 

MAR 24 - APR 23 2024 - WIRELESS MOBILE SERVICES 68 
112 WEST MICHIGAN INTERNATIONAL LLC 

6,671.39 

645.77 

1,725.00 

2,848.11 

UNIT #30 - DIAGNOSE/REPAIR ENGINE OIL LEAK 
113 WEST SHORE FIRE INC 

114 WINSLOW MOBILE HOME PARK 

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 

CASCADE FILL STATION REPAIR 
YVA VALVE REPAIR 

TOTAL 

EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE - L JACKSON 

201. 65 

583.24 
186.65 

769.89 

395.00 

669,218.80 

Check# 

11194 4 

111945 

111925 



05/02/2024 03:55 PM 
User: GRAHAM 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

DB: Meridian BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: PWHRZ - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Vendor Name 
Description 

1. CARL SCHLEGEL INC 
1063823 - CLASS II SAND 

2. CATHEY INDUSTRIAL SUPPLIES, CO 
WATER - PARTS FOR VACTOR 

3 . DERR! CK BOBB 
2024 CDL REIMBURSEMENT 

4. FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386 
CUSTOMER INSTALL PARTS - 1 1/2 Tl0 PIT 
WATER METER COUPLINGS 

TOTAL 

5. HAMILTON, THERESA 
OVERPMT UTILITY WATER/SEWER 

6. HAMMOND FARMS EAST 
MI STONE - 5 YARDS 

7. MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO 
MAY 2024 LIFE/DISABILITY INSURANCE 

8. MANER COSTERISAN & ELLIS PC 
CONTRACTED FINANCE/ACCOUNTING SERVICES PREPARATION 

9. MAULDON BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION LLC 

10. PEASLEY, SARAH 

11. VERIZON WIRELESS 

12. WESLEY, WILLIAM & LINDA 

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 

2023 TIMBERLANE WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT CONTRACT 
2023 TIMBERLANE WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT CONTRACT 

TOTAL 

OVERPMT ON WATER/SEWER BILLS 

MAR 24 - APR 23 2024 - WIRELESS MOBILE SERVICES 68 

OVERPMT ON FINAL WATER/SEWER 

Amount 

1,003.20 

49.99 

65.00 

245.05 
239.99 

485.04 

93.24 

200.00 

528.44 

3,464.30 

25,030.00 
41,525.00 

66,555.00 

287.00 

609.61 

276.00 

73,616.82 

Check# 

29661 

29662 

29659 

29660 



05/02/2024 03:55 PM 
User: GRAHAM 
DB: Meridian 

Vendor Name 

1. INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK 

2. INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER 

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 05/09/2024 - 05/09/2024 

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: TA - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK 

Description Amount 

TAX PAYOUT #2 FOR DDA.BRA.ICLB 09.15.23-02.29.24 1 

TAX PAYOUT #2 FOR ICLB BRA 09.15.23-02.29.24 WINTE 
3. MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP BROWNFIELD 

287.61 

43.06 

11,046.89 
42,664.72 

262,634.34 

4. MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP DDA 

5. STATE OF MICHIGAN 

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 

TAX PAYOUT #2 FOR DDA. BRA. ICLB 09.15.23-02.29.24 
TAX PAYOUT #2 FOR DDA. BRA. ICLB 09.15.23-02.29.24 
TAX PAYOUT #2 FOR DDA.BRA.ICLB 09.15.23-02.29.24 

TOTAL 

TAX PAYOUT #2 FOR DDA.BRA.ICLB 09.15.23-02.29.24 

TAX PAYOUT #2 ICLB TO SSA 09.15.23-02.29.24 10-376 
SOR - MI3392600-20240311-Sl2119421 - HOLLANDER 

TOTAL 

316,345.95 

39,360.23 

147.84 
30.00 

177.84 

356,214.69 

Check# 

13537 

13538 

13539 
13539 
13539 

13540 

13541 
13542 



Credit Card Transactions 4/11/2024 - 5/1/2024 
Transaction o.-te Transaction Merchant Name Transaction Amount Account Name 

4/1 2/2024 FERGUSON ENT, INC 934 $97.22 LAWRENCE BOBB 

4/1612024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $34.37 LAWRENCE BOBB 

4/11/2024 THE HOME DEPOT 2723. $242.32 ROBERT STACY 

4/11/2024 A & L LOCKSMITH $67.50 TYLER KENNELL 

4/19/2024 Tl-IE HOME DEPOT #2723 $4.38 TYLER KENNELL 

4/12/2024 DECALS.COM $45.25 MICHAEL HAMEL 

4/26/2024 ACTIVE911 INC $13.03 MICHAEL HAMEL 

4/17/2024 CATHEY CO $15.00 KYLE FOGG 

4/18/2024 (PC) 3986 ALL PHASE $99.78 KYLE FOGG 

4/16/2024 EAGLE ENGRAVING INC $187.95 RYAN CAMPBELL 

4/24/2024 GRAND TRAV RSRT FOOD/ $32.00 DEBORAH GUTHRIE 

4/26/2024 GRAND TRAV RESORT $608.60 DEBORAH GUTHRIE 

4/26/2024 GRAND TRAV RESORT $584.40 DEBORAH GUTHRIE 

4/26/2024 GRAND TRAV RESORT $605.48 DEBORAH GUTHRIE 

4/18/2024 (PC) 3986 ALL PHASE $99.78 JACOB FLANNERY 

4/17/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $13.98 ASHLEY WINSTEAD 

4/30/2024 JETS PIZZA - Ml-053 MOTO $45.93 JEFFREY ROMMECK 

4/11/2024 COSTCO WHSE#1277 $124.36 CHRISTOPHER JOHNSON 

4/11 /2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $43.59 CHRISTOPHER JOHNSON 

4/17/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $11.96 CHRISTOPHER JOHNSON 

4/29/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $21.52 CHR~TOPHERJOHNSON 

4/29/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $44.64 CHRISTOPHER JOHNSON 

4/12/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $47.96 ALDIAZ. 

4/18/2024 BEES SPORTS ($5.99) AL DIAZ 

4/18/2024 BEES SPORTS $199.49 Al DIAZ 

4/20/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $9.97 AL DIAZ 

4/19/2024 THE HOME DEPOT 2723 $466.20 THOMAS BAKER 

4/26/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $32.89 THOMAS BAKER 

4/16/2024 MEIJER #025 $109.57 MIKE DEVLIN 

4/23/2024 BUILDASIGN $56.35 MIKE DEVLIN 

4/28/2024 COSTCO WHSE#1277 $136.90 MIKE DEVLIN 

4/29/2024 METRO INSTITUTE INC $110,00 MIKE DEVLIN 

4/29/2024 EVENTS TO RENT INC $412.50 MIKE DEVLIN 

4/12/2024 STATE OF Ml EMS $25.00 BRIAN PENNELL 

4/22/2024 STATE OF Ml EMS $25.00 BRIAN PENNELL 

4/25/2024 STATE OF Ml EMS $25.00 BRlAN PENNELL 

4/1912024 PRO-TECH SECURITY SALES $356.00 CURT SQUIRES 

4/2512024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $39.97 CURT SQUIRES 

4/13/2024 EL BURRITO MEXICANO $400.00 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/12/2024 SQ *GLUTEN FREE ROX. $55.00 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/12/2024 SQ *TASTE OF THAI $170.00 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4112/2024 SQ *MMMACARONS $78.90 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4115/2024 STATE Ml OLEG LIQUOR LIC $50.00 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4115/2024 QUALITY DAIRY#31 $61 .10 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/15/2024 QUALITY DAIRY#31 $3.98 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/15/2024 OFFICEMAX/0FFICEDEPT#3379 $91 .13 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/18/2024 FORESIGHT GROUP LLC $127.00 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/20/2024 MARCOS PIZZA 1235 $124.24 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/19/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $102.40 COURTNEY WISJNSKI 

4i23/2024 4ALLPROMOS $165.00 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/25/2024 4ALL PROMOS $562.57 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/25/2024 IN *CHIEF CART, INC. $50.00 COURTNEY WISINSKI 

4/27/2024 DICK'S CLOTHING&SPORTING $159.84 COURTNEY WISINSKI 



4/17/2024 JACK DOHENY COMPANIES ($20.42) TODD FRANK 
4/22/2024 OUTSHINER GRAND RIVER $150.00 TODD FRANK 
4/22/2024 OUTSHINER GRAND RIVER $150.00 TODD FRANK 
4/24/2024 HASLETT TRUE VALUE HARDW $52.96 TODD FRANK 
4/26/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $74.94 TODD FRANK 
4/12/2024 COMPLETE BATTERY SOURCE $50.91 STEPHEN GEBES 
4/19/2024 ZOOM.US 888-799-9666 $449.85 STEPHEN GEBES 

4/26/2024 AMZN MKTP US*HS9W55503 $161.94 STEPHEN GEBES 
4/14/2024 LANSINGSTATE JOURNAL $14.99 RICHARD GRILLO 
4/13/2024 COSTCO WHSE#1277 $31.79 RICHARD GRILLO 
4/12/2024 ACEC OF MICHIGAN $103.50 YOUNES ISHRAIDI 
4/29/2024 CONST SW AND SESC PRD $95.00 YOUNES ISHRAIDI 
4/12/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $13.94 KEITH HEWITT 
4/15/2024 HAMMOND FARMS E LANSING $51.00 KEITH HEWITT 
4/15/2024 MIDWEST POWER EQUIPMENT $130.99 KEITH HEWITT 
4/18/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $2.34 KEITH HEWITT 
4/22/2024 COMPLETE BATTERY SOURCE $50.91 KEITH HEWITT 
4/11/2024 HEARST NEWSPAPERSMIDWEST $19.96 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/13/2024 AMZN MKTP US*4Q2PQ3UM3 $46.37 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/14/2024 DETROITNEWS.COM $14.99 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/16/2024 AMZN MKTP US*IK6AF0H63 $43.82 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/16/2024 AMZN MKTP US*627F71YP3 $218.70 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/15/2024 OGDEN NEWSPAPERS $20.00 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/17/2024 AMZN MKTP US*657YU8RB3 $44.99 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/17/2024 AMZN MKTP US*297XU80D3 $51.38 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/18/2024 FREEP.COM $14.99 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/18/2024 LANSINGSTATE JOURNAL $11.99 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/16/2024 GANNETT NEWSPRPR CN $9.99 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/19/2024 MICHIGAN TOWNSHIPS ASS ($365.00) MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/22/2024 STATE SIDE DELI $256.50 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/22/2024 AMZ*WSJBARRONSMW $2.00 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/23/2024 AMAZON.COM*L02YV0UH3 $92.54 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/29/2024 AMZN MKTP US*PX4NM7NU3 $41.98 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/29/2024 AMZN MKTP US*FQ4599VC3 $979.99 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/30/2024 STATE SIDE DELI $69.00 MICHELLE PRINZ 
4/14/2024 AMAZON.COM*M14CS41E3 $97.60 CATHERINE ADAMS 
4/15/2024 AMZN MKTP US*F01HC7A13 $405.40 CATHERINE ADAMS 
4/18/2024 TOP HAT CRICKET FARM INC $26.89 CATHERINE ADAMS 
4/21/2024 AMAZON.COM*GN2MM22R3 $36.95 CATHERINE ADAMS 
4/22/2024 SMARTSIGN $291.00 CATHERINE ADAMS 
4/17/2024 COVERT SCOUTING $32.99 ED BESONEN 
4/26/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $102.89 DAVID LESTER 
4/24/2024 COMCAST $167.65 BART CRANE 
4/24/2024 PSI - MCOLES $75.00 BART CRANE 
4/30/2024 PSI - MCOLES $75.00 BART CRANE 
4/15/2024 INGHAM CO 55TH JDCL CT $40.00 PHIL DESCHAINE 
4/18/2024 INGHAM CO 55TH JDCL CT $60.00 PHIL DESCHAINE 
4/18/2024 INGHAM CO 55TH JDCL CT $40.00 PHIL DESCHAINE 
4/18/2024 INGHAM CO 55TH JDCL CT $80.00 PHIL DESCHAINE 
4/18/2024 INGHAM CO 55TH JDCL CT $80.00 PHIL DESCHAINE 
4/18/2024 INGHAM CO 55TH JDCL CT $40.00 PHIL DESCHAINE 
4/26/2024 FAIRFIELD INN & SUITES $504.00 PHIL DESCHAINE 
4/17/2024 TITANHQ $300.00 DANIEL OPSOMMER 
4/15/2024 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $8.78 DANIEL OPSOMMER 
4/17/2024 BLACKBURN MANUFACTURING $577.00 DANIEL OPSOMMER 



4/17/2024 BLACKBURN MANUFACTURING $250.22 DANIEL OPSOMMER 

4/17/202A BLACKBURN MANUFACTURING $758.17 DANIEL OPSOMMER 

4/19/2024 AMZN MKTP US ($36.99) DANIEL OPSOMMER 

4/11/2024 NATIOAL ASSOCIATION OF $220.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/15/2024 FACEBK 5WAS83C8T2 $69.92 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/16/2024 ALLIESIARTO.COM $670.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/26/2024 FACEBK~7H9HC3LCJ2 $2.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/26/2024 FACEBK~ 8GE9J4GCJ2 $2.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/26/2024 FACEBK~ C7WH94CCJ2 $2.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/26/2024 FACEBK*GSP8F5UBJ2 $2.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/27/2024 FACEBK* 76TD54YBJ2 $3.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/27/2024 FACEBK* 6J3HL4GCJ2 $5.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/28/2024 FACEBK* UDJCQ38CJ2 $7.00 SAMANTHA DIEHL 

4/11/2024 MEIJER# 253 $18.05 ALLISON GOODMAN 

4/1 7/2024 PETSMART # 0724 ($38.14) ALLISON GOODMAN 

4/17/2024 PETSMART # 0724 $4 7 .97 ALLISON GOODMAN 

4/17/2024 MEIJER # 025 $63,03 ALLISON GOODMAN 

4/18/2024 PREUSS PETS $55.98 ALLISON GOODMAN 

4/26/2024 FEEDERS SUPPLY COMPANY #4 $130.97 ALLISON GOODMAN 

TOTAL $15,703.17 



ACH Transactions 

Date Payee Amount Purpose 

4/12/2024 Health Equity $ 1,648.18 Employee Health Savings 

4/15/2024 MCT Utilities $ 2,665.08 Water/Sewer 

4/17/2024 ELAN $ 28,481.29 Credit Card Payment 

4/18/2024 Consumers Energy $ 61,159.94 Utility Transaction Fees 

4/18/2024 MERS $ 463,523.15 Employee Retirement 

4/19/2024 Alerus $ 71,005.62 Payroll Deductions 04/19/2024 

4/19/2024 Nationwide $ 9,340.81 Payroll Deductions 04/19/2024 

4/19/2024 IRS $ 129,467.52 Payroll Taxes 04/19/2024 

4/19/2024 Various Financial Institutions $ 355,158.06 Direct Deposit 04/19/2024 

4/22/2024 MCT Utilities $ 369.06 Water/Sewer 

4/24/2024 Gallagher Benefit Services $ 3,250.00 Employee Health Insurance 

4/25/2024 Consumers Energy $ 4,435.15 Utility Transaction Fees 

4/30/2024 Wageworks $ 93.00 Employee Health Savings 

Total ACH Payments $ 1,130,596.86 



10.D 

To: Township Board 

From: Courtney Wisinski, Director of Parks and Recreation 

April 16, 2024 Date: 

Re: Meridian Pride Event Liquor License Application 

Meridian Township Parks and Recreation is requesting approval to apply for a one-day 
liquor license to sell beer at the 2024 Meridian Pride Event event scheduled for Saturday, August 
10, 2024. The license type is a Special License Application which is issued by the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC), under authority from the Michigan Department of 
Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA) . A certified copy of a resolution of the Township 
Board authorizing the license request must be included in the application to the State. 

For municipalities, the license fee for the "Special License" is $50. The license is good for one 
day, with sales restricted to 7:00 a.m. until 2:00 a.m., the following day. The Meridian Pride 
Event liquor sales will run from approximately 5:00 pm until 10:00 pm on August 10, 2024. The 
Meridian Township Parks and Recreation is prepared to provide a secure site with appropriate 
barriers as required per law, and monitor and restrict beer /wine sales from visibly intoxicated 
persons and minors. 

• MOTION TO APPROVE THE MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP PARKS AND RECREATION 
REQUEST TO APPLY FOR ONE-DAY LIQUOR LICENSE FROM THE MICHIGAN 
LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION (MLCC) FOR THE MERIDIAN PRIDE EVENT ON 
AUGUST 10, 2024. 

Attachment 
1. Resolution to approve Meridian Pride Event special license application 
2. Map of proposed Beer Garden for Meridian Pride Event 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming. sustainable, prime community 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 

..___ 



MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 
LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST 

2024 MERIDIAN PRIDE EVENT 

RESOLUTION 

At the regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 16th 
day of April at 6:00 p.m. local time. 

PRESENT: ________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: ________________________________________________________________ 

The following resolution was offered by ______________ and supported by ________________. 

WHEREAS, Meridian Township Parks and Recreation has requested Township Board 
approval to apply for a one-day liquor license to sell beer from the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission (MLCC) at the Meridian Pride Event scheduled for Saturday; August 10, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the Meridian Township Parks and Recreation will operate beer sales at 
Marketplace on the Green, 1995 Central Park Drive, in conformance with all applicable laws 
as established in the provisions of the one-day liquor license; and 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Pride Event is a community-wide event that will feature live 
music, food trucks, beer garden, games, educational vendors, and activities for families.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves of applying for a one-day liquor license from the MLCC 
for sale of beer and wine at the Meridian Pride Event on Saturday, August 10, 2024. 

ADOPTED: YEAS: _________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: _________________________________________________________ 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 



Township Board 
April 16, 2024 
RE: Resolution to Approve 
Liquor License Request Meridian Pride Event 
Page2 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a t rue and a complete copy of 
a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 16th day of April, 2024. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 



! 
g 

i 
~ 
:2 
~ 
~ 
..0 
.!! 
"' u, ..,. 
N 
0 

I 
! 

Marketplace on the Green Beer Garden 
1995 Central Park Drive 

PERIMETER = 789.51 FEET 

N Meridian Charter Township 
Ingha m County, Michigan 

1995 CENTRAL PARK DR 

DATE BY• COMMENTS• 
SHEET 

00/00/00 xx xx 

00/00/00 xx xx 

00/00/00 xx xx 1 
zL------------------------------------------------------------~ 2024 CELEBRATE MERIDIAN EVENT 02m/24 RS DRAFT 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
'{ 0 ~~~1' 
~ 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Courtney Wisinski 
Director of Parks and Recreation 

April 16, 2024 

2024 Meridian Pride Event Outdoor Gathering Permit Approval 

10.E 

The Meridian Township Parks and Recreation Department is the applicant for the Outdoor 
Gathering Permit Application for 2024 Meridian Pride Event scheduled for Saturday, August 
10, 2024 at Marketplace on the Green, 1995 Central Park Drive, Okemos. 

Meridian Pride Event is a community-wide event that will feature live music, food trucks, beer 
garden, games, educational vendors, and activities for families. 

Township Ordinance requires the regulation, licensing, and control of gatherings which 
draws upon the health, sanitation, fire, police, transportation, utility, and other public 
services normally provided by the Township. The ordinance enumerates specific public 
safety standards that must be set. Therefore, the application was forwarded to the Fire, 
Police, and Community Planning & Development Departments. 

The following motion is proposed for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE OUTDOOR ASSEMBLY LICENSE FOR THE 
2024 MERIDIAN PRIDE EVENT TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 10, 2024 AT 
MARKETPLACE ON THE GREEN. 

Attachments: 
1. Application for Outdoor Assembly License 
2. Map 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 



Charter Township of Meridian  
 

Application for Outdoor Assembly License 
 

I. Description of Applicant 
 

Name:  Meridian Township Parks and Recreation Department       
 
Age:  N/A 
 
Residence Address:  5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI  48864 
 
Mailing Address:  2100 Gaylord C. Smith Court, Haslett, MI  48840 
 
 If Applicant is a partnership or association, provide the above information for all 
partners, officers and directors, or other sponsors.  If Applicant is a corporation, file its 
Articles of Incorporation, together with the names and address of all officers, directors, 
and shareholders having a financial interest greater than Five Hundred ($500.00) dollars 
therein.  Attach separate sheets containing such information. 
 

II. The purpose and character of the proposed assembly is as follows: 
 
Meridian Pride Event is a community-wide event that will feature live music, food 
trucks, beer garden, games, educational vendors, and activities for families.  

 
III. The proposed assembly is to be conducted at (address): 

 
1995 Central Park Drive, Okemos 

 
The legal description of the premises is: 
 
Marketplace on the Green 
 
The premises are owned by Applicant. 
 
If the premises are not owned by Applicant, attach an affidavit from the owner indicating 
his consent to use the site for the proposed assembly. 
 

IV. The dates and hours during which the proposed assembly is to be conducted are 
as follows: 

 
Saturday, August 10, 2024 
(4:00 pm – 12:00 am, including setup and cleanup) 
 

V. Applicant estimates that the maximum number of persons expected at the 
assembly for each day it is conducted is:   
 
2,000  
 

VI. Applicant hereby agrees to observe and obey the minimum requirements 
contained in Chapter 65 of the Township Code of Ordinances, except that 
applicant requests that the Township Board grant a waiver of the following 
provisions:   



Application for Outdoor Assembly License  Page2 
 

Section 65-9 Provision c: waive application fee 
 

The reasons in support of the requested waiver are as follows: 
 
This is a government operated community-wide celebration. 
 

VII. Attach a detailed explanation, including drawings and diagrams where applicable, 
of Applicant’s plans to provide for the following: 

 
1. Police and fire protection; 
2. Food and water supply and facilities  
3. Health and sanitation facilities  
4. Medical facilities and services, including emergency vehicles and equipment  
5. Vehicle access and parking facilities; 
6. Camping and trailer facilities; 
7. Illumination facilities; 
8. Communication facilities; 
9. Noise control and abatement; 
10. Facilities for clean-up and waste disposal; 
11. Insurance and bonding arrangement. 
 

In addition, attach a detailed map or maps of the overall site of the proposed assembly. 
 
Date:   April 16, 2024     ______________________________________ 
        Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
Received by Township Clerk’s Office: 
 
By: __________________________  Date:  ___________________________ 
 
Please submit five (5) copies of this Application and its attachments.  Copies shall be forwarded 
to the Township Police Chief, Fire Chief, Manager and the Ingham County Health Department, 
for their review, investigation and findings and recommendations, within twenty (20) day of 
the date this Application if filed. 

 



! 
g 

i 
~ 
:2 
~ 
~ 
..0 
.!! 
"' u, ..,. 
N 
0 

I 
! 

Marketplace on the Green Beer Garden 
1995 Central Park Drive 

PERIMETER = 789.51 FEET 

N Meridian Charter Township 
Ingha m County, Michigan 

1995 CENTRAL PARK DR 

DATE BY• COMMENTS• 
SHEET 

00/00/00 xx xx 

00/00/00 xx xx 

00/00/00 xx xx 1 
zL------------------------------------------------------------~ 2024 CELEBRATE MERIDIAN EVENT 02m/24 RS DRAFT 



To: Meridian Township Board Members 

From: Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director Amber Clark 

Date: May 9, 2024 

RE: Pins and Pints Outdoor Assembly Permit  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Pins and Pints, formerly known as City Limits East Lansing, is a bowling alley in Meridian 
Township at 2120 Saginaw Highway. A local family has recently purchased the property to 
breathe new life and activity into the highly sought-after location. Pins and Pints team has a 
great reputation in the management of their current properties in the Greater Lansing 
Region. Since August of 2023, the Pins and Pints team has been in several discussions with 
Planning and Economic Development staff to make a significant investment in the 
community with this establishment and have included their entire family in the business 
venture.  

To amplify their new enterprise, engage with the community, and provide entertainment for 
Meridian Township, Pins and Pints is formally requesting the authorization and approval 
from the Township Board for a Special Event Liquor License to host 8 live outdoor car 
shows at the Pins and Pints location.  

Event Dates are: 

Saturday June 22 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday July 20  3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 3  3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 10 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 17 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 31 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

September 7   3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

September 21 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

10. F



 

  

 

   
 

Event Details: Saturdays starting in June from 3:30 – 6:00 p the Pins and Pints will host a 
car show, social drinking area, and live bands during the summer months. They hope to 
utilize this time to engage with new markets, promote their leagues and open bowling 
opportunities. Pins and Pints expect no more than 40 cars with 1-2 people per car. The 
anticipation is for 80-100 visitors at each event. Though 100 visitors are not a trigger for an 
outdoor assembly permit, their request for a Special Liquor license permit required the 
need to review the outdoor assembly process. After an in-person meeting with Pins and 
Pints, the Police Department, Fire department, Community Planning, and Building 
Department have all seen the proposed plans and have no concerns with the event. The 
application also includes consent from New Hope Church, a house of worship with in 500 
feet of the event facility. 

The action for the board today is to consent to the request of Pins and Pints to hold Car 
Shows at 2120 Saginaw Highway, starting on Saturdays in June from 3:30 pm – 6:00 pm 
until September 21, 2024.  

Motion: Move to approve the outdoor assembly for Pins and Pints on Saturdays beginning 
in June through September 2024 as indicated on the event application  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



To: Meridian Township Board Members 

From: Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director Amber Clark 

Date: May 9, 2024 

RE: Pins and Pints Special Liquor License Permit Request  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Township Board authorized a moratorium on all Class C on-premises liquor licenses in 
January of 2024 to allow staff an opportunity to update the Liquor License ordinance. That 
moratorium applies to on-premises consumption requests for liquor licenses and does not 
apply to license requests that will not count against the Townships quota.  

Pins and Pints, formerly known as City Limits East Lansing, is a bowling alley in Meridian 
Township at 2120 Saginaw Highway. A local family has recently purchased the property to 
breathe new life and activity into the highly sought-after location. Pins and Pints is looking 
to make a significant investment in the community with this establishment and they have 
included their entire family in the business venture.  

To amplify their new enterprise, engage with the community, and provide entertainment for 
Meridian Township, Pins and Pints is formally requesting the authorization and approval 
from the Township Board for a Special Event Liquor License to host 8 live outdoor car 
shows at the Pins and Pints location.  

Event Dates are: 

Saturday June 22 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday July 20  3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 3  3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 10 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 17 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Saturday Aug 31 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

September 7   3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

September 21 3:30 pm – 6: 00 pm 

Event Details: Saturdays starting in June from 3:30 – 6:00 p the Pins and Pints will host a 
car show, social drinking area, and live bands during the summer months. They hope to 
utilize this time to engage with new markets, promote their leagues and open bowling 

10. G
~ 

MERIDIAN A 
\[ 0 "':~ S ':!.~ 1i 
~ 



opportunities. Pins and Pints expect no more than 40 cars with 1-2 people per car. The 
anticipation is for 80-100 visitors at each event. Though 100 visitors are not a trigger for an 
outdoor assembly permit, their request for a Special Liquor license permit required the 
need to review the outdoor assembly process. After an in-person meeting with Pins and 
Pints, the Police Department, Fire department, Community Planning, and Building 
Department have all seen the proposed plans and have no concerns with the event. The 
application also includes consent from New Hope Church, a house of worship withing 500 
feet of the event facility. 

The action for the board today is to consent to the attached resolution created by the State 
of Michigan authorizing the Special Liquor License at Pins and Pints for the above dates.  

Motion: Move to adopt the certified resolution of the Meridian Township Board, authorizing 
Pins and Pints the Application for Special License to serve alcohol on the specified event 
dates of the application. 

Motion: Move to approve the outdoor assembly for Pins and Pints on Saturdays beginning 
in June through September 2024 as indicated on the event application  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) 

Business ID: 

Request ID: Constitution Hall - 525 W. Allegan, Lansing, Ml 48933 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 30005, Lansing, Ml 48909 
Toll-Free: 866-813-0011 - www.roichlgan.gov/lcc {For MLCC lJse Only) 

Certified Resolution of the Membership or Board of Directors Authorizing the Appllcatlon for Special License 

(Required under Administrative Rule R 436.576 - Not Required for Candidate Committee) 

Ata O Regular O Special meeting of the D Membership □ Board of Directors 

called to order by on at 

(Date) 

the following resolution was offered: 

Moved by and supported by 

that the application from 

(Name of Organization) 

for a Special License to serve alcohol on 

(Event bate or Dates) 

to be located at 

(Physical Address· Include Location Name, St(eet Address, City, State, & Zip code) 

It is the consensus of this body that the application be for issuance. 

(Recommended or Not Recommended) 

Approval Vote TaHy 

Yeas: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

Certification by Authorized Officer of Organization: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Is true and is a complete copy of the resolution offered and adopted by the 

D Membership D Board of Directors at a D Regular O Spetial meeting held on 

!Date) 

Print Name & lltle of Authorized Officer Signature of Authorized Officer Date 

LCvl 10 (OM.ll lMA Is oh oqu1I opportunity •mploy01/pr09,am. MJ•IIOIJI 11d1, """1<•• •nd olhor rca,on1ble 1«on1mod1ijon, "" •••lleble upon rtqutSI to lndlllldual1 with dl<.1bllltl• s. P.oge 6 olB 



I. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

Applicalion l'or Outdoor Assembly License 

If Applicant isa partnership orassociation, provide the above information fora/I partners, 
offkers and directors, or other sponsors. If Applicant is a corporation, }lie its Articles of 
lncorpomtion, together with the names and address of nil officers, directors, and 
shareholders having a Jinancial interest greater than Five Hundred ($500.00) dollars 
therein. Attach separate sheets containing such information. 

l 

II. The purpose and _chara~ter of the proposed as~embly i~ as follows· ,ti( ourr ::,i.'. is ~ 0YJ~ \ 
<.'l.l~"tOV'-"~'> 1'l t:l,I( t,\.IJ1,Je5r ,(1,1ri,-1_', -t~, ~·u., .... , ... ·r 1;,!,ie,11 1~t. ~oc-., J,,,5 re,'1/J'tf ;~' slu,--1, we t,.10~11.~ lilt<. 
-to ~\4\Jl O,l ( '>~<ltu~ j,J rt,~ f llil ~i,u• )ct j.,j ,'j{A so l\111'. I ,·w /1AWS(C. 

111. The proposed assembl is to ~e conducted at (address); J I.JO (:. )<./a'/~rti.,.} 

f ;\) ftit f.t1 k..i · /ut of P 1•ll} •1 p,;..f-s ( 
The legal description ofthe premiies is: ~e-t!. qlf-ati,tl) ~{ /ltt lrJ-cJJ d1scv1pttt.. 

PtAAL~ :If 33 • od • o J -04 ... ;;,c \ - oo~ 
IV. The dates and hours during which the proposed assembiy is to b.e conducted<. 

are as follows: 1 r~v- - is pJ'\.i Oi.J (l1 f,,}1,1 .. Jq~ t,f-h,vterJ Ju,J e /'t!- •t fJux z t.f t_ z O i '1 
f:(C~p+_ .:,~\.f'~-G~. c.J~ 1,4ad I c~pec+ ~ rlo (1 JLL()L~~. ~1.1-t c)111,,rf kiJi.... ·[ti.- io/4ct l°lQtt~ y,~t. 
~l J r.1 1.I.., I pjq,1 JS -hi cki '].. s~1ll~i, q t1,,,c,•Jf~ 1:J 'i.1,,it 'S11t l7~ ~w,t. 

V. AppHcant est1mal:es that the maxnnum numbet of pers"bns expected at _the 
assembly for each day_ it is con~ucted is: Jo +. l>C Lev-.. ,,-.; 1-'tt Car 5 hoc.u it fXfr,<./ul 

4', J~!ft, ~ to L.f peu,·lt! 1 '1 ~,.,I,.. i~ tf,io;r1 a,n· i...t4I& w_ 6!fec-kJ. Hof f~IIJ 100 \J IJ110Y 

~.,-a\A \ ~\ DI.J -ti,~ ~ t10 Ii</ ~ I ,v ~C/lJ , 
VI. Applicant h~rM:iy agrees to observe and obey the minimum requirements 

contained in Chapter 38 of the Township Code of Ordinances, except that 
applicant requests that the Township Board grant a waiver of the following 
provisions: 

VII. Detailed explanation (if applicable), including drawings and 
diagrams where applicable, of Applicant's plans to provide for the 

following: 5ft q flo\,~8e,~ 



2 

Police and fire protection: ~6~ ~xprch" 5 fJ M{J.~ OMJ/i\irl '5 i.) tlwi th.OJ-. /,fCfl vv1J (<Jlf l( QfJ- . 

Food & water supply and facil ities: BIA, (~o's rr) +q I.A. ( CV-. -r ~ rktf 

Health &sanitation facilities: PX~ 1"rit\ r~~) Q\;!-tS/~& I hJ-- k,(}.,1/J;,,JJ f.iCll✓ l1 eS 
i-n // Lt "~i , I q§u. 

Medical facilities and :ervices incl uding emergency vehicles and equipment: &Jt liqu~ q,,J 4bl) 
ML J1. O~ 11ft f 5~v'1e 5~~f ~r ~t'<!JJ ¼,iJe.JJ M cP~ .. tJu1~ cvV{//ctft 

Ve~fc°~ atc:?d a~arking facil ities; S"et al1ctt.,ll rtJ J 

Campingand trailerfacilitic$: JJ/f!. 

Illumination faci li ties: IJ / A 

Recei ved by Township Clerk's Office: 

Name and Title Date Received 



Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) 

Business ID: 

Request ID: Constitution Hall - 525 W. Allegan, Lansing, Ml 48933 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 30005, Lansing, Ml 48909 
Toll-Free: 866-813-0011 - www.mlchlgan.gov/lcc (For MLCC Use Only) 

Special License Application 
A completed Special LJcense appllcatlon must be submlttad as early as possible before your event(sl to ii void any delays In processing. J1l! 

strongly r«comm,nded that you submit the 11pplinJlqn u ~!!!lll iU.Y9.!Um2w.tht d~ygur eyentlsl. Fallure t.o submit a completed appllcatlon at 
leart ten (10) busln11ss days prior to the event(s) may result In no Special License being issued, pursu11nt to administrative rule R 436.57S. 

Part 1 - Applicant Organization Information 

Applicant organization name: ·;nJo ft<1spi"f t1 1-,+~ , LiC 
Applicant address: 9~, f ~ GrCMAJ e;11vr 
City: f. . !ArJS 1~~ \ I Zlp Code: LJ 8 8' J ·3> 
Contact name: rt,1~tt H~~~,-) Phone: ~17 --35-1-01(;5 Email: j#Jf'o e ~r1 (ef\l t~ Is .. (Ovit 

Alternate g,iqro Hv\'r\a) Phone: 511 • 35 / - l)1G 5 Email: i.vte e ~r,re~~b. (OM contact name; 

1. Has the applicant organization previously received a Special License? rves eNo Leave Blank · MLCC Use Only 

Michigan orgon/wr/ons m11st provide currenr ortlcfes of incorporation filed w/111 Michigan Corporations Division. 

Out-of-srote orgonlzorions must provide: (o) currenr articles of Incorporation from note of Issuance; (b) current 
certlflcore of good standing from state of lncorporot/on: and (c) currentCertlficare of Authority to Transact Business in 
Michigan Issued by the Michigan Corporations Division. 

2. Has the applicant organization been established for one (1) year or longer? (' Yes .No 

Date the applicant organization was established (month/day/year}: 6/JJ/'J. 3 
3. Is the applicant organization a municipality? r Yes . No 

Part 2 • Event Information - For requests at more than one location, submit separate forms for each location. 

Address of event location: ~\ ·"Jo f 5q,i,~f.\w(~1~of. f\1·76) P,:-:i5 .i ,p,·cv+s 

Oty, township, or village where event will be held: f. [aMs i ,v A jcounty: ~(lW4vi, 

1. WIii you subndt your completed application at least ten (1'11) business days before your event? eves (' No 
It is 1tr9.~9.lr_ C.f~mmr.aded rtuu r.oH !Hl!.mit [hg P.P~ li!81l /m81i!i'. the llR.te of )lOY.r ~veat(sl. 

2. Do you have permission ftom the property owner of the location listed above to hold your event(s) on eves (' No 
the date(s) listed below (see pages 2-3) at this locat ion? 

3. Has the local law enforcement agency with primary jurisdiction over the event location approved this 
(' Yes (' No 

application for a Special License? (See Part 5 on Page 5) 

4. Is the event location within 500 feet of a church or school? 
• Yes (' No 

If Yes, the church or school must consent to the event(s). (See Part 6 on Page 5) 

5. Is the event location outdoors or partially outdoors? eves (" No 

If Yes, list the exact dimensions of the outdoor area: 

I a'=n 1 I feet X I J t.j S- ' I feet= I ,5(.pl gyoj square feet Submit a dear diagram of the outdoor service area 
with your application form. Wldtt, Length 

Discrlbe ty~e and h~ ht of tte f;>f.1rrier that will be used ~o enclose thi utdoorfrea: /t' l,J . i J. ··t -tvtiJt 
/\ii! '1/ .st '1_ eS WI 4 I~~ Of"aMR t(l\)C 1,Js ~{'01,\;<, tv'l¼i evtett. u\l\J . (l e j<! Ii 

ffttec-. i-Jl" II MVl i~rlCi\[fO' (Gt,1S f}tttktJ "~ "' h<ur,·tl) 111 P(Ne,J-f Ct.VI S' -et,,-f~u,J) evetJf ll(M, . 
6. Describe type of security that will be used for event(s) and how It will be utilized to secure and monitor to prevent sales to minors 

and visibly intoxicated persons·ttd ~ ~-J ,ti it ( • ti l /;e I &~ r ~ {,)e. ~\)~ . t~MeJ'\',S • • (CUl/1 { tJ"I l € C(;\~l\,- (.(j a t,,.1 1 C'~d tlllrt,q 'fU.f, Sil 

~w, 1,.>j1~Q. a,r r\,{~ka)~ -rfAr&'W:,~ ov.r J<IVti15. ,1Jlo5f of aw ~er~~ s ~ IML'tM°-f 1144~ li4'£ 

~lt,J lt,t TTl:'~ c{t;,J>. 5en1PJ,s- -t M/Mll" ~~ to be {\'laY1 1tc n~s -;l,it lVJM- • 
lCC·11 010h2JI lAAA Is •n c,qu.l 011po11unlty e,nploye,/P<011r•m. AUxlll•,y•lds, serv""'5 ilntl olher ,..•,on•blo •«ommodotlons 1r .. v•lloble upon request to lndMduolJwlth dl,abllhlel Page 1 of8 



7. Is the event location situated In or on state owned land, such as a state park or National Guard armory? ('Yes (i' No 

If Yes. attach a copy of your documentary proof of approval to use the state owned land. 

8. Is there an existing liquor licensee issued at the event location, such as a Class C or Club license? (i Yes (' No 

If Yes. the existing licensee must request to place its license in escrow during the event(s). (See Part 7 on Page 5) 

9. WIii the event(s) Involve an auction of donated wine? c Yes (i No 

If Yes, please check 'Wine Auction" for the applicable event date(s) on pages 2·3, Only donated wine may be auctioned under a Special License; b~r and spirits 
cannot be auctioned. If you re9uest a Special Llcens11 for on-premises consumption~ for a Wine Auction both on the same date at the same location, you are 
requesting tvi-o (2) separate licenses and you rnust pay a license fee for both licenses. 

10. Will marijuana be sold and consumed under a Temporary Marlhuana Event License issued by the Cannabis ('Yes (i No 
Regulatory Agency (CRA) within the proposed event area where alcoholic liquor will be sold and consumed? 

11. Is the event location Within the commons area of a Socia I District? (' Yes (i' No 

If Yes, you must obtain written documentation ftom the local governmental unit, Including a clear diagram, that delineates t he part of the commons 
area of the Social District to be used exclusively for your event and the part to be used exclusively by the Social District permit tees during the time 
period for your event pursuant to M,~ !ll6,JSSJ m. Submit the documentation and the diagram with this application. 

12. The applicant organization may request up to twelve (12) Special Licenses total (one Special License per day) In a calendar year. Please 
complete the Information below for each ind!yldual date for whlch you are requesting a Special License at this location. If vou are 
requesting Special Licenses for consecutive days. completely fill out a separate box for each date. If you request a Special License for 
on-premises consumption AND for a Wine Audlon both on the s.ime date at the same location, you are requesting two (2) separate 
licenses and you must pay a license fee for both licenses. 

June 22, 2024 De.scribe event being held: Car Show with a band playing from 3:30 to 6:30 

Date , 
2:00pm 8:00pm Special License will be used for: D Beer & Wine Service 0 Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time End Time Is this date a Sunday? (' Yes (i' No If Ye5, wlll alcol!ol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? (' Yes (' No 

Jul 20,2024 Describe event being held: Car show with a band playing for 2 to 3 hours in that time frame. 

Date 
2 

2:00pm 8:00pm Special License will be used for: D Beer&. Wine Service D Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

StartT!me end Tlme Is this date a Sunday? ("' Yes (i' No If Yes. will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon 7 (' Yes c No 

Aug 3, 2024 Describe event being held: Car show with a band playing for 2 to 3 hours in that time frame. 

Date 
3 

2:00pm 8:00pm Special License will be used for: D Beer & Wine Service D Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time End Time Is this date a Sunday? (' Yes (i' No If Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? (' Yes (' No 

Aug 10, 2024 Describe event being held: Car show with a band playing for 2 to 3 hours in that time frame. 

Date 
4 

2:00pm 8:00pm Special License will be used for. O Beer & Wine Service D Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

SrartTlme end Tlme Is this date a Sunday? ('Yes Ci' No If Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? (' Yes (' No 

Aug 17, 2024 Describe event being held: Car show with a band playing for 2 to 3 hours In that time frame. 

Date 
5 

2:00pm 8:00pm Special License will be used for. D Beer & Wine Service D Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start nme End Time Is this date a Sunday? cYes (i' No If Yes, wfll l!lcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? ('Yes c No 

Aug 31, 2024 Describe event being held: Car show with a band playing for 2 to 3 hours In that time frame. 

Date 
6 

2:00pm 8:00pm Special License will be used for: D Beer & Wine Service D Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time EndTlme ls this dale a Sunday? ('Yes @ No if Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? ('Yes c No 
LCC· 110 (01-:!3) LARA b .an cqu~I opportunity 1mplaytr/prc,gr1m, Aux.ma,y aid!, service, .t1nd mher r~~,-or,oblt. 1ccommod1t!on.s. i>re~v~U1blc upo,i r~utst to lnd .. lduals ~llh dis:1bllltre,.. Pog, 2 ofl 



12. Special license date information Continued from Page 2. 

Sep 7, 2024 Demlbe event being held: Car show with a band playing for 2 to 3 hours In that time frame. 

Date 
7 

2:00pm 8:00pm Special License will be used for: D Beer & Wine Service O Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time End Time Is this date a Sunday? ('Yes (i No If Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? ("' Yes (' No 

Sep 21, 2024 Dmrlbe event being held: Car show with a band playing for 2 to 3 hours in that time frame. 

Date 
8 

2:00pm a:oopm Special License will be used for: D Beer & Wine Service D Beer, Wlne, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time End Time Is this date a Sunday? ('Yes (i No If Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? (' Yes (' No 
lCG- llO IOH l l 

Describe event being held: 

Date 
9 

Special License will be used for: D Beer & Wine Service O Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time End Time Is this date a Sunday? ("'Yes (' No ff Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? (' Yes r No 

Describe event being held: 
. 

Date 
10 

Special License will be used for. D Beer & Wine Service O Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time End TI me Is this date a Sunday? ('Yes C' No· If Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? (' Yes (' No 

Describe event being held: 

Date 
11 

Special License will be used for: 0 Beer & Wine Service 0 Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service 0 Wine Auction 

Start Time End Time Is this date a Sunday? ('Yes (' No If Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? ('Yes (' No 

Describe event being held; 

Date 
12 

Special License will be used for. O Beer & Wlne Service 0 Beer, Wine, & Spirit Service D Wine Auction 

Start Time End TI me Is this date a Sunday? ('Yes (' No If Yes, will alcohol be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon? (' Yes r No 

A completed Special License application must be submitted as early as possible before your event(s) to avoid any delays In processing. llit 
i ll!!D91lr'. C!m1mm!:mltd tb!.lt Wll U!l!mit tbt !1Rlllk1tl!m iii l !!!!D ill lr'.!:UI IID!!W tW At-e_of lr'.Ol!t ~ll~mtW, Failure to submit a completed appllcatlon at 

leastten (10) business days prior to the evenl(sl may result In no Special License being Issued, pursuant to administra tive rule R 436.57S. 

Part 3 - Special license Fees • Complete the Special License fee ca!culatlon on Page 4 

For Organizations established less than one yur or are munlcipalltles - a $50,00 Speclal License base fee for each separate, consecutive day 
of the event is required. If the event is held on a Sunday and spirits will be served after 12:00 Noon, an additional $7.50 Sunday Sales Permit (P.M.) 
fee fs required. In addition, if any alcoholic beverages, including beer, wine, and spirits, will be seNed between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon, an 
additional $160.00 Sunday Sales Permit (A.M.) fee Is required. Sunday Sales Per111lt (A.M.) and/or Sunday Sales Permit (P.M.) fees will be required 
for each date that Is a Sunday. If you request a Special License for on-premises consumption AND for a Wine Auction both on the same 
date at the same location, you are requesting two (2) separate licenses and you must pay a llcense fee for both licenses. 

For Organizations established one year or more• a $25.00 Speclal License base fee for each separate, consecutive day of the event Is required. 
If the event is held on a Sunday and spirits wlll be served after 12:00 Noon, an additional $3.75 Sunday Sales Permit (P.M.) fee Is required. In 
addition, If any alcoholic beverages, Including beer, wine, and spirits, wlll be served between 7:00AM and 12:00 Noon, an additlonal $160.00 
Sunday Sales Permit (A.M.) fee Is required. Sunday Sales Permit (A.M.) and/or Sunday Sales Permit (P.M.) fees will be required for each date that 
is a Sunday, If you request a Special License for on-premises consumption AND for a Wine Auction both on the same date at the same 
location, you are requesting two 12) separate licenses and you must pay a license fee for both licenses. 

The fees must be paid by check, bank or postal money order, or by credit card, using the attached Credit Card Authorization Form (LCC-300). 
Checks and money orders should be made payable to State of Michigan. 
l CC•l10(0l·2JI LAR" fJ ,n equal opportunity employer/pr~r1m. AuxlUil')' aid, , H rvlus and othnr rl!!'uon1ble acc.ommodatJoru ue available upon re.q ui!"\~ to lndl\lidU41S W1th dliat,flll l ts. 



Part 3 Continued - Special License Fees Calculation 

Special License Base Fee: 
If you request a Special Leave Blank· MLCC Use Only 

(~r S~c/al L/ctnse ~uesred/ License for on-premises 
consumption AND for a 

x Number of Special Licenses: Wine Audlon both on 
the same date at the 

= Special License Fees: same location, you are 
MLCC fu Code:4008 requesting two (2) 

+ Sunday Sales Perm it (P.M .) Fees: 
separate licenses and 
you must pay a license 

MLCC Ftt Code: 4031 
fee for both licenses. 

+ Sunday Sales Permit (A.M .) Fee: 
MLCCFttCode:4033 

Make checks payable to: 
= TOTAL FEES DUE: State of Michigan 

Part 4 • Signatures of Applicant Organization's Officers, Witnesses, and Notary 
Pursuant to admlnlstratfve rule R 436.575, the president and secretary of the organization making application shall sign the application and the signatures shall 
be notarized. Po/It/cal candidates only need to sign the president section and have It notarized. 

By signing below the applicant organization's officers attest that: 
We certify that all profits from the sale of beer, wine and/or spirits or from a wine auction will go to the applicant organi2ation and not to any individual. 
We fu rther certify that any license Issued by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission is a contract subject to suspension or revocation by the 
Commission, that there shall be no liability on the part of the State of Michigan, the Commission, or any of Its officers or employees by reason of such 
suspension or revocation, and that the granting of the license does not create a vested right. 

Under administrative rule R 436.1003, the licensee shall comply with all state and local building, plumbing, zoning, sanitation, and health laws, rules, and 
ordinances as determined by the state and local law enforcements officials who have Jurisdiction over the licensee. Approval of this applicat ion by the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission does not waive any of these requirements. The licensee must obt.!ln all other required state and local licenses, 
permits, and approvals for this business before using this license for the sale of alcoholic liquor on the licensed premises. 

We certify that the Information contained In this form Is true and accurate to the best of our knowledge and belief. We agree to comply with all 
requirements of the Michigan Liquor Control Code and Administrative Rules, We also understand that providing false or fraudulent Information Is a 
violation of the Liquor Control Code pursuant to MCL 436.2003. 

A completed Special License application must be submitted as early as possible before your event(s) to avoid any delays In processing . .l!.l! 
strongly r,c2ro!l!!!JI.J!tsi ~l :.:QM 1ubmit mi •Rplkatlon as soon at y w f e s . Failure to submit a completed application .it 

least ten (10) business days prior to the event(s) may result In no Spedal License b I Issued, pursuant to administrative rule R 436.57S, 

'f Z6, Zf 
Date 

/Vt ~/••1(;, t,.,J,/ JO(V1 l- 1 N > o ,..J 
Print Name of Notary 

Notary Public, State of Michigan, County of I N 1:-1-1 

My commission expires 

NOTA 

/VI~,.,• 1,.,,1.) 70f\tl (...I (v )* -..J 

Print Name of Notary 

Notary Public, State of Michigan, County of / Iv(..~ ,'1 ,.._..._ 

My commission expires 

LCC• 110 (Ol· llJ LARA I• an ,qt.1(11 opportunity "'1pl~/prog•~m. ~w<Jll•,y .lldJ, 1crv1ce~ J.\.a~J@U~allisl~Jii.,~~N,1, wit~ dlsoblli!le~ 

COUNTY OF INGHAM 
My Comm1sa1on Expires April 25, 2025 
Act,nA it1 the County of / N l.r+:l8 t\..-. 

Date 

' Date 

Page◄ of8 



Part S • Loe.al Law Enforcitment Approval• 
The local law enforcement agency with primary jurisdiction over the event location must complete this section. 

Name of law enforcement agency; 

Name & title of reviewing officer: 

Phone number of officer. I Email of officer: 

If event will be held on a Sunday, ls the sale of alcohol from 7:00am to 12:00 Noon on Sunday allowed In this local governmental unit? ('Yes ('No 

If the event will be held on a SUrlday, Is the sale of alcohol after 12:00 Noon on Sunday allowed In this local governmental unit? ('Yes ("' No 

I certify that I have reviewed the application of the applluint 
organlution for a SpKJal Llcens. and approve the luuance of a 
Spedal License by the Michigan Uquor Control Commission at 
Ifie proposed event location. Signature of Reviewing Officer Date 

Part 6 • Church/School Consent (If Appllcaible)• 
If the event location ls loc.ated within 500 feet of a church or school, the applicant organization mu.st obtain the consent of the church or school. A 
church or school within S00 feet of the event location may object based on such the sale of alcohol at the focatlon adversely affecting the church or 
sct,ool's operations. If a proper objection is fifed, the Commission shall hold a hearing to determine whether the granting of the application will 
adversely affect the operation of the church or school. 

Name of church or school: 

Address of church or school: 

City: E. ~ >IN 

Phone numbe &17} J 31 .,.. 9 0(1 (> 

Name of clergy member or superintendent 

I, the authorized representative _of the above n1med d1urch or 
sc:hooL mite that the dlurch or iC:hool has no objecdon to the 
Issuance of a Special Ucense to the appllc.ant organiudon at lb 
proposed event loCA1tlon. -~.,-f---:f-tt:::-:+----:-:--,---::----:---:--:--

*Please note: the Commission has the sol!! and only r, 

Part 7 • Ex'5tlng On-Premises Licensee Escrow Request (If Applicable) 
rt the event location is currently licensed with an on-premises license, the licensee must request that its license be placed into escrow 
for the date(s) and time(s) of the Special Lfcenses issued for use at the event location requested on this application. If the existing 
license would prefer to temporarily drop space from its licensed premises, It must submit a letter to the Commission requesting to drop 
space temporarily from Its licensed premises during the event date(s) and time(s), accompanied by a diagram showing the area where 
the license will temporarily drop space from Its licensed premises to accommodate the applicant organization. 

Name of licensee; I Business ID Number: 

Type oflicense held at this location (e.g. Oass C, Oub, Tavern, etc.): 

Phone number: I Email: 

Name of authorized signer for licensee: 

I, the authorized signer, for the above named o~ptemises 
lkensee, request lhilt the llcens•s llc•nses at thl• IOClltlon be 
plated Into escrow durtng the d■te(s) and tlme(s) specified fo, 
the Speci,I Ucenses Issued for use at this loc.atlon. Signature of Authorized Signer for Licensee Date 
LCC-l 10(01·2Jl ~Soll 



Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) 

Constitution Hall • 525 W. Allegan, Lansing, Ml 48933 
Malling Address: P.O. Box 30005, Lansing, Ml 48909 

ToH-Free: 866-en-0011 - www.mlchigaa,aoyJlcc 

Wine Auction Special License Wine Donation Record 

Business ID: 

Request ID: 

(For MLCC Use Only) 

List the name and address of each person that has donated wine to the applicant organization for the wine auction and list the brand(s) 
and quantity donated. The applicant organization shall not accept donations of wine from a business licensed by the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission. An authorized officer of the applicant organization must sign this donation record form. 

Applicant organization: j Wine auction date: 

Donor Name Donor Address Wine Brand(s) Donated Quantity Donated 

\ (\ 
l \I}( \ 

1 \ \ l 

I\., 
I 
l 

Signature of Authorized Officer 

I hereby certify that all persons listed above have donated wine to the applicant organization listed above for this wine auction, to be 
conducted pursuant to the Michigan Liquor Control Code, MCL 436.1527. The persons listed above have donated wine to the applicant 
organization as individuals and not for or on behalf of any retail or nonretall business licensed by the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 

Print Name of Authorized Officer Signature of Authorized Officer Date 

LCC,110(01-ll) LARA I, on oquol oppor1unll)' omployer/program. Aullllla,y 1ld1, ,or-.rlcM and 01h•r ,..,sonobl~ accommodotio"• 11c ovolloblc upon roqu<st to lndlvldu.,~ wtth dlJ.Jbllltlcs. Poga7of3 



Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Finance and Administrative Services 

LARA Revenue Servlces j!JJ.Q.Ja part of 
the Michigan Llquor Control 

Commission (see noce below), Revenue Services 

Credit Card Authorization Form 

**FAX COMPLETED FORM TO SECURE FAX LINE: 517-284-8557 * * 
* * DO NOT EMAIL OR MAIL THIS FORM * * 

Requests with credit card payments that are not faxed to the above secure fox 1/ne will be destroyed along with the credit card authorization In 
order to ensure the security of applicants' personal credit card numbers. 

* *IF you ARE NOT SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION FORM WITH THIS CREDIT CARD AUTHORIZATION. YOU MUST PROVIDE AN 
ITEMIZATION OF THE FEES FOR WHICH you ARE SUBMITTING PAYMENT OR YOUR PAYMENT WILL NOT BE PROCESSED** 

Name on Card: 

Billing Address: 

Clty: State: Zip Code: 

Phone: 

Email: 

Applicant/Licensee Name: Request or Business ID#: 

Payment Is for: 

IF VOU ARE NOT SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION FORM WITH THIS 
CREDIT CARD AUTHORIZATION, YOU MUST PROVIDE AN 
ITEMIZATION OF THE FEES FOR WHICH VOU ARE SUBMITTING 
PAYMENT OR YOUR PAYMENT WILL NOT BE PROCESSED. 

Credit C•rd P•yment ltemlHtlon: 

Fee Type 

D Inspection Fee(s): 

at! Special License Fee(s): 

D Temporary Authorization Fee: 

D License Renewal Fee(s): 

O Manufacturer Llcense(s): 

D Wholesaler Ucense(s): 

D New Retailer Llcense(s): 

O Transfer Retailer Llcense(s): 

O Condlt!onal License 

O New Add Bar O Transfer Add Bar: 

O Sunday Sales Permit (AM): 

D Sunday Sales Permit (PM): 

D Catering Permit: 

Fee Amount 
MLCC 

F~eCode 

4036 

4008 

4037 

4004 

4038 

4085 

4012 

4034 

4012 

4012/4()34 

4033 

4032 

4031 

Payment Amount 

Card Number. 

Check One: 

(' MasterCard (' Visa I Discover I American Express 

Security Code/CVV Code: 

Expiration Date: 

Signature 

LARA Revenue Services !~ a part of the Mich igan Liquor Control 
Commission (MLCCJ. Receipt of payment and application forms by 
LARA Revenue Services does not constitute r~eipt of an app lltatlon 
by the MLCC. Applications submitted tllrough LARA Revenue 
Services may take up to two l2) additional business days to be 
received by the MLCC after receipt by LARA Revenue Services, 

For requests that require a timely receipc of an application by t he 
MLCC to be processed, such as Special Ucenses and rernporary 
requesh, please ensure t hat your appllcatlcn wlll be received In 
adequate time to be processed by the MLCC aft er the payment is 
received ar,d processed by LARA Revenue Services. 

LCC-300 llD-201 LARA ts on 1qual Ojlpo,tunlcy M1ployer/pn,gr• m. Auxlllory aids, , tn'lctt •nd other tuSOnabl• aceam1110<101ians ••• • Y¥ll•bl• upon ""!UOSI to lndlvlduol, -..i,h dl>ablllll~s 



117; ---~ --- -

r 

,,_. 

' 
-:::;\. T-;_.::-: •• ~ --

r w1b") ~{ , ;~ • •. • ' • • , , , •• • ·; 

+ ~ t\ 
~ ij 11 ,: r, II 

r, a • I ' " [: •• 

'1\;f ~ ' t If ;~ ;; i ' , ," .' ~ : : ~ I n U -~ ' ., _, !, ~ r' 1 , ~ f :· L , ;,;. • 
I. •, _jJ n Jf ,0 , · • • -~ L ,! : 

(P>_i'l S Vlj/hJ 1 ,, ; -'-'__:._.. __ ..LL r [; • i' ~ ~ ;, • ~ --1..J~ ~-<---:.._..:_ • ~ : :,O;' .J , -. _;~ 

\ I 

, 4 ~-::- . . -~ ~ l, ';:"-- ., ,I· l 11 I • .,... .•----

,oi,-) 1,-) .)- c {¼ 1 , ._ir~F;· _ ! :c-J ci • , '~-=- • ,;~ " - •• 
I .-·' l " - 1 . I • • ""', ,.. .. -,, I . !- .- .. ~ 

-- . ~ • ,.. 

l ~ Gree~ ;s~~fS t4 . or~, ~c,r1s 
CJ OD D.foUAJ 1~'1-Ae~ ~f ·Nerlt OAeJ>.- l 

p~ M~es [ veNJ- AfeY-- ~ 

n11 \ ) L C~Oh G ~ n~t 

)uf' i ~C'vl (c{ it ~l ~~ 

(0;, s- lU0 1 _ /t~e _tM us·r·e, 

' i 9S; >I:_ wll ~ rt7~1fsh·µ,_s ~ ..,,is5,ot, 

--\o lwtlfe q le C) lAcl (f~IJQ Ir~ tt,e. 
t.V-V--J lli\ tG\. 't Alco~.1 -lo ~e. s:iJ . ~: ! 

'"' ·.· •· ,1 

~\~ \~Sic,U ~ ~u.,l&A2::1~ il . ,,, 
t,.,\ <;e(\tVIS ttt ~rJ) "'-C:'=· ~=-

BMD 
~ ~ AR£'A 

-=s==.,,:C_- ~ o S-\t\•f J 
~,""> 

, \~~~ C 
~ ,{tc.'\ \ 

I · r:OC"n .. P'!ho" 
. t!'.";i,c: n 

\ti 

d'founs (11,\\-s\;k Q) vi~ -~ L_ •• 
•r-~-

.-Ii_. 

~cJ.. / 
~ ~ ~ope 0ft, Easr ~+at,.,q 

~ x~"''t"'-~ ~y- ;·,-1 r ·ers<1 -e·vor ,f 'J "1J ve~~1Hes r~t ~ /' 4-eA f.-- CU}IJihcvJ 
-\tl1~ yuA o-ti'"°'' 1 c~,rdclf it7bU\ Fr 
jtiu.,~ Gl,l ~hr,w c~-~ 1 enh:.i, 1 .WulJ> 

~ . J .-t , I \J./ 
v£Lrntt.\."le~· bf e~a~~e q(o • 

c-.s r,1teJ 1" frm4 otr:h i l 
.,,...... .,,,. 

/ \ 

i~i, 

Ml (G\AS ii\ ,ASt 11,11 \ ~ 
2120 E. Sag inar~t.,~ astrCansing, Ml 48823 

~~"'.:,_.,,J.,;;_~:,. C (J,- ) j,\.il •-.J r 11 IS CY1I d .. .., .. ,1 ........ .rr,..,. L.,>,1.1 
lo. ._.,..,-A, ( 

P.,<-.,J-:_~--.r lt-FO,i--.•;:.-..~. 

~J:t.. :-:I:~ lJ-02-0.2- !'J4.- ~::n-~~ 
At•)R!"SS· 2:Zo £AST U-i'(I! 

E'5"'!' v.,s-«;.. u.;or-.,..a..• .. 
'.:.u~•;, 1cr.. 'JG. ,.._,. (~ t_:.l; A--....;or-.-;,,o:: ;,,::fQ?t.~ l'"" ~­

C:~::l'rU AD.,v\."C :.r,i l~t .a.. {_...,S.~ 
90!..S AP!: !r;,,,.::_o .f'"l 

:'~ - ~ J.l ~,:-;;-...:S 

-~ ;..r. •.1"""9.kl'"I - (.z., r_,....•-<•-;.? 

t~" ~;;;~~,::c,~~ <~ ,~-b-. ~~;ty N ~7--, 
?o1 Jit \"'t S,:,..,t"'I 1'J- oua ::~ l"~ ~,....n-st ,p., ~• t :i.e 

~-t••~,t i/4 7 ';.it,,ol\ 4. f:,·•"'\ " ,e.--".,..., ~::c. ! .,. ... ~1-
l '""°lC-.:,,, le..-,-..... ;,.. !nc-..r; e:.~-,l,. ~;~ NXI'"~ ~ 
~"~ ol ':"We" ~~•"'M,c:t~ cl •►it" ,:,,c,"":11,r!;."'W 1-4 l~ ·=~ ~ .. :: :,~;z.,,~;t;..~~ 1 ~:~ ~ -i::r ;~t. 
•;cr:r, t/4 C.0,-nc-- e • -nic:! Sc.c-:k:w- 4, ~ 011. it b,,.-.r1"IO « 
~l~ 5i a• ~ 27 :-V""t- 56 SK~ (;;si ~ ~ 
'10(1;►~- ,;.;-,-x-- .. q • •-e <,f ~-?~ l~S.."- {e:d; t..<JC'IOr. 
f,-$"' .. '' "6· 2 f<'C:. .,.~ «~{ .('Sil rtt~. '.r~C Ssiu, l'O 
t~~ , _,., t--~ :s,...•Iff....:: ct ·;i•~ K~ ir:t--cc. C.::s:!- ,~·c 
~-:, '"'f••-tc:.o- 1X let'! :.:. tN P:;'r~ ,._. ~;---w,;-..:: 
"50l.r T<'llt: r"'crc,tri:r ..:C$<: -~OI'"- e;- <.J ·''-(~ ;:,r c.~ 
"~.;!:: ~ ~.- ~ ;-~ '.""•~" 1,.~ ur ,;-~_'.•., fc- 1,~•l ,~.:-"" 

~~..-:V:k!"r:'C ..... 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~~li 
~ 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 

May 9, 2024 

Economic Development Corporation Appointment 

10.H 

Currently, there is a vacancy on the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) and the attached 
application has been received for review and recommendation. 

Di.rector Clark spoke with Mr. Turlapati who has recently applied to join the EDC. His resume speaks to 
several positions in business. He has a desire to se1ve the Meridian community, and this is a position he 
feels most comfo1table. He is an Okemos resident and ready to se1ve. 

The following motion has been prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPOINT SAi TURLAPATI TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION FORA SIX YEAR TERM ENDING 12/ 31/ 29. 

Attachment: 

1. Public Service Application 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi,U$ 



* 1. I am interested in service on one or more of the following public bodies as checked below:
Economic Development Corporation

* 2. Summarize your reasons for applying to do this type of service
I'm drawn to the EDC's mission due to my passion for using technology to foster economic development and community revitalization. My journey from a technologist at
Michigan State University to CEO has been driven by the belief in digital innovation as a catalyst for growth. I see this role as a unique opportunity to contribute my expertise
in Project management, Technology and strategic planning towards building sustainable, entrepreneurial communities in line with the EDC's objectives.

* 3. Describe education, experience or training which will assist you if appointed.
With a Master's in Computer Science and extensive experience from Michigan State University to CEO of Digital Strategy Technologies Inc., my background combines
strategic leadership with technical skills. Expertise in project management, and digital transformation strategies, alongside roles in diverse sectors, equips me to drive
innovation and foster public-private partnerships effectively within the EDC framework.

(Attach resume if available)
Sai Profile.pdf

* Full Name
Turlapati Sairam

* Occupation
CEO

* Place of Employment
East Lansing

* Home Address

* Phone (Day)

* Phone (Evening)

* Email

* Please type your name in the box below as a digital signature
Turlapati Sairam

* Date and Time
04/09/2024

Other than the Downtown Development Authority Board, the Corridor Improvement Authority, and the Economic Development Corporation, persons appointed to Meridian
Township boards and commissions must be a resident and elector (if of voting age) of the Township during the term of office. Excessive absences may be cause for review
of appointment. The policy for appointment of candidates to the various public service positions is based on the following criteria: desire to serve, experience, expertise,
availability of time to serve, and maintenance of equitable geographic representation. In most instances it will be desirable to develop further information through a
personal interview. This application will be retained in township files for two years.

Page | 1



Contact 

www.linkedin.com/in/saiturlapati 
(Linked ln) 

Top Skills 

Software Project Management 

Integration 

Software Development 

Certifications 

TOGAF 

Prompt Engineering: How to Talk to 
the Als 

Executive Guide to AutoML 

Data Strategy 

Sai Turlapati 
CEO - Digital Strategy Technologies Inc 
East Lansing, Michigan, United States 

Experience 

Digital Strategy Technologies Inc 

CEO 
March 2024 - Present (2 months) 
United States 

MSU Federal Credit Union 
8 months 

Sr Architect 
October 2023 - February 2024 (5 months) 

Sr Architect 
July 2023 - October 2023 (4 months) 

FedEx Ground 
Solutions Architect 
August 2021 - May 2023 (1 year 10 months) 

State of Michigan 
Senior Consultant 
December 2019 - August 2021 (1 year 9 months) 

Ford Motor Company 
Solution Architect 
January 2017 - December 2019 (3 years) 
Dearborn, Michigan, United States 

Michigan State University 
Technologist 
May 2009 - January 2017 (7 years 9 months) 
East Lansing 

Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC) 
Solution Architect 
March 2008 - May 2009 (1 year 3 months) 
Farmington, Mi 

Page 1 of 2 



HTC Global Services 

Senior Consultant 
November 2006 - February 2008 (1 year 4 months) 

Sun Microsystems 
Member Technical Staff Ill 
March 2004 - November 2006 (2 years 9 months) 

HCL Technologies 
Software Engineer 
April 2001 - March 2004 (3 years) 

Omnikron Systems Inc. 
Software Developer 
July 2000 - March 2001 (9 months) 

Education 

Bharathidasan University, Tiruchirappalli 

Masters in, Computer Science· (1997 - 2000) 

Page 2 of 2 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~~li 
~ 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 

May 9, 2024 

ZBA Appointment 

10. I 

Under the statutes, the Supervisor appoints, subject to the Board's approval, the members of the 
Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). There are currently two vacancies for alternates on the ZBA. 

Mr. Benoit has recently submitted an application for public service. He has a passion for learning 
more about urban planning. He wants to help make Meridian Township even better for the future. 
Mr. Benoit resides in Haslett. 

The following motions have been prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT MADE BY SUPERVISOR JACKSON OF MAX 
BENOIT, AS AN AL TERNA TE, TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR A TERM 
ENDING 12/ 31/ 2026. 

Attachment: 

1. Public Service Application 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi,U$ 



* 1. I am interested in service on one or more of the following public bodies as checked below:
Transportation Commission *
Zoning Board of Appeals

* 2. Summarize your reasons for applying to do this type of service
I have lived in the East Lansing/Meridian Township area for 10 years and believe it is an incredible place to live. That being said, I want to help it become a better place for
the future. By joining one of the boards, I can start that process in some way

* 3. Describe education, experience or training which will assist you if appointed.
I have both a Bachelors and Masters degree from Michigan State University. I don't have any formal training regarding urban planning or transportation, but I have had a
passion for learning about it over the last few years. I commute to work at Michigan State by bike year around and believe that transportation can have a massive impact on
the communities environmental, economical, and safety goals.

(Attach resume if available)
**SKIPPED**

* Full Name
Max Benoit

* Occupation
Coach

* Place of Employment
Michigan State University

* Home Address

* Phone (Day)

* Phone (Evening)

* Email

* Please type your name in the box below as a digital signature
Max Benoit

* Date and Time
03/17/2024

Other than the Downtown Development Authority Board, the Corridor Improvement Authority, and the Economic Development Corporation, persons appointed to Meridian
Township boards and commissions must be a resident and elector (if of voting age) of the Township during the term of office. Excessive absences may be cause for review
of appointment. The policy for appointment of candidates to the various public service positions is based on the following criteria: desire to serve, experience, expertise,
availability of time to serve, and maintenance of equitable geographic representation. In most instances it will be desirable to develop further information through a
personal interview. This application will be retained in township files for two years.

Page | 1

-



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Phil Deschaine, Treasurer 

April 30, 2024 

First Quarter 2024 Investment Report 

10. J 

Attached is the first quarter of 2024 Investment Report from the Treasurer's office. It details our 
fixed and non-fixed Meridian Township investments, transfers and the financial institutions that 
are holding Township investments. 

Our investment balances shown in this report have increased by approximately 13 million from 
the fourth quarter of 2023 report. This is due to the Winter 2023 tax revenues which are reflected 
in this report 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us ---



3/31/2023 CURRENT INVESTMENTS Treasurer's Office 

Bank Amount Fixed Amount Non-Fixed Total Investment 

Horizon $ - $ 211 ,763.53 $ 21 1,763.53 
MBS $ 20 188,253.00 $ - $ 20,188,253.00 
Ml Class $ - $ 34,722,496.47 $ 34,722,496.47 
MSU Federal CU $ 2,028,951 .89 $ 766,708.33 $ 2,795,660.22 
First Nat'I Bank of Ml $ 3,045,214.48 $ - $ 3,045,214.48 
Commercial Bank $ 3,027,769.85 $ - $ 3,027,769.85 
Independent $ 3,000,000.00 $ - $ 3,000,000.00 
PNC $ - $ - $ -
Totals $31,290,189.22 $ 35,700,968.33 $ 66 991 ,157.55 

% of total investment 46.70793932 53,29206068 100 

Each investment institution has received and signed the Meridian Charter Township Investment 
Policy and Agreement to Comply. 

The signed agreement specifies that they are adhering to Public Act 20. 



3/31/2023 CURRENT FIXED MATURITY INVESTMENTS 

Maturity Fund Investment Pr incipal Pure Date 

07/31/30 general fund JP Morgan Chase (MBS) 90,000.00 07 /31/20 
09/30/26 general fund First Natl Bk Amer (M8S) 1,000,000.00 09/30/21 
05/01/30 general fund FNMA (MBS) 1,986,579.00 04/27/22 
09/30/24 general fund United States Treas (MBS) 968,130.00 09/13/22 
09/30/25 general fund United States Treas (MBS) 3,909,680.00 09/13/22 
08/15/27 general fund United States Treas (MBS) 7,540,000.00 09/14/22 

15,494,389.00 

05/01/30 land pres FNMA (MBS) 138,196.80 05/01/22 
138,196.80 

10/01/24 land pres res FNMA (MBS) 857,747.20 07/30/19 
09/01/31 land pres res FNMA(MBS) 867,920.00 10/28/19 
10/28/26 Jand pres res Federal Home Ln (MBS) 500,000.00 12/01/21 
12/30/24 land pres res Federal Home Ln (MBS) 330,000.00 12/30/21 

2,555,667.20 

09/29/28 public works First Natl Bk Amer (MBS) 2,000,000.00 9/23/2021 
2,000,000.00 

09/01/23 road imp Commercial Bank 1,007,438.35 09/01/22 
09/01/24 road imp Commercial Bank 2,020,331.50 09/01/22 
09/02/23 road imp First National Bank of Ml 1,013,300.89 09/02/22 
09/02/24 road imp First National Bank of Ml 1,015,830.16 09/02/22 
09/02/25 road imp First National Bank of Ml 1.016,083.43 09/02/22 
09/01/23 road imp Independent Bank 2,000,000.00 09/01/22 
09/01/24 road imp Independent Bank 1,000,000.00 09/01/22 
09/01/25 road imp MSOFCU 2,028,951.89 09/01/22 

11,101,936.22 

Total Fixed Investments $ 31,290,189.22 

Int Rate 

1.200% 
0.850% 
1.895% 
2.125% 
3.000% 
2.250% 

1.895% 

2.470% 
2.305% 
1.150% 
1.000% 

1.100% 

1.500% 
2.050% 
2.650% 
3.150% 
3.200% 
1.900% 
2.250% 
2.5 10% 

Treasurer's 
Office 

Certificate 

48128UHQS 
32110YUJ2 
3140HYADO 
9128282YS 
9128285CO 
9128282RO 

3140HYADO 

3138LKSL7 
3140HVYK4 
3130APGT6 
3130AQA37 

32110YUG8 

3200101014 
3200101015 
310029491 
310029509 
310029525 

29203823404 
29203823413 

367213-C4 



3/31/2023 CURRENT NON-FIXED MATURITY INVESTMENTS 

PURCH. FUND ACCOUNT INVESTMENT PRINCIPAL CURRENT 
DATE NUMBER RATE 

08/01/02 GF RMB-005463 MBS $ 0.00% 
05/12/08 GF 0289-0001 Ml Class $ 22,161,377.10 4.9975% 
12/23/21 GF 0289-EOOl Ml Class Edge $ 0.00% 
05/20/09 GF 367213-06 MSU Fed. CU $ 5.00 0.00% 
05/28/09 GF 367213-26 MSU Fed. CU $ 766,703.33 1.81% 

Total $ 22,928,085.43 

08/01/02 LP RMB-007923 MBS $ 0.00% 
05/12/08 LP 0289-0006 Ml Class $ 1,756,743.26 4.9975% 

Total $ 1,756,743.26 

08/01/02 LP-R RMB-008103 MBS $ 0.00% 
01/16/09 LP·R 7602000113 Horizon $ 211,763.53 1.450% 
05/12/08 LP· R 0289-0008 Ml Class $ 0.00% 

Tota.I $ 211,763.53 

08/01/02 PM RMB-008145 MBS $ 0.00% 
09/30/08 PM 0289-0007 Ml Class $ 0.00% 

Total $ 

5/17/2022 PW 0289-0002 Ml Class $ 7,680,469.46 4.9975% 
$ 7,680,469.46 

08/01/02 SF RMB-007907 MBS $ 0.00% 
Total $ 

12/01/09 PA RMB-027657 MBS $ 0.00% 
Total $ 

02/08/13 TA 0289-0003 Ml Class $ 0.00% 
Total $ 

08/01/02 Wf RMB-007915 MBS $ 0.00% 
05/22/09 WF 0289-0005 MI Class $ 528,785.56 4.9975% 

Total $ 528,785.56 

03/09/17 BP 0289-0009 Ml Class $ 436,888.67 4.9975% 
Total $ 436,888.67 

03/09/17 RDS 0289-0010 Ml Class $ 2,158,232.42 4.9975% 
Total $ 2,158,232.42 

12 6 2019 RDIMP RMB-039025 MBS $ 0.00% 
Total 

Total Non-Fixed Investments $ 35,700,968.33 

Total Fixed and Non-Fixed Investments $ 66,991,157.55 

Treasurer's 
Office 

INVESTMENT TYPE 

money market 
pooled funds 
pooled funds 
savings 
money market 

money market 
pooled funds 

money market 
money market 
pooled funds 

money market 
pooled funds 

pooled fund 

money market 

money market 

pooled funds 

money market 
pooled funds 

pooled funds 

pooled funds 

mone market 



FIXED MATURITY INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS FOR JANUARY - MARCH 2023 

1/2/2023 ROAD DEBT IMPROVEMENT 

Monthly interest received on 3 First National Bank of Ml CDs $ 7,711.82 

1/31/2023 GEN.ERALFUND 

Principal payment received on MBS agency funds $ 5,019.51 

:1/31/2023 LAND PRESERVATION 

Principal payment received on MBS agency fund $ 261.09 

1/31/2023 LAND PRESERVATION RESERVE 

Principal payment received on MBS agency funds $ 3,882.11 

1/31/2023 PUBLIC WORKS 

Principal payment received on MBS agency fund $ 1,868.49 

1/31/2023 ROAD DEBT IMPROVEMENT 

Monthly interest received on MSU CD C4 $ 4,242.45 

2/2/2023 ROAD DEBT IMPROVEMENT 

Monthly interest received on 3 First National Bank of Ml CDs $ 7,731.64 

2/15/2023 GENERAL FUND 

Interest earned on Treasury Bill at MBS $ 75,326.09 

2/28/2023 GBNERALFUND 

Principal payment received on MBS agency funds $ 4,428.49 

2/28/2023 LAND PRESERVATION 

Principal payment received on MBS agency funds $ 261.09 

2/28/2023 LAND PRESERVATION RESERVE 

Principal payment received on MBS agency funds $ 3,882.11 

2/28/2023 PUBLIC WORKS 

Principal payment received on MBS agency fund $ 1,747.94 

2/28/2023 ROAD DEBT IMPROVEMENT 

Monthly interest received on MSU CD C4 $ 3,839.95 



3/1/202;3 ROAD DEBT IMPROVEMENT 

Quarterly interest earned on 2 Commercial Bank CDs $ 13,808.22 

3/2/2023 ROAD DEBT IMPROVEMENT 

Monthly interest received on 3 First National Bank of Ml CDs $ 7,000.48 

3/30/2023 GENERAL FUND 

Principal payment received on M BS agency funds $ 4,088.58 

3/30/2023 LAND PRESERVATION 

Principal payment received on MBS agency fund $ 235.82 

3/30/2023 LAND PRESERVATION RESERVE 

Principal payment received on MBS agency funds $ 3,506.41 

03/30/023 PUBLIC WORKS 

Principal payment received on MBS agency fund $ 1,808.22 

3/31/2023 ROAD DEBT IMPROVEMENT 

Monthly interest received on MSU CD C4 $ 4,259.45 

3/31/2023 GENERAL FUND 

Interest earned on Treasury Bills at MBS $ 70,625.00 



NON FIXED INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS FOR JANUARY - MARCH 2023 

1/31/2023 GENERAL FUND 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

1/31/2023 LAND PRESERVATION 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

1/31/2023 LANO PRESERVATION RESERVE 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

1/31/2023 PUBLIC WORKS 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

2/28/2023 GENERAL FUND 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

2/28/2023 LANO l>RESERVATION 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

2/28/2023 LAND PRESERVATION RESERVE 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

2/28/2023 PUBLIC WORKS 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

3/17/2023 GENERAL FUND 

ACH funds from Horizon money market to Ml Class 

3/17/2023 PUBLIC WORKS 

ACf-1 funds from Horizon money market to Ml Class 

3/30/2023 GENERAL FUND 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checklt1g 

3/30/2023 LAND PRESERVATION 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

3/30/2023 LAND PRESERVATION RESERVE 

Ach'd funds from MBS money market to Horizon Checking 

3/30/2023 PUBLIC WORKS 

Ach'd funds from MBS money tnarket to Horizon Checking 

$ 5,019.51 

$ 261.09 

$ 3,882.11 

$ 1,868.49 

$ 4,428.49 

$ 261.09 

$ 3,882.11 

$ 

$ 22,116,841.40 

$ 2,534,734.62 

$ 4,088.58 

$ 235.82 

$ 3,506.41 

1,808.22 



 

 

10.K 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

To:  Board Members 
 
From:  Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager 

Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  May 21, 2024 
 
Re: 2024 MDOT Right-of-Way Permit 
 

MDOT requires the resolution that is attached to this cover memorandum to be approved by the 
governing body of the Township as part of the approval process for obtaining our annual right-of-
way (ROW) permit.  
 
The Township needs to perform some work on a water main valve located on the north side of 
Grand River Ave just east of the Okemos Road intersection. We would like to schedule the work 
now while we can use MDOT’s traffic controls that are currently in place.  
 
This will save on the cost of the Township’s project and to avoid having to close the outer 
westbound lane on Grand River Ave later this year after MDOT has finished the final work they are 
currently performing on Grand River Ave.  
 
Attachments: 
 

1. MDOT’s Standard Performance Resolution for Municipalities 
2. MDOT 2024 Construction Permit 

 
The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration: 
 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR MUNICIPALITIES AND 
AUTHORIZE THE CLERK TO SIGN THE RESOLUTION FOR THE TOWNSHIP’S 2024 
RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMIT FROM THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 



Michigan Department 
of Transportation

2207B (05/21) PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 

Page 1 of 2 

This Performance Resolution (Resolut ion) is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for 

purposes of issuing to a Municipality an ''Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way'', and/or 

an ''Annual Application and Permit for Miscellaneous Operations within State Highway Right of Way''.

RESOLVED WHEREAS, the  
(County, City, Village, Township, etc.) 

hereinafter referred to as the ''MUNICIPALITY,'' periodically applies to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as ''PERMIT,'' to 
construct, operate, use and/or maintain utilities or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and 
under State Highway Right of Way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees that: 

1. Each party to this Resolut ion shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or
omissions during the performance of this Resolut ion , as provided by law. This Resolut ion is not
intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted,
as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising
out of the performance of this Agreement.

2. If any of the work performed for the MUNICIPALITY is performed by a contractor, the MUNICIPALITY shall
require its contractor to hold harmless, indemnify and defend in litigation, the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT and their agents and employee’s, against any claims for damages to public or private
property and for injuries to person arising out of the performance of the work, except for claims that result
from the sole negligence or willful acts of the DEPARTMENT, until the contractor achieves final acceptance
of the MUNICIPALITY Failure of the MUNICIPALITY to require its contractor to indemnify the
DEPARTMENT, as set forth above, shall be considered a breach of its duties to the DEPARTMENT.

3. Any work performed for the MUNICIPALITY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as a contractor
for the MUNICIPALITY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT shall
not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the MUNICIPALITY, or their
subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT without the DEPARTMENT’S specific prior
written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or
subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the MUNICIPALITY.

4. The MUNICIPALITY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or indirectly out
of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims being asserted
against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan Transportation Commission,
the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and those contracting governmental
bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same occurs, for the purposes of the
PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek and obtain any necessary
relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

5. The MUNICIPALITY will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT, promptly restore and/or
correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway R ight of Way resulting from the
installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the MUNICIPALITY’S facilities according to a
PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT.



6. With respect to any activities authorized by a PERMIT, when the MUNICIPALITY requires insurance on
its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named insured the State
of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all
officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract.

7. The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this Resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent the
DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a
PERMIT.

8. This Resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the MUNICIPALITY or the
DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice provided to the other party. It
will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the MUNICIPALITY with regard to any PERMIT which has
already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for 
the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the MUNICIPALITY. 

Title and/or Name: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by 

the   
(Name of Board, etc.)

of the  of 
(Name of MUNICIPALITY) (County) 

 meeting held on the _______day at a 

of ______________________ A.D. ________________. 

Print Signed Name

MDOT 2207B (05/21) Page 2 of 2 

 Title

Signed 



Page 1 of 3

ANNUAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT

For Operations within State Highway Right-of-Way

Issued To:

5151 Marsh Rd
Okemos MI 48864

Permit Number:

to

Caycee Hart
517-853-4468(O)
hart@meridian.mi.us

Contact:

Secondary Contact:
Younes Ishraidi

ishraidi@meridian.mi.us
517-853-4460(O)

THIS PERMIT IS VALID ONLY FOR THE FOLLOWING PROPOSED OPERATIONS IN THE TYPE OF 
RIGHT OF WAY AS NOTED:

Meridian Township / Caycee Hart
99017-102477-24-050724

Permit Type:

1-TREE TRIMMING AND TREE REMOVAL - See Supplemental Specifications item # 8 in the Terms and 
Conditions. IN FREE ACCESS STATE TRUNKLINE RIGHT-OF-WAY

2-UNDERGROUND UTILITY OPERATIONS - PRIOR APPROVAL SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM THE 
UTILITIES/PERMITS ENGINEER FOR ANY MAINTENANCE OR CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS WHICH 
REQUIRE CUTTING PAVEMENT OR BORING OPERATIONS. IN FREE ACCESS STATE TRUNKLINE RIGHT-
OF-WAY

a. Installation of individual services from an existing facility to either side of the right of way. Services to the far 
right of way (crossing under the pavement) shall not exceed (3") diameter with this permit.
b. Installation of cathodic protection devices.

c. Installation of additional cable (electric or communication) in existing conduits.

d. Installation of carrier pipes in an existing casing or tunnel.

e. Adjustment/reconstruction of manholes.

f. Routine maintenance of all existing underground facilities. IN LIMITED ACCESS STATE TRUNKLINE 
RIGHT-OF-WAY

7-EMERGENCY OPERATIONS - See General Conditions item # 16 in the Terms and Conditions. IN FREE AND 
LIMITED ACCESS STATE TRUNKLINE RIGHT-OF-WAY

10-ROUTE CLOSURES - Attach event name, date, time and detour route. IN FREE ACCESS STATE 
TRUNKLINE RIGHT-OF-WAY

Permit Fee:
Effective Date:

Annual Application

Bond Numbers:
Dec 31, 2024May 07, 2024



Page 2 of 3

Work shall NOT begin until the Advance Notice has been approved.

CAUTION

May 07, 2024

99017-102477-24-050724 Issued To:Meridian Township / Caycee Hart

This permit is incomplete without "General Conditions and Supplemental Specifications"

I am the legal owner of this property or facility, the owner's authorized representative, or have statutory authority to  
work within state highway Right-of-Way. 

Commencement of work set forth in the permit application constitutes acceptance of the permit as issued. 

Failure to object, within ten (10) days  to the permit as issued constitutes acceptance of the permit as issued.

If this permit is accepted by either of the above methods, I will comply with the provisions of the permit. 

1.

2.

3.

4.

I agree that Advance Notice for Permitted Utility Tree Trimming and Tree Removal Activities shall be submitted 15 
days prior to the commencement of the proposed work for an annual permit.

I agree that Advance Notice for Permitted Activities for shall be submitted 5 days prior to the commencement of 
the proposed work.

5.

Ghazi Mustafa

Approved DateMDOT

Meridian Township / Caycee 
Hart

Failure to submit the advance notice may result in a Stop Work Order.

(517) 335-3754TSC Contact Info Lansing TSC

THE STANDARD ATTACHMENTS, ATTACHMENTS AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS MARKED BELOW 
ARE A PART OF THIS PERMIT.

I certify that I accept the following:

Mobility Flowchart for Permit Activities (2204C)
Special Conditions For Underground Construction (2205C)
Special Conditions for Pipe Jacking (PJ) (3703C)
Parade Event Permit Application Updated 6-2023 (UP-67)
Utility Cuts, Trenches And Pavement Replacement Permit Attachment (PA-01)
Bat Nonfederal External Map 6-13-23 (Bat Advisory)
Special Conditions For Tree Removal, Tree Trimming & Herbicide Application  (2240)
General Conditions (General Conditions)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

STANDARD ATTACHMENTS:

ATTACHMENTS



Page 3 of 3
99017-102477-24-050724 Issued To:Meridian Township / Caycee Hart

1

2

3

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

The Department of Transportation does not, by issuance of this permit, 
assume any liability claims or maintenance costs resulting from the 
annual  permit items facility placed by this permit. The Department 
reserves the right to require removal of all or any portion of this facility 
as needed for highway maintenance or construction purposes without 
replacement or reimbursement of any costs incurred by the permitted 
or other party. The permitted will defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the Department for any claims whatsoever resulting from the 
construction or the removal of the authorized by this permit.
All disturbed areas within the right of way shall be top-soiled, seeded 
and mulched to match existing areas per current MDOT standards and 
specifications.
Must submit a five-day advance notice before any activity within MDOT 
ROW



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
'{ o ~~ s~~1' 
~ 

To: Board Members 

From: Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Director of Community Planning and Development 

Date: May 2, 2024 

Re: Recreational Marijuana Licensing - Zones 3 

12A 

As part of the procedures for recreational marijuana licensing in Meridian Township, the Township 
Board is required to hold a public hearing once the Recreational Marijuana Review Committee has 
completed their review and made a recommendation to the Board for each Zone. In the case of Zone 
3, there were two applications, therefore a formal competitive review process is required. The 
Review Committee went through all the criteria for both applications and made a recommendation 
to the Board previously, recommending approval of the license for DNVK 4 at 1614 Grand River 
Avenue. The second application, from Amsterdam CC at 4 792 Marsh Road, was complete, but lacking 
in detail at the Committee review level. They have subsequently submitted additional information 
that will be shared with the Board. Details of both applications will be reviewed in depth under a 
separate heading. 

In order to meet the terms of the ordinance, the Township Board is asked to hold a public hearing 
on the applications in Zone 3. Once the public hearing has been held, additional hearings can be held, 
additional information can be requested, the Township Board can proceed to a decision on the 
issuance of a conditional approval of a license, or the Township Board can choose not to issue a 
license. Only one license for recreational marijuana may be granted in each of the five Zones 
established in the Zoning ordinance. 

Providing a safe and welcoming. sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us 



13.A 

To: 

From: 

Township Board 

Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Interim Township Manager & Community Planning and Development Director 

Date: May 2, 2024 

Re: Recreational Marijuana License Application 
Zone 4 - Okemos Local Investments 

At the April 2, 2024 Township Board meeting, the Board held a public hearing and discussed the 
recreational marijuana license application for Okemos Local Investments, located at 4360 Hagadorn 
Road. This was the only application that was submitted for a recreational marijuana license in Zone 
4, which is located on the east side of Hagadorn Road, south of Mount Hope Road and the CSX Railroad 
tracks. The applicant. Okemos Local Investments, was previously selected as a medical marijuana 
licensee, although their approval lapsed and no construction towards a facility was ever started. 

Previously, the Recreational Marijuana License Review Committee raised several questions about the 
application, which was complete per the ordinance, but lacking in some detail with respect to the 
review criteria. The Township Board raised a number of questions at their April 2nd meeting, 
prompting an additional discussion at the April 16th meeting. The applicant provided a great deal of 
clarity at the April 16th meeting, largely resolving the Board's outstanding concerns. 

Township Board Action 
The Township Board has two options under the Marijuana Regulations Ordinance: 

a. Grant conditional approval of the application, with issuance of a permit subject to the 
conditional permit holder's compliance with the requirements of this article and any rules or 
procedures set forth by the Township Board or a local administrative body delegated with 
such task. 

b. Deny the application stating the reasons for such denial. 

At this time, Staff and the Recreational Marijuana License Review Committee would recommend 
CONDITIONAL approval of the proposed recreational marijuana facility at 4360 Hagadorn Road. 
Should the Board choose to take this action, the applicant will still need to go through the Special Use 
Permit review, which they are required to submit for within 60 days of action by the Board on the 
license application. After Special Use Permit review, the applicant can then begin the Building permit 
process. The following motion is provided for the Township Board's use during discussion of this item. 

Motion to adopt the resolution granting CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the recreational 
marijuana license application to Okemos Local Investments LLC for the proposed 
marijuana retailer location at 4360 Hagadorn Road. The property is zoned RP, Research 
Park, and is located within the Marijuana Facilities Overlay District. 

Attachments 
1. Resolution for Approval 
2. Previous Staff Memos dated March 27, 2024 and April 11, 2024 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commun~ A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us ------



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE CONDITIONAL Recreational Marijuana License 
4360 Hagadorn – Okemos Local Investments 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 on the 9th day of May 2024, at 6:00 
p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:  
 
  
 
ABSENT:    
 
 The following resolution was offered by  and supported by . 
 

WHEREAS, Okemos Local Investments LLC, option holder for the purchase of the property 
at 4360 Hagadorn Road, has submitted an application to operate a marijuana retailer to the located 
at this location, and 
 

WHEREAS, the property is located within one of the five marijuana overlay districts 
established under the Meridian Township Zoning Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, Okemos Loval Investments LLC application was the only application received in 

Zone 4, where the property in question is located, and 
 

WHEREAS, the application was determined to be a complete application by the Director of 
Community Planning and Development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the application was reviewed by the Recreational Marijuana Review Committee, 

who unanimously recommended approval of the license to the Township Board, while strongly 
encouraging the applicant to provide additional information clarifying their operation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board reviewed the application at their April 2nd regular meeting 
and raised a series of questions and asked for clarification on a number of items associated with the 
application; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board held further discussion the application at their April 16th 

meeting, where the applicant thoroughly clarified all outstanding issues and alleviated concerns 
about their operational ability; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after reviewing the competitive review criteria established by the Township 
Board, the Board has determined that Okemos Local Investments LLC is best suited to operate in 
Zone 4 in compliance with the local ordinances and the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 
Marihuana Act, given the ownership group’s previous history in the industry; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby issued CONDITIONAL APPROVAL for a recreational marijuana 



Resolution to Approve           CONDITIONAL Recreational Marijuana License 
Page 2                                                                           4360 Hagadorn Road – Okemos Local Investments 

license to Okemos Local Investments LLC, for a marijuana retailer at 4360 Hagadorn Road, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. Approval is granted in general accordance with the complete application submitted to the 

Township, signed by Samuel Pernick on 01/24/24 and all supplementary information 
submitted by Mr. Pernick, dated March 27, 2024. 
 

2. A Special Use Permit application for the facility must be submitted within 60 days following this 
approval.  

 
3. Any material changes to the details in the licensing application will be reviewed by the Director 

of Community Planning and Development to determine the appropriate amendment procedure.  
 

 
ADOPTED: YEAS:  
 
   

                                                                                            
  NAYS:  
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 
Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 9th 
day of May, 2024. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       Deborah Guthrie 
       Township Clerk 
 
 
 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Township Board 

Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Community Planning and Development Director 

April 11, 2024 

Recreational Marijuana License Application 
Zone 4 - Okemos Local Investments 

PREVIOUS 
REVIEW MEMO 

At the April 2, 2024 Township Board meeting, the Board held a public hearing and discussed the 
recreational marijuana license application for Okemos Local Investments, located at 4360 Hagadorn 
Road. This was the only application that was submitted for a recreational marijuana license in Zone 
4, which is located on the east side of Hagadorn Road, south of Mount Hope Road and the CSX Railroad 
tracks. The applicant. Okemos Local Investments, was previously selected as a medical marijuana 
licensee, although their approval lapsed and no construction towards a facility was ever started. 

The Recreational Marijuana License Review Committee previously reviewed the application and 
found the application to be complete but raised several questions as to the thoroughness of the 
information submitted, especially as it related to responding to the competitive review criteria, which 
is the determining factor for the Township Board in issuing a license. The applicant subsequently 
submitted additional information clarifying these items and providing additional information. 

The Township Board reviewed the matter and had a number of questions and concerns that were 
discussed in detail. Given that the Board had two members absent on the 2nd, the decision was made 
to bring this application back for further discussion on the 16th. 

Township Board Action 
The Township Board can approve or not approve a conditional permit in Zone 4 to Okemos Local 
Investments. Should a conditional permit be granted, the applicant will then need to apply for Special 
Use permit review, which will start with the Planning Commission and ultimately be reviewed and 
approved/denied by the Township Board. The previous Staff report from March 27, 2024 is attached 
to this memo for reference. Staff looks forward to the additional discussion on this application. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commun~ A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us ------



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
'{ o ~~ s~~i, 
~ 

PREVIOUS 
REVIEW MEMO 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Township Board 

Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Community Planning and Development Director 

March 27, 2024 

Recreational Marijuana License Application 
Zone 4 - Okemos Local Investments 

The Recreational Marijuana Review Committee has completed their initial review of the applications 
that were submitted fo r recreational marijuana in the Township. Zone 4, which is located on the east 
side of Hagadorn Road, south of Mount Hope Road and the CSX Railroad tracks. One application was 
received in this Zone during the January application window the Township Board authorized. The 
applicant, Okemos Local Investments, was previously selected as a medical marijuana licensee, 
although their approval lapsed and no construction towards a facility was ever started. 

Application contents 
Staff reviewed the application based on the standards found in Section 40-68(2) of the Township 
Ordinances, which outlines the requirements for the submittal. Staffs review of the application 
determined that the application met all the requirements in the Ordinance, however we did ask the 
applicant for multiple clarifications, given the nature of the ownership structure, which includes 
several Iles, some of which are new as of earlier this year. This is not unusual in the industry, it just 
creates layers for Staff to research through. In total, the application meets the minimum standards of 
the Ordinance. 

Competitive Review Criteria 
Although only one application was received in Zone 4, the application was still reviewed by the 
Review Committee against the competitive review criteria, to determine if there were any areas that 
needed to be clarified or additional information submitted. 

a. The content and sufficiency of the information provided in the application for recreational 
marijuana licensing. 
All application deficiencies were resolved acceptably by the applicant. 

b. Whether the proposed licensed location is consistent with the land use for the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
The facility is proposed to be located in an area along Hagadorn Road that is on the edge of 
the built up area of the Road. There is an office building to the north, but to the south is one 
single-family home surrounded by a large amount of natural area. To the west is one of 
Michigan State University's research farms. The house proposed to be repurposed for the 
proposed facility is in need of repairs and refurbishment. The proposed use is consistent with 
the Master Plan designation for the property. 

c. Whether the applicant and its stakeholders have demonstrated competency in business 
operations and have a good reputation in the community and marihuana industry, viewed in 
light of history of compliance with state and local laws and regulations; whether the applicant 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
mer idian.mi.us 



Recreational Marijuana License - Okemos Local Investments 
Page2 

March 27, 2024 

or its stakeholders has held, or currently holds, any other state regulated license, including a 
CRA issued license or a liquor license; whether the applicant or its stakeholders currently 
operate or previously operated any other marihuana or state regulated businesses; reviews and 
references related to any ongoing business operations; and any other information or 
documentation that demonstrates good reputation and good moral character. 
The applicant. both corporate and individually, have not had a license, permit. or certificate 
issued by a licensing authority denied, restricted, revoked, or not renewed. 

d. The extent that proposed plans eliminate or minimize traffic, noise, and odor effects on the 
surrounding neighborhood. 
This application is relying on the fact that they are in a relatively unpopulated portion of the 
Township as the main inhibitor of negative externalities. They have limited detail on odor 
control, with basic systems in place to limit smells. They have acknowledged traffic through 
their traffic study, which indicates that a turn lane and taper lane are likely to be required by 
the Ingham County Road Department Given the location however, traffic would not be 
expected to be a major concern. 

e. Whether the applicant has demonstrated a dedication to Meridian Township and the 
community. 
The application largely did not address this issue. One of the proposed owners, however, is a 
resident of the Township and lives nearby the proposed facility. 

f How the application meets a number of physical site criteria, listed in the procedures. 
The property and house in question are in need of investment and rehabilitation and the 
applicant is proposing to do just that. The proposal will substantially improve the property and 
the corridor generally in this regard. The security plan is fairly basic at this time, following State 
guidelines. We will solicit further feedback from the Police Department during the Special Use 
Permit review process. 

g. Whether the applicant and its stakeholders have reasonably demonstrated that they possess 
sufficient financial resources to implement and carry out their proposed business plan and 
operations. In assessing this criterium, the Township should consider the scope of applicant's 
proposed business plan in conjunction with documentation of financial assets (i.e. bank 
statements, tax returns, documents denoting pecuniary interest utilized by the CRA), liabilities, 
and sources of funding. 
At this point, the applicant has provided no information about the financial backing of the 
project. This is something that will be addressed by the State, should this application proceed 
to licensing. 

h. Whether the applicant is an existing and operating medical marijuana Permit Holder within 
the Township and the length of time of such operations. 
This application was one of the originally selected medical marijuana applications, but they 
never proceeded to special use permit review or construction. 

i. Whether the planned signage for the proposed location is consistent with the land uses in the 
surrounding neighborhood and of such a design and location that is in harmony with the purpose 
and intent of the Zoning Ordinance and the Meridian Township Recreational Marihuana 
Ordinance. This includes, but is not limited to, the size, location, construction materials of the sign 
and/or design of the sign, logos, or lighting. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 

-.._ 



Recreational Marijuana License - Okemos Local Investments 
Page3 

Signage details have not been submitted at this time. 

March 27, 2024 

j. Whether the applicant has planned community outreach to the Township and its residents, 
including but not limited to planned educational services, charitable or philanthropic activity, 
community improvement, or other programs that will directly benefit the Township, Township 
services, or improve the health safety, and welfare of the Township and its residents. 
No information has been provided with respect to this standard of review. 

Township Board Action 
The Township Board can approve or not approve a conditional permit in Zone 4 to Okemos Local 
Investments .. Should a conditional permit be granted, the applicant will then need to apply for Special 
Use permit review, which will start with the Planning Commission and ultimately be reviewed and 
approved/denied by the Township Board. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 

-..._ 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~~li 
~ 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Board Members 

Timothy Schmitt, Interim Township Manager 

May 9, 2024 

13.B 

Re: Appointment to Ingham County Materials Management Planning Committee 

In 2022, Michigan's Solid Waste Program underwent significant updates with the passage of 
amendments to Part 115, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended. These amendments mandate the replacement of existing 
county Solid Waste Management Plans with new Materials Management Plans (MMP). These plans will 
emphasize sustainable materials management approaches, such as recycling and composting, rather 
than merely focusing on landfilling waste. 

This is to advise you that the Ingham County Board of Commissioners is soliciting applications for 
positions on the Ingham County Materials Management Planning Committee (MMPC) in order to 
prepare a Materials Management Plan (MMP) for Ingham County. 

The MMPC will be a permanent body that is appointed to direct the Designated Planning Agency (DPA) 
in the preparation of the County's Materials Management Plan. The MMPC will play a crucial role in the 
development of the County's MMP. Members must be residents of Ingham County, as required by 
County policy. 

The Ingham County Board of Commissioners is looking to fill the following positions for the MMPC: 
• A solid waste disposal facility operator 
• A representative of a hauler of managed material 
• A materials recovery facility operator 
• A composting facility or anaerobic digestor operator 
• A waste diversion, reuse, or reduction facility operator 
• A representative of an environmental interest group that has members residing in the 

planning area 
• An elected official of the county 
• An elected official of a township 
• An elected official of a city or village 
• A representative of a business that generates a managed material 
• A representative of the regional planning agency whose territory includes the planning 

A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO RECOMMEND THAT _____ .APPLY FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE INGHAM COUNTY 
MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE AS AN ELECTED OFFICIAL OF THE TOWNSHIP. 

Attachments: 
1. EGLE Materials Management Planning Quick Guide 
2. Ingham County Materials Management Planning Committee Stakeholder Letter 
3. Ingham County Appointment Application 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi,U$ 



EGLE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY 

Materials Management Planning 

QUICK GUIDE 

Materials Management Plans (MMP) are requ ired by amendments to Part 115. Solid Waste Management. 

of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act. 1994 PA 451. as amended (Part 115). 
specifically Supbart 11. Materials Management Plans. These changes focus on sustainable materials 
management approaches. such as recyling and compost ing, instead of primarily disposal. MMPs. once 

approved. will replace exisitng solid waste management plans. Th is document provides guidance to assist 

with the development of these new MMPs. 

CONTENTS 

Glossary of Terms .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Goals and Objectives of Materials Management Planning ............................................................ 3 

Materials Management Planning Overview ...................................................................................... 3 

Materials Management Plan Requirements ..................................................................................... 5 

Responsible Parties - Roles and Responsibilities ............................................................................ 8 

Plan Initiation Process ......................................................................................................................... 10 

County Approva l Agency .................................................................................................................... 12 

Designated Planning Agency ............................................................................................................ 13 

Materials Management Planning Committee ............................................................................... 14 

Plan Development and Approval Process ..................................................................................... 17 

Materials Management Planning Grants ....................................................................................... 21 

Multicounty Materials Management Planning .............................................................................. 22 

What resources are available? ......................................................................................................... 23 

Michigan.gov/ EGLE 800-662-9278 October 2023 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 2 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
Benchmark Recycling Standard (BRS):  a recycling curbside and drop-off access standard that each 
planning area must meet within the timelines identified in statute.  

County Board of Commissioners (BOC):  the elected governing body authorized to make policy decisions 
for the county, or the elected county executive, as appropriate. 

County Approval Agency (CAA):  the entity that assumes responsibility and is authorized to approve the 
MMP, by submitting a notice of intent for preparing the MMP.  The CAA may be a county board of 
commissioners, all the municipalities in a county acting jointly, or a regional planning agency.   

Designated Planning Agency (DPA):  the agency and a specific individual of the agency designated by the 
CAA that shall serve as the primary government resource in the planning area for the administering and 
developing the MMP.  “DPA” does not mean a regional planning agency, unless the CAA identifies the 
regional planning agency as the DPA. 

Disposal Area:  a facility that accepts solid waste for disposal, or handling prior to disposal, such as a 
landfill, incinerator, or solid waste processing and transfer facility.  

Diverted Waste:  waste generated by households, businesses, or government entities that can lawfully be 
disposed of at a municipal solid waste landfill or incinerator but is separated from other waste for better 
management.  Examples of diverted waste include batteries, pesticides, pharmaceuticals, light bulbs, 
sharps, mercury containing devices, hazardous materials, or liquid wastes.  

Managed Materials:  solid waste, diverted waste, or recyclable material. 

Materials Management Facility (MMF):  a disposal area, materials utilization facility, or waste diversion 
center. 

Materials Management Goal (MMG):  goals identified in an MMP that are measurable, objective, and 
specific to the planning area identified to divert recyclables and organics from disposal.  These goals 
include the municipal solid waste recycling rate goal, the benchmark recycling standards identified in Part 
115, and any additional material utilization and reduction activities identified by the MMP.  

Materials Management Planning Committee (MMPC):  a permanent body that is appointed by the CAA to 
direct the Designated Planning Agency in the preparation, coordination and ensures fulfillment of the 
MMP.  

Materials Utilization Facility (MUF):  a facility, such as a materials recovery facility, anaerobic digester, 
compost facility, or innovative technology facility that processes recyclable materials for conversion into 
raw materials, intermediate, or new products.  

Planning Area:  the geographic area included within a materials management plan. 

Regional Planning Agency:  the Governor appointed 14 separate regions within the State for planning 
purposes.  The Michigan Association of Regions map shows their geographical locations. 

Waste Diversion Center: a facility designated for the purpose of receiving or collecting diverted wastes. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 3 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING 

WHAT IS A MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLAN (MMP)? 
Each county is required by law, to have an MMP that assures 
adequate materials management capacity for all non-
hazardous solid waste generated in the county.  The plan will 
also assure that managed material is collected, processed, or 
disposed at facilities that are consistent with the county plan 
and comply with state laws and rules.  This can include 
organics, recyclables, solid waste, and other materials.  MMPs 
will also identify and regulate local criteria for siting of all 
materials management facilities, such as landfills, solid waste 
processing and transfer facilities, materials recovery facilities, 
composting facilities, and anaerobic digesters. 

HOW DO PLANS HELP A COUNTY? 

• Gives a county a tool in its authority over management of solid waste, recyclables, organics, and
other related activities within their county.

• Allows for mechanisms to fund and promote materials management methods like recycling and
composting.

• Illustrates the county's materials management infrastructure (existing and new).

• Defines county or regional needs, goals, and identifies possible areas of growth.

• Encourages collaboration through partnerships to manage materials that are generated.

• Funds the effort to inventory current materials management facilities and available capacity.

• Helps establish current generation of organics, recyclable materials, and solid waste.

• Identifies gaps and local needs for infrastructure and services.

 

The materials 
management plan is not 
the end-goal.  The goal is to 
create and implement a 
robust materials 
management system. 

Once developed, the MMP becomes a tool and the authority 
to implement the vision set by the planning area. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 4 

 

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING OVERVIEW 
Materials management planning is a program designed to guide the management of counties’ materials, 
with an emphasis on increasing sustainable practices, such as recycling and composting, in addition to 
ensuring safe disposal options.  These materials can include food waste, yard clippings, recyclables, other 
source separated materials, and solid waste.  Part 115 establishes statewide recycling goals and 
standards, and the MMP will identify an implementation strategy to meet those goals.  MMPs will identify 
existing materials management facilities and the facilities needed to meet the plan goals, identify capacity 
required to manage its generated materials, and a siting process to develop new and required facilities.  

WHAT DO I NEED TO KNOW ABOUT PLANS? 
• MMPs will be required for each county, developed as a single or multicounty MMP.  

• MMPs will focus on comprehensive materials management, including recycling, composting, other 
diversion activities, and disposal. 

• MMPs will establish goals with measurable objectives to divert recyclables and organics from 
disposal, while also increasing recycling access and education. 

• EGLE will initiate the planning process in September 2023.  

• Counties will have 3 years to complete the planning process, including the MMP development and 
local approvals. 

• Maximum timeframes are established throughout the development and approval process.  

• Funding will be available annually for MMP development, implementation, and maintenance.  

• Additional funding will be available for counties that participate in multicounty planning. 

• MMPs replace existing solid waste management plans, once approved. 

• This shift to more sustainable materials management strategies aligns with Michigan's MI Healthy 
Climate Plan. 

WHO IS INVOLVED IN PLANNING ACTIVITIES?  
Materials management planning will require coordination and collaboration across county and local 
governments and the materials management industry.  Below are the main entities. 

• County Approval Agency (CAA).   

• Designated Planning Agency (DPA). 

• Materials Management Planning Committee (MMPC). 

 See the following for more details. 

  



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 5 

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS 
An MMP shall include the following requirements: 

• Measurable, objective, and specific goals of the planning area, for solid waste diversion from
disposal areas, including, but not limited to, the municipal solid waste recycling rate, the
benchmark recycling standards, and the material utilization and reduction activities identified by
the MMP.

• An implementation strategy for the county to demonstrate progress toward or to meet the
materials management goals by the time of the 5-year MMP review.  The strategy will include:

o How progress will be made to reduce the amount of organic material being disposed
of, through food waste reduction, composting, and anaerobic digestion.

o How progress will be made to reduce recyclable materials being disposed of through
increased recycling, including expanding convenient access and recycling at single and
multifamily dwellings, businesses, and institutions.

• A description of the resources needed for meeting the materials management goals and how
the development of necessary materials utilization facilities and activities will be promoted.

o A description of how the benchmark recycling standards will be met.

o A timetable for implementation.
• All managed material generated in the planning area will be identified by type and tonnage, to

determine the planning area's managed material capacity needs and that all managed material
is included in the planning area's materials management goals.

• Require that a proposed materials management facility meets the requirements of Part 115 and
is consistent with the materials management goals.

• Identify and evaluate current and planned materials management infrastructure and systems
that contribute or will contribute to meeting the materials management goals.

• Include an inventory of the names and addresses of the following:

o Existing disposal areas.

o Materials utilization facilities.

o Waste diversion centers.

• Contain a facility inventory that shall, at a minimum, include the following information:

o A summary of deficiencies, if any, in meeting current materials management needs.

o The facility latitude and longitude.

o The estimated facility acreage.

o A description of the materials managed.

o The processes for handling materials at the facility.

o The total authorized capacity of the facility.

o Include acknowledgement by the facility for capacity purposes, if applicable.



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 6 

• If the inventoried facilities do not provide sufficient capacity for managed materials, the MMP
shall identify specific strategies, including a schedule and approach to develop and fund
needed capacity.

• Ensure that the materials management facilities that are identified as necessary to be sited can
be developed.

• An enforceable mechanism to meet the goals of the MMP and implement the MMP.

• Calculate the municipal solid waste recycling rate for the planning area.

• Describe the materials management transportation infrastructure.

• Include current and projected population densities and identify population centers and centers
of managed material generation in the planning area, to demonstrate that the capacity required
for managed material is met.

• Describe the mechanisms by which municipalities in the planning area will ensure convenient
recycling access, such as one or more of the following:

o Assignment of the responsibility to the county or an authority.
o A franchise agreement.
o An intergovernmental agreement.
o Municipal service.
o Licensing under an ordinance.
o A public-private partnership.

• Specify a recommended minimum level of recycling service that incorporates the access
requirements of the benchmark recycling standards.

• Identify the DPA and the entity or entities responsible for each of the MMP’s responsibilities.

• With respect to education and outreach for residents and businesses in the planning area, do
both of the following:

o Provide a strategic plan that identifies roles, responsibilities, funding sources, and
methods for persons providing the education and outreach services.

o Describe the county or regional role in providing continuing recycling education.  The
recycling education shall include, but is not limited to, providing a recycling guide both in
hard copy at select public locations and electronically on a cell phone-friendly website.
The recycling guide shall do the following:

 Identify recycling locations.

 Identify recyclable materials.

 Explain how to prepare recyclable materials for collection.

 Describe other best practices.

The county or municipality within the planning area may, through an appropriate enforceable 
mechanism, require haulers operating in its jurisdiction to provide the recommended level or a 
different minimum level of recycling service. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 7 

• Include a listed telephone number for additional information. Include a siting process and a
copy of any ordinance, law, rule, or regulation of a municipality, county, or governmental
authority within the planning area that applies to the siting process.

• Take into consideration the MMPs of counties adjacent to the planning area, as they relate to
the planning area's needs.

• Document all opportunities for participation and involvement of the public, all affected agencies,
parties, and the private sector, in the preparation of the MMP.

• An MMP may include management plans for debris from environmental damage, for debris from
disasters, or for other materials, such as construction or demolition waste, not otherwise
required to be covered by an MMP.

• If a solid waste landfill is proposed to be developed in the planning area within two (2) miles of a
municipality that is located adjacent to the planning area, or if a solid waste processing and
transfer facility or materials utilization facility is proposed to be developed in the planning area
within one (1) mile of such a municipality, both of the following apply:

o The CAA shall notify the legislative body of the adjacent municipality, of the proposed
development, in writing.  The notice shall include a copy of this subsection.

o The planning committee shall provide the adjacent municipality an opportunity to
comment on the proposed development.

• An MMP shall include a siting process with a set of minimum criteria.

o The siting process shall not include siting criteria that are more restrictive than state law,
if a materials utilization facility could not be developed anywhere in the planning area
under those criteria.

o A materials utilization facility need not be sited, if the CAA or DPA demonstrates to the
department that the planning area has available capacity sufficient to address the
managed materials identified by the MMP as being generated in the planning area.



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 8 

RESPONSIBLE PARTIES - ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLAN (MMP) PARTIES AND GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES: 
• The County Board of Commissioners or elected county executive, municipalities within the county,

or the regional planning agency may assume responsibility for a planning area.  This responsible
entity becomes the CAA.

• The CAA will appoint a DPA to develop the MMP.
• The CAA will also appoint an MMPC to identify planning area priorities and direct the DPA for MMP

preparation.

COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS (BOC) DUTIES: 
• Receives the request from EGLE to prepare an MMP.

• May file the Notice of Intent (NOI) to prepare the MMP or decline to prepare the MMP.

• If the BOC declines preparation of the MMP, they shall advise the municipalities and the Regional
Planning Agency (RPA) of their decision.

• Receives MMP grant money from EGLE and distributes it to the CAA.

• Automatically responsible for Plan implementation, if EGLE prepares the MMP.

NOTE.  If the BOC declines to submit the NOI, the municipalities or RPA can request an extension to allow 
the parties an opportunity to determine who will file the NOI.  If an NOI is not filed, EGLE may 
prepare the MMP. 

COUNTY APPROVAL AGENCY DUTIES: 
• Serves as the primary responsible party.

• Responsible for MMP implementation.

• Consults with adjacent counties regarding interest in preparing a multicounty MMP.

• Appoints the DPA.

• Appoints an MMPC.

• Oversees the creation and implementation of the DPA’s work program.

• Utilizes the MMP Grant funds for MMP development and implementation.

• Approves the MMP prior to municipal approval.

• Approves MMP modifications, if needed.

• Certifies to the Department the progress toward meeting all components of its materials
management goals.



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 9 

DESIGNATED PLANNING AGENCY DUTIES: 
• Serves as the primary government resource in the planning area for information about the MMP

and the MMP development process.

• Prepares the MMP work program.

• Prepares the MMP.

• Consults with all affiliated entities.

• Publishes required public notices.

• Obtains written approvals from the Planning Committee, CAA, and municipalities.

• Manages the public comment process.

• Drafts language for review and approval of the Planning Committee.

• Ensures approval process and submittals comply with Part 115.

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE (PLANNING COMMITTEE/MMPC) 

DUTIES: 
• Directs the DPA in the preparation of the MMP.

• Reviews and approves the DPA work program.

• Identifies relevant local policies and priorities.

• Ensures coordination in the preparation of the MMP.

• Advises county (or counties if multi-county) and municipalities.

• Ensures that the DPA is fulfilling all the requirements and rules promulgated under this part, as to
both the content of the MMP and the public participation requirement.

• Notifies the applicable parties of any identified deficiencies.

• Approves the MMP prior to public comment.

• Provides the final level of approval of the MMP before it is presented for CAA approval.

EGLE PREPARED MMP 
• If EGLE is responsible for preparing the MMP for two or more counties, EGLE may include those

counties in the planning area of a single MMP and may exercise its powers and perform its duties
for those counties jointly.

• EGLE will develop an MMP using the standard format and having specific requirements, as required
by Section 11580 of Part 115.

• MMP Grant funds may be used by the department for MMP preparation.

• The BOC is automatically responsible for the EGLE prepared Plan implementation.



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 10 

PLAN INITIATION PROCESS

OUTLINE OF STEPS: 

STEP 1:  EGLE Director Initiates the MMP Process (THE COUNTY HAS 180 DAYS TO FILE THE NOI). 

STEP 2:  CAA Responsibility Determined. 

STEP 3:  Multicounty Planning Consideration. 

STEP 4:  Develop Interlocal Agreement for a Multicounty MMP (if applicable). 

STEP 5:  Submit Notice of Intent (NOI) to EGLE and CAA Confirmed. 

DETAILS OF STEPS: 

STEP 1:  EGLE Director Initiates MMP process. 
EGLE will request each county BOC or County Executive, as appropriate, to submit an NOI to prepare 
an MMP.  The NOI shall be submitted within 180 days of this request.   

STEP 2:  CAA Responsibility Determined. 
Each county BOC will have the first opportunity to assume responsibility for the MMP and complete 
the  initial tasks required of the CAA.   If the BOC declines this responsibilities, then all municipalities 
in the county jointly or the RPA may elect to take the CAA responsibilities. If the municipalities and the 
RPA declines the CAA responsibilities, EGLE shall write the MMP on behalf of the County.   

NOTE: A formal decision by resolution or similar mechanism will be required to document either a 
confirmation or a rejection of each county or RPA, as appropriate, regarding the CAA entity decision. 

If the BOC declines to become the CAA, they will give up their authority for ALL responsibilities for the 
MMP and the entity that becomes the CAA will be granted those responsibilities in lieu of the BOC. 

Multicounty plans will follow the same procedure for approval of a single county plan.  Each county 
represented in multicounty plan will confirm its own CAA, then jointly designate a single DPA, and 
enter an interlocal agreement for preparation of the multicounty plan.   

STEP 3:  Multicounty Planning Consideration 
Before submitting the NOI, each CAA shall consult with each adjacent county regarding the option of 
preparing a multicounty MMP.  Documentation of these consultations is required to be submitted 
with each NOI.  Please see Section 11571(7) for additional information.   

STEP 4:  Develop Interlocal Agreement for a Multicounty MMP (if applicable). 
For those counties that intend to develop a multicounty MMP, an interlocal agreement must be 
developed between all counties preparing its MMP.  Documentation of an executed interlocal 
agreement is required to be submitted with each NOI, if applicable. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 11 

STEP 5:  Submit Notice of Intent to EGLE and CAA Confirmed. 
Once the NOI is submitted the entity is then confirmed as the CAA.  Each CAA shall submit the 
following items as part of their NOI submittal: 

• NOI indicating which entity will become the CAA, accepting responsibility for the preparation
and responsibilities of the MMP development, implementation, and authorities.

• Documentation indicating the CAA consulted with each adjacent county regarding the option
of preparing a multicounty MMP.

• Documentation of the outcome of the above adjacent county consultation, including a copy of
any interlocal agreement identifying the process for creating a multicounty MMP.

NEXT STEPS:  For next steps, see the Plan Development and Approval section of this Guide. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 12 

COUNTY APPROVAL AGENCY 
The CAA is the entity that assumes responsibility and authority over the MMP.  The CAA will be responsible 
for approving and implementing the MMP, determining whether to pursue multicounty planning with 
adjacent counties, and filing an NOI.  This section contains the steps and guidance for determining the 
CAA, as well as its roles and responsibilities. 

DETERMINATION OF THE CAA: 
• The BOC will receive the initial request from EGLE to

prepare an MMP.

• The BOC may accept or decline responsibilities to
prepare the MMP

• If the BOC files the NOI with a response of "accept,"
they are assuming responsibility of the MMP, and are
declaring themselves the CAA.

• If the BOC declines preparation of the MMP, they shall
advise the municipalities and the RPA of their decision.

• The municipalities, acting jointly, or the RPA, then have
the option to file the NOI and become the CAA.

• If the BOC declines, if needed, the municipalities or the
RPA can request an extension of the deadline to file
the NOI to make their determination.  If no NOI is filed
or all entities decline, EGLE will prepare the MMP, and
it will be final.

NOTE.  Before filing the NOI, the entity who chooses to do so 
must also complete various pre-planning activities, 
including consulting with adjacent counties to gauge 
interest in a multicounty MMP and completing an interlocal 
agreement if pursuing a multicounty MMP. 

Once the CAA files the NOI and all supporting documentation, it is recommended that the CAA immediately 
start the next steps in the MMP development process because the filing of the NOI triggers a 180-day time 
limit to complete all the following tasks: 

• Appoint the DPA.

• Appoint the MMPC.

• The DPA Prepares the Work Program.

• The MMPC Approves the Work Program.

• EGLE Approves the Work Program.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CAA: 
 Primarily responsible for all aspects of

the MMP.
 Responsible for MMP implementation.
 Consults with adjacent counties

regarding preparing a multicounty
MMP prior to filing the NOI.

 Appoints the DPA.
 Appoints a Materials Management

Planning Committee.
 Oversees the creation and

implementation of the DPA’s work
program.

 Utilizes the MMP Grant funds for MMP
development and implementation -
this will be distributed initially to the
BOC or County Executive, and then
must be sent to the CAA.

 Approves the MMP prior to municipal
approval.

 Approves MMP modifications, if
needed.

 Certifies to EGLE the progress toward
meeting all components of its materials
management goals.



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 13 

DESIGNATED PLANNING AGENCY (DPA) 
The DPA is the agency, and an individual within that agency, identified as the primary contact person for 
administering and preparing the MMP.  [Section 11574].  

DPA RESPONSIBILITIES: 
• Serves as the primary government resource in the planning area for information about the MMP

and leads the MMP development process.

• Under the direction of the MMPC, prepares the MMP using the EGLE provided format, solicits public
comment, and obtains MMP approval.

• During the preparation of the MMP, solicits the advice of and consults with the following
organizations:

o Municipalities, various organizations related to materials management, and the private
sector, such as materials management facility operators, in the planning area.

o The county or regional planning agency.
o Counties and municipalities in counties that are adjacent to the planning area.

Public Notice and Comments: 
At least 10 days before each public meeting where the DPA will discuss the MMP, a notice of the meeting 
must be given to the elected official of each municipality within the planning area, to adjacent 
communities, and to anyone else within the planning area that requests notice of these meetings.  The 
notice shall indicate as precisely as possible the subject matter being discussed. 

Once the MMP is drafted and approved by the MMP Committee, the DPA is required to: 

• Share the MMP draft for public review and comment for a minimum of 60 days.

• Conduct a public hearing on the MMP during the public comment period.  A public notice of the
hearing must be published at least 30 days prior to the hearing.

• Publish the notice in a newspaper, or by electronic media, with major circulation or viewership in
the planning area.  The notice must state where to find the draft MMP, the end date of the public
comment period, and solicit public comment.  Online notices must remain posted until the end of
the public comment period.  This notice may also serve as the public hearing notice.

• Provide a copy of the MMP along with a notice of the end of the public comment period to:
o EGLE.
o Each municipality within the planning area.
o Counties and municipalities adjacent to the planning area that may be significantly affected

by the MMP or that have requested the opportunity to review the MMP.
o The regional planning agency for each county in the planning area.

• Submit a summary of comments received during the public comment period to the MMPC.

• Revise the MMP based on public comment, as directed by the MMPC.  The DPA has 30 days from
the end of the public comment period to resubmit the MMP to the planning committee, if applicable.

• The DPA must ensure that the MMP approval process has been followed.  See the Materials
Management Planning Committee section of this document more details.



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 14 

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE 
The MMPC/Planning Committee is a permanent body that is appointed to direct the DPA  in the 

preparation of the MMP.  [Section 11572 and 11573]  

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MMPC 
• Directs the DPA in the preparation of the MMP.

• Reviews and approves the DPA work program.

• Identifies relevant local policies and priorities.

• Ensures coordination in the preparation of the MMP.

• Advises counties and municipalities regarding the MMP.

• Ensures the DPA is fulfilling the requirements of Part 115, including the MMP’s content and public
participation.

• Notifies the DPA and applicable parties of any deficiencies in the MMP or the process.

• Approves the MMP prior to public comment.

• Provides the final level of MMP approval before it is presented for CAA approval.

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
• Initial members are appointed for a 5-year term.

• After initial 5-year term there should be a period of staggered appointments (2, 3, 4, and 5-year
terms; the following example of Staggered Appointments).

• After staggered positions are established, their successors should be appointed for 5-year terms.

• Members can be reappointed.

• Vacancies should be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as the original appointment.

• Members can be removed by CAA due to incompetence, dereliction of duty, or malfeasance,
misfeasance, or nonfeasance in office.



5-Year 

Appointment 

5-Year Staggered 

Appointment 

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING - QUICK GUIDE 

Exampled of Staggered Appointments 

5-Year 

Appointment 

4-Year Staggered 
Appointment 

5-Year 

Appointment 

3-Year Staggered 
Appointment 

5-Year 

Appointment 

NOi filed .. 

VOTING 

• A majority of members present at a meeting constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business. 

• An affirmative vote from the majority of the members appointed is requi red for officia l action to be 

taken. 

• The approval of a County and/ or Regional MMP requ ires the affirmative vote of a majority of the full 
planning committee. For example, if: 

o There are 13 total member positions (12 active members and 1 vacant posit ion). 

o When a vote is taken, a minimum of 7 affirmative votes are requ ired for that action to pass. 

o Votes needed are based on the total number of available positions, not how many are 

currently filled and/ or present at the meeting. 

Page I 15 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 16 

PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUIREMENTS 

All members must either provide services to or reside within the planning area and be defensible if 
challenged. 

Member Requirements 

• A solid waste disposal facility operator.

• A representative of a hauler of managed material.

• A materials recovery facility operator.

• A composting facility or anaerobic digestor operator.

• A waste diversion, reuse, or reduction facility operator.

• A representative of an environmental interest group that has members residing in the planning
area.

• An elected official of the county.

• An elected official of a township.

• An elected official of a city or village.

• A representative of a business that generates a managed material.

• A representative of the regional planning agency whose territory includes the planning area.

Optional Members/Scenarios 

• The CAA may appoint one additional representative that does business in or resides in an adjacent
community outside the planning area.

• If during the MMP development or amendment process, a solid waste landfill is proposed in the
planning area within 2 miles of a municipality that is located adjacent to the planning area, or if a
solid waste processing and transfer facility or materials utilization facility is proposed in the
planning area within 1 mile of such a municipality, the CAA shall notify the adjacent municipality in
writing.  This municipality may provide comment on the proposed development.

Optional Multicounty Planning Members 

In addition to the above committee members, each county in a multicounty plan may appoint the following 
additional members: 

• An elected official of the county or a municipality.

• A representative from a business that generates managed materials.

Minimum Planning Committee Members 

If the CCA has difficulty finding qualified individuals to serve on the planning committee, EGLE may 
approve a reduction in the number of members.  Contact EGLE for more details. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 17 

 PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL PROCESS 
This section details the steps to develop and approve the MMP and grant eligibility, after the 

EGLE Director initiates the MMP development process (Part 115, Sections 11571–11576, 11580, 
11587).    

STEP 1. NOI is filed and the responsible entity becomes the CAA within 180 days of EGLE’s request.  If 
an NOI was not filed by the BOC, the municipalities or RPA can request an extension from EGLE 
to allow the parties an opportunity to determine who will file the NOI with an EGLE approved 
extension. 

• If an NOI was filed, continue to Step 2.

• If an extension was requested by the municipalities or RPA from EGLE and approved by
EGLE, continue to Step 2.

• If an extension was not requested or an NOI was not filed, EGLE shall prepare the MMP.  The
EGLE prepared MMP is final, and the process ends.

The CAA has a total of 36 months from the date an NOI is filed to complete its portions of the 
process. 

STEP 2. After the NOI is submitted, the following must be completed: 

• The CAA establishes the DPA. The CAA will have the option to identify a DPA while filing its
NOI.  This is highly recommended to give the DPA ample time to complete the remaining
tasks.  However, the CAA has up to 120 days to officially appoint their DPA.

• Within 180 days: The CAA appoints the MMPC; the DPA will draft the Work Program; the
MMPC approves Work Program and submits the Work Program to EGLE; EGLE approves the
Work Program.  All tasks must be completed within this 180-day given timeframe.

The CAA is grant eligible once an NOI is filed, a DPA and MMPC have been appointed, and a Work Program 
has been approved by the MMPC and EGLE.  It is recommended to begin MMP drafting and development 
while waiting for MMP grant distribution, to ensure the 36-month total timeframe is met. 

STEP 3. The MMP is drafted. 

STEP 4. The MMPC approves the draft MMP. 

STEP 5. The MMP goes to public comment for a minimum of 60 days.  During this time, a public hearing 
is conducted by the DPA. 

• The public hearing notice shall be published at least 30 days prior to the public hearing
date.  Documentation must be provided to EGLE.

STEP 6. Once the public comment period and hearing are completed, the DPA has 30 days to revise the 
draft MMP based on comments received and send the draft MMP back to the MMPC for 
approval, if applicable.  



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 18 

STEP 7. The MMPC approves the MMP by majority vote within 30 days after the DPA has sent the 
revised draft MMP back for final approval. 

STEP 8. The CAA must approve or reject the MMP within 60 days after the MMPC has approved the 
MMP. 

• If the CAA approves the MMP, continue to Step 9. 

• If the CAA does not approve the MMP within 30 days, the CAA sends the MMP back to the 
MMPC with objections.  

o The MMPC then responds to the CAA within 30 days. 

o The CAA acts on the MMP. 

 If the CAA approves the MMP, continue to Step 9. 

 If the CAA does not approve the MMP, the CAA prepares its own MMP, then continues 
to Step 10. 

STEP 9. Within 10 business days of CAA approval, the DPA sends the MMP to all municipalities in the 
County. 

STEP 10. Municipalities are given 120 days to approve or reject the MMP.  

• Only those municipalities that voted within the 120 days will count toward approval or 
rejection of the MMP.  All municipalities that have not responded within the 120-day 
timeframe will NOT count toward the 67 percent. 

• If 67 percent of the municipalities that acted on the MMP within 120 days approve of the 
plan, continue to Step 11.  

• NOTE: 67 percent of the municipalities that respond to the vote must approve the MMP.  

• If 67 percent of municipalities that voted within 120 days do not approve the MMP, then 
EGLE will prepare the MMP, it will be final, and the process ends.  

• NOTE:  ALL tasks to this point must be completed within 36 months. 

STEP 11. 30 days after the municipalities review and approve the MMP, the DPA shall submit the MMP to 
EGLE for final review, continue to Step 12. 

After the MMP is submitted by the DPA, EGLE has 180 days to review.  The review can be 
extended by another 90 days if modifications are needed to bring the MMP into compliance with 
Part 115. 

STEP 12. If EGLE approves the MMP, the MMP is final, and the process is complete.  If EGLE does not 
approve the MMP, EGLE may prepare or modify the MMP, and the process continues to 
Step 13. 

STEP 13. EGLE submits the MMP to the CAA.  If the CAA approves the EGLE modifications of the MMP, the 
MMP is final, and the process is complete.  If the CAA does not approve the EGLE modifications 
to the MMP, EGLE prepares the final MMP, and the process is complete. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 19 

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLAN APPROVAL PROCESS 

Materials Management Plan 
(MMP) is Initiated by EGLE 

Director 

Each County Board of Commissioners (BOC) must 
file a Notice of Intent (NOi) with the EGLE within 

180 days. 

r 
Yes 

NOTE : If the County declines to prepare the MMP, >----~ 
the County shall advise the municipalities and the 
Regional Planning Agency (RPA) of their decision. 
Whichever entity files the NOi becomes the County 

NOTES: 

Approval Agency (CAA). 

No 

The municipalities or RPA can request 
an extension to allow the parties 

opportunity to determine Who will file the 
NOi. 

EGLE shall prepare the MMP. 

1) The initial MMP development process shall only be 
initiated by the EGLE Director. 

2) All meetings shall be open to the public and require at 
least 10 days notice be given to the chief elected official of 
eaeh municipa lity within the planning area and any other 
person requesting notice 

3) All approval steps must be completed within the given 
timeframe. If the MMP iS neither approved nor rejected by 
the established deadline; the MMP is considered 
automatically approved at that step in the approval process. 
and the approval process shall continue at the next step. 

The CAA establishes the Designated Planning Agency (DPA) within 
120 days; oversees the creation of the DPA's work program; and 

appoints Materials Management Planning Committee (MMPC). The 
MMPC approves work program and EGLE approves work program 

within 180 days. 

MMP is MMPC approves dran MMP 

MMP goes to public comment 
for minimum 60 days and 

holds a public hearing within 
this timeframe 

(MMPC meets in public to direct drafting of the MMP. DPA supports process­
notices, minutes, mailings, etc and prepares MMP as direcled-) 

CAA must approve 
or reject within 

60 days. 

MMP Grant Funds see Section 11587(2) for authorized uses. 

NOTE: A NOi filed; DPA identified; MMPC appointed; work program approved by 
MMPC and EGLE shall be required lo be eligible for the MMP Grant. 

MMPC Approves MMP by 
majority vote within 

30 days. 

Does the CAA >------No--------, 
approve the MMP? 

Within 30 days, 
CAA sends back to 

MMPC with objections. 

Yes 

Within 1 0 business days of 

The public hearing notice shall be published 
at least 30 days prior to the public hearing 

date. (Documentation must be provided) 

DPA has 30 days to revise the dran MMP 
send back to MMPC for approval, ii applicable. 

Yes 

MMPC responds to 
CAA within 30 days. 

Does the CAA 
approve the MMP? 

CAA approval, the MMP goes 1+----------------------------------__J 
to all municipalities in county 

I 
No 

for local approval. 

Do 67% of municipalities that voted within 120 
days approve the MMP? 

AIi municipalities that /Jave not responded wit/Jin 
the 120-day time-frame will NOT count toward 

tlle67%. 

All tasks must be 
completed within 

36 months to this point. 

No 

l 

Yes 

30 days after the municipal review and approval has been 
completed, DPA shall submit the MMP to EGLE for review. 

EGLE has 180 days to review MMP and can extend another 
90 days. if modifications are needed to bring the MMP into 

compliance with Part 115. 

CAA prepares its own MMP. 

Does EGLE approve the MMP? f-Yes----~ 
I 

No 

EGLE may prepare or modify 
the MMP. 

EGLE shall prepare the MMP. 14-----------------Nr>------------------l 
Does the CAA 

approve the EGLE 
modifications? 

4) Toe CAA has a total or 36 months to complete all its 
portions or- the process. See section 11580 for 

EGLE prepared plan 
requ irements . 

Yes 

MMP is final. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 20 

NOTES 
• All meetings shall be open to the public and require at least 10-day notice be given to the chief

elected official of each municipality within the planning area and any other person requesting
notice.

• All approval steps must be completed within the given timeframe.  If the MMP is neither
approved nor rejected by the established deadline, the MMP is considered automatically
approved at that step in the approval process, and the approval process shall continue at the
next step.

• The CAA has a total of 36 months to complete all its portions of the process.

EGLE PREPARED MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS 
• Materials utilization facilities or solid waste processing and transfer facilities are automatically

found to be consistent with the MMP if they: (1) are exempt from permit and license
requirements; (2) comply with local zoning requirements; and (3) that are identified in the MMP.

• The MMP cannot approve any non-contiguous additional solid waste landfill disposal capacity
unless the BOC has shown a demonstrated need (Section 11509(9)).

• The MMP shall require all haulers servicing the planning area, per Part 115, to provide recycling
access per the Benchmark Recycling Standard.

Further, an EGLE prepared MMP will not contain a requirement for additional siting criteria or the criterion 
that the Host Community provides an approval for the development of any facility. 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING - QUICK GUIDE 

• MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING GRANTS 

WHO IS ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE FUNDING? 

Each county that applies and meets the eligibility requirements will receive funding. Funds will be granted 

to the BOC once the grant application and agreement are approved. If the BOC is not identified as the 

CAA, then it is the responsibi lity of the BOC to distribute the funds to the appropriate CAA within 60 days 
after receipt of the funds. If EGLE is preparing the MMP for the County, the funds may be utilized by EGLE. 

How CAN FUNDING BE USED? 

Funds can be used for preparing, implementing, and maintaining an MMP. Including: 

• Development of a work program as described in Section 11587 of Part 115. 

• Developing and amending an MMP. 

• Ensuring public participation. 

• Resources used to determine whether new facilities are consistent with the MMP. 

• Collecting, submitting, and evaluating data for the database for facility reporting purposes. 

• Recycling education and outreach. 

• Establishing and continuing recycling and materials utilization programs consistent with the goals. 

• Preparation of required reports to EGLE. 

• Efforts to obtain support for the MMP and planning process. 

• Other efforts related to MMP implementation. 

Funds can be used for implementation, however, the MMP development costs take precedence, and an 
Implementation Work Program has been approved as part of the MMP Grant Agreement. 

WHEN IS FUNDING AVAILABLE? 

These grants will be awarded annually. To receive 
funds in the first 3 years, the CAA must have: 

• Appointed the DPA. 
• Appointed the MMPC. 
• A Work Program Prepared by the DPA. 
• A Work Program Approved by the MMPC. 
• A Work Program approved by EGLE. 

The Work Program must conta in activities for 

developing and implementing the MMP and must 
show associated costs to be covered by the 

County and the grant. Grantees must keep 

records documenting use of grant monies. 

How LONG IS FUNDING AVAILABLE? 

How MUCH FUNDING IS AVAILABLE? 

Grants will be ca lculated using the following: 

• $60,000 for each county in the planning 
area. 

• $10,000 additional for each county in a 
multicounty planning area. 

• For the first 3 years, an additional 50 cents 
per capita of each county* . up to $300,000. 

*Based on the 2020 Census Data 

Per capita money will not be available for 
future MMP development. 

Funding is established by the Income Tax Act Of 1967 Act 281 Of 1967, specifically Section 206.51g, 
Renew Michigan Fund, and is subject to appropriation. 

Page I 21 



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 22 

MULTICOUNTY MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
In many cases, MMPs for a multicounty area may be more effective and efficient than plans developed for 
single counties.  Multicounty MMPs may improve operations, costs, environmental outcomes, education 
and outreach efforts, and market development.  Each county is required to consult with adjacent counties 
to consider multicounty planning and additional grant funds are available for counties participating in a 
multicounty MMP. 

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A MULTICOUNTY MMP 
• An MMP may include two or more counties if each of those counties agree to the joint exercise

of powers and performance of the duties under Subpart 11 for the BOC and of the CAAs.

• Multicounty MMPs are subject to the same procedure for approval as single-county MMPs. A
multicounty MMP shall include a process to ensure that the MMP requirements are met.

• CAAs preparing a multicounty MMP, shall appoint a single planning committee.  For each
county, additional planning committee members may be appointed:

o An elected official of the county or a municipality in the planning area.
o A representative from a business that generates managed materials within the planning

area.

MULTICOUNTY COLLABORATION 
Counties will be required to document that they contacted, at a minimum, their adjacent counties, 
regarding the option and interest in preparing a multicounty MMP.  Documentation memorializing the 
outcome and any interlocal agreements identifying the process for creating a multicounty MMP will be 
submitted to EGLE with each county’s NOI. 

NOTE: Counties consulted may reside outside the state-designed planning region. 

THE BENEFITS OF MULTICOUNTY PLANNING 
There are several benefits of creating and implementing a multicounty MMP, including additional grant 
funding.  Each eligible county will receive $60,000 plus, for the first three years, $0.50 per capita, not to 
exceed $300,000.  Counties collaborating in a multicounty plan will each receive an additional $10,000 
per year.  In addition, collaborating counties can: 

• Improve efficiencies, reduces costs and allows for shared implementation costs.
• Streamline access to regional facilities and haulers.
• Identify solutions with counties facing similar challenges and opportunities.
• Use a standardized educational campaign for the planning area.
• Reduce contamination and increase marketability and value of materials.
• Reduce the need to have or create program expertise in each county.
• Increase service options for the region, making it easier to meet capacity and access requirements.
• Provide a larger pool of potential MMPC representatives.



MATERIALS MANAGEMENT PLANNING – QUICK GUIDE 

Page | 23 

WHAT RESOURCES ARE AVAILABLE? 
• MMP Toolbox

• Email: EGLE Planning Staff

• Materials Management Planning Program Staff Map

• Recycling Program Staff Map

• Regional Planning Agencies

• County DPA Contacts

• Materials Management Facilities ArcGIS Map

• Funding Opportunities (see Planning Website)

• Mega Data Collection Project

Visit Michigan.gov/EGLEMMP or contact EGLE-MMP@Michigan.gov for more information. 

This publication is intended for guidance only and may be impacted by changes in legislation, rules, policies, 
and procedures adopted after the date of publication.  Although this publication makes every effort to teach 
users how to meet applicable compliance obligations, use of this publication does not constitute the rendering 
of legal advice. 

EGLE does not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, religion, age, national origin, color, marital status, 
disability, political beliefs, height, weight, genetic information, or sexual orientation in the administration of any 
of its programs or activities, and prohibits intimidation and retaliation, as required by applicable laws and 
regulations. 

To request this material in an alternate format, contact EGLE-Accessibility@Michigan.gov or 800-662-9278. 



CHAIRPERSON 
RYAN SEBOLT 
DISTRJCT9 

VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
CHRIS TRUBAC 
DISTRICT3 

VICE-CHAIRPERSON PRO TEM 
RANDY MAIVILLE 
J)JSTRJCT 1 

KARLA RUEST 
J)JSTRJCJ' 2 

TODD TENNIS 
DISTRICT./ 

MYLES JOHNSON 
DISTRICT5 

VICTOR CELENTINO 
DISTJUCT6 

THOMAS MORGAN 
DISTRICT7 

ROBERT PENA 
DISTRJCT8 

GABRIELLE LAWRENCE 
DJSTJUCT JO 

MARK GREBNER 
DISTRICT 11 

IRENE CAHILL 
DISTRICT 12 

SIMARPAWAR 
DISTRICT 13 

MARK POLSDOFER 
DISTRJCT 1./ 

MONICA SCHAFER 
DISTRICT 15 

Ingham County Board of Commissioners 

April 15, 2024 

Dear Stakeholder: 

INGHAM COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
PO. BOX 319 

MASON, MICHIGAN 48854-03 I 9 

TELEPHONE 517 676-7200 
FAX 517 676-7264 

web site: www.inghamorg 

BECKY BENNETT 
DIJWCTOR 

In 2022, Michigan's Solid Waste Program underwent significant updates with the passage 
of amendments to Part 115, Solid Waste Management, of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended. These amendments mandate the 
replacement of existing county Solid Waste Management Plans with new Materials 
Management Plans (MMP). These plans will emphasize sustainable materials management 
approaches, such as recycling and composting, rather than merely focusing on landfilling 
waste. 

This is to advise you that the Ingham County Board of Commissioners is soliciting 
applications for positions on the Ingham County Materials Management Planning 
Committee. The Ingham County Board of Commissioners is required by State Law to 
establish and appoint a Materials Management Planning Committee (MMPC) in order to 
prepare a Materials Management Plan (MMP) for Ingham County. 

The MMPC will be a permanent body that is appointed to direct the Designated Planning 
Agency (DPA) in the preparation of the County's Materials Management Plan. Initial 
members will be appointed for 5-year terms to this committee. The MMPC will play a 
crucial role in the development of the County's MMP, including approving the work 
program for development, advising the County and local municipalities regarding the MMP, 
ensuring compliance with state law in development, and reviewing, modifying, and 
approving prior to County and State approval. Members must be residents of Ingham 
County, as required by County policy. 

The member requirements of the MMPC, as per State law, are as follows: 

• A solid waste disposal facility operator. 
• A representative of a hauler of managed material. 
• A materials recovery facility operator. 
• A composting facility or anaerobic digestor operator. 
• A waste diversion, reuse, or reduction facility operator. 
• A representative of an environmental interest group that has members residing in the 

planning area. 
• An elected official of the county. 
• An elected official of a township. 
• An elected official of a city or village. 



• A representative of a business that generates a managed material. 
• A representative of the regional planning agency whose territory includes the 

planning area. 

The Ingham County Board of Commissioners invites applications from individuals who 
meet one or more of the requirements outlined for the member position(s) above. Due to the 
timeline required for this process by the State, applications for the MMPC must be received 
on or before May 10, 2024. 

Applications will be considered by the Human Services Committee of the Ingham County 
Board of Commissioners. Applicants will be considered for appointment to the Materials 
Management Planning Committee based on the member requirements defined by State law 
and by County policy, as well as consideration of the criteria used in selecting applicants for 
advisory boards used by the County. 

Individuals who are interested in applying for an MMPC member position should fill out 
the enclosed application form and return the form(s) to this office at the above-stated 
address or via email to bbennett(a~ingham.onr. The application form can also be found 
online at https:/ /bc.ingham.on.:!/ AppointedBoards.aspx, under the "Application for 
Appointment" tab. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, , 

~R 
Becky Bernie~, Director 
Board of Commissioners' Office 



APPLICATION FOR APPOJNTMENT 

APPLICANTS MUST BE RESIDENTS OF INGHAM COUNTY 

Submit completed application to: 

Ingham County Board of Commissioners, P.O. Box 319, Mason, MI 
48854 or fax to (517) 676-7264 or email to bbennett@ingham.org. 

Application for Appointment to: _________________________ _ 

Name: __________________________________ _ 

Address: _______________ City: ________ Zip: _ ______ _ 

Home/Cell Ph: Email: Work Ph: --------- ------------ -------

Occupation: _______________ Employer: _____________ _ 

Business Address: _____________ City: ________ .Zip: ______ _ 

Length of Residence in Ingham County: _ _____________________ _ 

Education: 

Relevant Organizations/ Affiliations: 

Relevant Ernployment/Voltm teer Experience: 



APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

Military Service (for Veterans Affairs Committee Applicants): 

Brief statement as to interest in serving on this board/conm1ission: 

Do you have any experience/issues with this board/commission or related deprutment? If so, please explain: 

APPLICATIONS WILL BE VOID AFTER EXPIRED TERM VACANCIES ARE FILLED 
UNLESS STATEMENT BELOW IS SIGNED. 

If not appointed, I wish my application to be kept on file for five months after expired term vacancies are filled and 
I understand after that time a new application may be necessary. 

Signature: _____________________________________ _ 

The applicant acknowledges that he or she serves at the pleasure of the Board of Commissioners and can be 
removed by the Board without cause unless a particular term is established by federal or state statute. 

Signature: 

If selected for a position on the Ingham County Fair Board, I hereby give my permission for Ingham County to 
conduct a criminal background check on me. 

Signature: --------------------------------------

INGHAM COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
'{ o ~~ s~~i, 
~ 

14.A (1) 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Township Board 

Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Interim Township Manager & Community Planning and Development Director 

May 2, 2024 

Recreational Marijuana License Application 
Zone 3 - DNVK 4 

The Recreational Marijuana Review Committee has completed their initial review of the applications 
that were submitted for recreational marijuana in the Township. Zone 3, which is the area roughly 
bounded by Central Park Drive, Grand River Avenue, and Marsh Road, with a few properties to the 
east of Central Park Drive, on Grand River Avenue, also included. Two applications were received in 
this Zone during the January application window the Township Board authorized and they will be 
analyzed separately. 

This applicant. DNVK 4, is also the previously selected medical marijuana licensee, although they are 
not yet open for medical marijuana sales and have indicated on their application that they would not 
be applying to the State of Michigan for a medical license at this location. 

Application Contents 
Staff reviewed the application based on the standards found in Section 40-68(2) of the Township 
Ordinances, which outlines the requirements for the submittal. Staffs review of the application 
determined that the application met all the requirements in the Ordinance. This is the first and only 
application that would involve the construction of a new building, on the vacant land at 1614 Grand 
River Avenue. The applicant has operated other facilities and there are no 
denials/restrictions/suspensions/revocations/etc with the other licensed facilities, although as we 
have discussed regarding all the licensees, there have been previous violations at other facilities. In 
total, the application meets the minimum standards of the Ordinance. 

competitive Review criteria 
The initial application was reviewed by the Review Committee against the competitive review 
criteria, to determine if there were any areas that needed to be clarified or additional information 
submitted and to make a recommendation which license should be issued. 

a. The content and sufficiency of the information provided in the application for recreational 
marijuana licensing. 
The Review Committee found no deficiencies in their application. 

b. Whether the proposed licensed location is consistent with the land use for the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
The facility is proposed to be located in a stand along building at the edge of the Township's 
commercial area along Grand River Avenue. The land is currently vacant and the owners are 
pursuing a number of additional uses for the site. The location is consistent with the Master 
Plan designation for the property and the surrounding uses. There are residential uses to the 
south, but the operation is such that this facility will operate no differently than a traditional 
retail outlet. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 



Recreational Marijuana License - DNVK 4 
Page 2 

May 2, 2024 

c. Whether the applicant and its stakeholders have demonstrated competency in business 
operations and have a 900d reputation in the community and marihuana industry, viewed in 
li9ht of history of compliance with state and local laws and re9ulations; whether the applicant 
or its stakeholders has held, or currently holds, any other state re9ulated license, includin9 a 
CRA issued license or a liquor license; whether the applicant or its stakeholders currently 
operate or previously operated any other marihuana or state re9ulated businesses; reviews and 
references related to any on9oin9 business operations; and any other information or 
documentation that demonstrates 900d reputation and 900d moral character. 
The applicant. both corporate and individually, have not had a license, permit. or certificate 
issued by a licensing authority denied, restricted, revoked, or not renewed. There have been 
violations at other facilities, but none that rise to a level of major concern. 

d. The extent that proposed plans eliminate or minimize traffic, noise, and odor effects on the 
surroundin9 nei9hborhood. 
The applicant has submitted a comprehensive odor control plan that Staff is confident will 
address any issues. Their noise and traffic are not expected to be more than a traditional retail 
outlet 

e. Whether the applicant has demonstrated a dedication to Meridian Township and the 
community. 
The application indicated a preference towards local hiring for the construction of the new 
building. Their staffing plan is solid and indicates a total of 15-20 new full time equivalents, all 
starting at a minimum of $18 /hr. 

f How the application meets a number of physical site criteria, listed in the procedures. 
They have a solid security plan in place and are estimating over $1 million dollars in 
construction value from the project, with another $750,000 from interior build out. They are 
aiming for LEED certification with the construction and have cited a number of 
environmentally friendly practices in their application. 

9. Whether the applicant and its stakeholders have reasonably demonstrated that they possess 
sufficient financial resources to implement and carry out their proposed business plan and 
operations. In assessin9 this criterium, the Township should consider the scope of applicant's 
proposed business plan in conjunction with documentation of financial assets (i.e. bank 
statements, tax returns, documents denotin9 pecuniary interest utilized by the CRA), liabilities, 
and sources of fundin9. 
The applicant has provided financial information showing that they have the capacity to take 
on the project and bring it to fruition. 

h. Whether the applicant is an existin9 and operatin9 medical marijuana Permit Holder within 
the Township and the len9th of time of such operations. 
The applicant is one of the original medical marijuana applicants, but never started 
construction due to the Covidl 9 pandemic. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 

-..._ 



Recreational Marijuana License - DNVK 4 
Page3 

May 2, 2024 

i. Whether the planned signage for the proposed location is consistent with the land uses in the 
surrounding neighborhood and of such a design and location that is in harmony with the purpose 
and intent of the Zoning Ordinance and the Meridian Township Recreational Marihuana 
Ordinance. This includes, but is not limited to, the size, location, construction materials of the sign 
and/or design of the sign, logos, or lighting. 
The applicant has not proposed signage at this time, as they have not chosen a trade name to 
do business under. They have committed to meeting all ordinance requirements and not be 
offensive, attractive to minors, or contain green crosses. 

j. Whether the applicant has planned community outreach to the Township and its residents, 
including but not limited to planned educational services, charitable or philanthropic activity, 
community improvement, or other programs that will directly benefit the Township, Township 
services, or improve the health, safety, and welfare of the Township and its residents. 
The applicant has outlined a community involvement program in their application. 

Township Board Action 
The Township Board can approve or not approve issuance of a conditional permit in Zone 3 to DNVK 
4. Should a conditional permit be granted, the applicant will then need to apply for Special Use permit 
review, which will start with the Planning Commission and ultimately be reviewed and 
approved/denied by the Township Board. 

Staff looks forward to discussing this matter with the Board and proceeding along the process that has 
been outlined for licensing of recreational marijuana facilities. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 

-..._ 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~~,, 
~ 

14A (2) 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Township Board 

Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Interim Township Manager & Community Planning and Development Director 

May 2, 2024 

Recreational Marijuana License Application 
Zone 3 - Amsterdam CC 

The Recreational Marijuana Review Committee has completed their initial review of the applications 
that were submitted for recreational marijuana in the Township. Zone 3, which is the area roughly 
bounded by Central Park Drive, Grand River Avenue, and Marsh Road, with a few properties to the 
east of Central Park Drive, on Grand River Avenue, also included. Two applications were received in 
this Zone during the January application window the Township Board authorized and they will be 
analyzed separately. 

This applicant, Amsterdam CC, is a new applicant to the Township, having not been selected in the 
medical marijuana process previously. They have also indicated that they would only be applying for 
recreational licensing, not medical. 

Application contents 
Staff reviewed the application based on the standards found in Section 40-68(2) of the Township 
Ordinances, which outlines the requirements for the submittal. Staffs review of the application 
determined that the application met all the requirements in the Ordinance. Their proposal would 
involve the rehabilitation of the existing building at 4 792 Marsh Road that was previously used as a 
bank branch. The applicant has operated other facilities and there are no 
denials/restrictions/suspensions/revocations/etc with the other licensed facilities, although as we 
have discussed regarding all the licensees, there have been previous violations at other facilities. In 
total, the application meets the minimum submittal standards of the Ordinance. 

competitive Review criteria 
The illi1i.al application was reviewed by the Review Committee against the competitive review 
criteria, to determine if there were any areas that needed to be clarified or additional information 
submitted and to make a recommendation which license should be issued. 

a. The content and sufficiency of the information provided in the application for recreational 
marijuana licensing. 
The Review Committee found no material deficiencies in their application, but suggested 
multiple areas where the applicant should submit supplementary information. 

b. Whether the proposed licensed location is consistent with the land use for the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
The facility is proposed to be located in an existing building just north of the Grand River and 
Marsh intersection, in the heart of the Township's commercial core. The space was previously 
a bank and has been vacant for approximately two years. The location is consistent with the 
Master Plan designation for the property and the surrounding uses. There no residential uses 
in the area and the facility will operate no differently than a traditional retail outlet. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.u5 



Recr eational Marijuana License - Amsterdam CC 
Page2 

May 2, 2024 

c. Whether the applicant and its stakeholders have demonstrated competency in business 
operations and have a good reputation in the community and marihuana industry, viewed in 
light of history of compliance with state and local laws and regulations; whether the applicant 
or its stakeholders has held, or currently holds, any other state regulated license, including a 
CRA issued license or a liquor license; whether the applicant or its stakeholders currently 
operate or previously operated any other marihuana or state regulated businesses; reviews and 
references related to any ongoing business operations; and any other information or 
documentation that demonstrates good reputation and good moral character. 
The applicant, both corporate and individually, have not had a license, permit, or certificate 
issued by a licensing authority denied, restricted, revoked, or not renewed. There have been 
violations at other facilities, but none that rise to a level of major concern. 

d. The extent that proposed plans eliminate or minimize traffic, noise, and odor effects on the 
surrounding neighborhood. 
The applicant's initial submittal had a very limited odor control plan. After the Review 
Committee's work, additional information was submitted to address this issue, which 
comprehensively addresses the issue. Noise and traffic are not expected to be more than a 
traditional retail outlet. 

e. Whether the applicant has demonstrated a dedication to Meridian Township and the 
community. 
The staffing plan provided indicates a total of 6-7 new full time equivalents. No starting salary 
was provided. 

f How the application meets a number of physical site criteria, listed in the procedures. 
The initial security plan provided by the applicant was lacking in any detail. After the Review 
Committee's work, additional information was submitted to address this issue, which 
comprehensively addresses the issue. As mentioned previously, the existing space has been 
vacant for approximately two years. No major exterior renovations are proposed and no cost 
estimates for the construction were provided. 

9. Whether the applicant and its stakeholders have reasonably demonstrated that they possess 
sufficient financial resources to implement and carry out their proposed business plan and 
operations. In assessing this criterium, the Township should consider the scope of applicant's 
proposed business plan in conjunction with documentation of financial assets (i.e. bank 
statements, tax returns, documents denoting pecuniary interest utilized by the CRA), liabilities, 
and sources of funding. 
No information was provided with respect to the applicant's financial resources. They do 
operate other marijuana facilities and are in good standing. so they have a proven track record, 
but have not provided specifics at this time. 

h. Whether the applicant is an existing and operating medical marijuana Permit Holder within 
the Township and the length of time of such operations. 
The applicant has not been a previous permit holder in the Township. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us ----



Recreational Marijuana License - Amsterdam CC 
Page3 

May 2, 2024 

i. Whether the planned signage for the proposed location is consistent with the land uses in the 
surrounding neighborhood and of such a design and location that is in harmony with the purpose 
and intent of the Zoning Ordinance and the Meridian Township Recreational Marihuana 
Ordinance. This includes, but is not limited to, the size, location, construction materials of the sign 
and/or design of the sign, logos, or lighting. 
The applicant has not proposed signage at this time. 

j. Whether the applicant has planned community outreach to the Township and its residents, 
including but not limited to planned educational services, charitable or philanthropic activity, 
community improvement, or other programs that will directly benefit the Township, Township 
services, or improve the health, safety, and welfare of the Township and its residents. 
The applicant has not outlined a community involvement program in their application. 

Township Board Action 
The Township Board can approve or not approve issuance of a conditional permit in Zone 3 to 
Amsterdam CC. Should a conditional permit be granted, the applicant will then need to apply for Special 
Use permit review, which will start with the Planning Commission and ultimately be reviewed and 
approved/ denied by the Township Board. 

Staff looks forward to discussing this matter with the Board and proceeding along the process that has 
been outlined for licensing of recreational marijuana facilities. 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us ----



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~~li 
~ 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Trustee Marna Wilson 
Chair, Meridian Township Community and Senior Center Task Force 

May 3, 2024 

Community and Senior Center Site Selection 

14.B 

In 2022, with the passage of the Okemos School Bond to rebuild three schools, the existing Meridian 
Senior Center will be demolished. The Meridian Township Board decided to seek a solution for a 
permanent home for our seniors. 

Meridian Township is one of the few communities in the Greater Lansing without a modern 
Community Center. The Township Board debated how to combine both community and senior 
needs into a Community and Senior Center to support the mental and physical health of our 
residents in a post-pandemic world. 

The Board established a Task Force in February 2023 to explore options. Members of the Task Force 
include some Board Members, the Township Manager, staff leadership and the current Senior 
Center Coordinator. The Task Force has met for the past 15 months. The Task Force received Board 
approval to retain a municipal professional services firm, Progressive AE, and have worked with 
them since February 2024. 

We will introduce the Township Board to our concept plan at the May 9, 2024 meeting. After that, 
we will invite the public to join the Township Board in meetings and listening sessions to present 
the plan and obtain feedback. 

Providing a safe and welcoming. sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
'{ o ~~ s~~1' 
~ 

To: Board Members 

From: Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 

14.C 

Interim Township Manager & Director of Community Planning & Development 

Date: 

Re: 

May 2, 2024 

Mixed Use Planned Unit Development - Village of Okemos - CONCEPT PLAN 
REVIEW 

As part of the 2021 update to the Mixed Use Planned Unit Development ordinance, the concept plan 
review process was updated to be more beneficial towards setting expectations for both the 
developer and Township. A basic layout, a written description of the project, and a list of amenities 
are required to be submitted for concept plan review. Subsequently, the Planning Commission and 
Township Board are both afforded an opportunity to provide initial feedback on the concept within 
a 30-day window. All of this occurs prior to a formal submittal, public hearing, Staff review, or any 
of the other parts of the actual MUPUD approval. 

The Village of Okemos development team have provided the Township with two concept plans to 
review and compare. In both scenarios, the developer has indicated the potential for a second phase 
in the future, but that is not under consideration at this time. Although a third plan is briefly 
referenced, it has been withdrawn from any consideration. The amenities listed on the plans are 
identical between the two plans and are also part of this concept plan discussion. 

Plan A would build two buildings along Okemos Road, turning the corner and extending 100 feet to 
the west on Hamilton Road. The buildings would be very nearly identical and would each consist of 
78 dwelling units and 2,500 square feet of commercial space. In total, the project would have 156 
dwelling units and 5,000 square feet of commercial space. All of the parking would be surface 
parking, with the majority located to the west, behind the buildings, and 28 spaces located at the 
southwest corner of Clinton and Okemos, for a total of 285 parking spaces. In this scenario, the 
Township would solely bear the cost of burying the power lines and all public infrastructure/ off­
site costs. Additionally, no tax increment financing/ DDA funds would be available for this work, as 
they are planned to be 100% captured by the project. 

Plan C would build two buildings along Ardmore Street. The buildings would be slightly different 
from each other, with the northern building having 96 dwelling units and approximately 2,700 
square feet of commercial space and the south building having 102 dwelling units and 
approximately 2,700 square feet of commercial space. In total, the project would have 198 dwelling 
units and 5,388 square feet of commercial space. The plan includes a total of 299 parking spaces, all 
of which would be located along Okemos Road, with 28 parking spaces at the southwest corner of 
Clinton and Okemos. In this scenario, the Township would solely bear the cost and all public 
infrastructure/ off-site costs, no tax increment financing/ DDA funds would be available for this 
work, as they are planned to be 100% captured by the project, and the power lines would remain 
unburied. 

Providing a safe and welcoming. sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us 



Village of Okemos Concept Plan Review - 2024 
Page 2 

The Planning Commission reviewed the concept plans at their April 22, 2024 meeting and had a 
robust discussion with the applicant. Although minutes are not yet available, the video of the 
meeting can be found here: https://www.youtube.com/live/3yMnU1tAAWU?feature=shared 

In general. the Planning Commission's comments can be summarized as follows: 
• There is concern about the reduced size of the project. One Commissioner suggested that it 

might look like a strip mall. 
• Plan C might be more viable, but if that would be constructed, then the view from Okemos 

Road would be a parking lot. 
• There is concern that the project might not be viable under the MUPUD ordinance because 

of the reduced square footage of the commercial space and the possibility of setting the 
buildings back. 

• It also might not be viable under the MUPUD ordinance because the project is supposed to 
create a new walkable downtown. 

• The Planning Commission generally approves the off-site park space on Liverance. 

Staff looks forward to discussing the matter with the Township Board and providing the 
development team with additional feedback on the proposed plan, before a complete submittal is 
made. 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 



 

 

TO:  Meridian Township 

FROM:  Patrick Smith 

DATE:  April 15, 2024 

RE:  Village of Okemos Development  

 

 
 

To Whom It May Concern, 

 

The Village of Okemos project has had to evolve as a result of economic conditions, capital markets, and 

Township requirements. We now have two plans that we feel confident in our ability to move forward 

with, and we request to initiate a concept plan review of those plans with the Township. A summary of 

each is as follows: 

 

 Plan A 
 

This plan is based on the previously approved MUPUD, although it would need to be approved 

for development in two phases instead of simultaneously. The first phase includes construction 

along Okemos Road that wraps the corner of Hamilton Road. In total, there would be 156 units 

of multifamily and 8,909 sq ft of commercial space in the first phase. This plan would include 285 

parking spaces (including parking on the residential property previously owned by Renee Korrey) 

and would require a parking variance. However, we are confident that the parking provided 

meets the needs of the market.  

At some point in the future as market conditions allow, a second phase of construction would be 

built continuing down Hamilton Road. This second phase would likely include a mix of 

commercial and multifamily, and may potentially require structured parking. The second phase 

will be built to highest and best use, and the exact figures of commercial square footage and 

multifamily units will be determined at that time.   

In order to move forward with the first phase of Plan A, it is necessary for the Township to pay 

for 100% of the cost to bury the HVD lines as well as 100% of the public infrastructure/off-site 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 966F6E3C-9D7A-498F-8FDD-9243A7401A3F

West =--~---- -- -- - -- -- --- ---- ---- - --- - --- - -- "' - --·-- ---- ---
COMMUNITIES 



costs. The TIF would not be available to the Township as a source of funds to use towards these 

costs, as 100% of the TIF is required by the development to be financially viable. 

 

 Plan B 
 

At our last meeting, a concept was proposed by the Township of leaving the HVD lines above 

ground and stepping the development site further back from Okemos Road. We have evaluated 

this option and determined that it is not feasible, as it would require us to abandon a significant 

portion of the property and reduce parking to an unacceptable level. As a result, Plan B is 

withdrawn from consideration. 

 

 Plan C 
 

In the event that the Township is unable to fund the cost of burying the HVD lines, we have 

proposed an alternative concept that would move the development to Ardmore Road and 

Hamilton Road. Similar to Plan A, this plan would need to be approved for development in two 

phases. The first phase would include construction along Ardmore Road that wraps the corner of 

Hamilton Road. In total, there would be 198 units of multifamily and 5,000 sq ft of commercial 

space in the first phase. Similar to Plan A, this plan would include 299 parking spaces (including 

parking on the residential property previously owned by Renee Korrey) and would require a 

parking variance. However, we feel confident that the parking provided meets the needs of the 

market. 

As we understand it is important to the Township to activate Okemos Road, once the first phase 

is completed, we would like to provide “pop-up” commercial spaces in small temporary 

standalone structures at different times throughout the year. Concept images were provided 

during our meeting, and can be available upon request. The holiday market in downtown Detroit 

is a source of inspiration for what we have in mind.  

At some point in the future as market conditions allow, a second phase of construction would be 

built continuing down Hamilton Road. This second phase would likely include a mix of 

commercial and multifamily, and may potentially require structured parking. The second phase 

will be built to highest and best use, and the exact figures of commercial square footage and 

multifamily units will be determined at that time.   

In order to move forward with the first phase of Plan C, it is necessary for the Township to pay 

for 100% of the public infrastructure/off-site costs. The HVD lines would remain above ground in 

their current condition. The TIF would not be available to the Township as a source of funds to 

use towards these costs, as 100% of the TIF is required by the development to be financially 

viable. 

 

With respect to the current condition of the site, at our last meeting it was brought up by the Township 

that they would like to see grass planted in advance of a construction start. As you will see in the more 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 966F6E3C-9D7A-498F-8FDD-9243A7401A3F



detailed response provided by Eric Helzer, only a portion of the site is available for grass seed to be 

planted. Nevertheless, if the Township would like to move forward to green these portions of the site at 

their cost, we will make the site available for the landscaping work to be done. 

I look forward to reaching a conclusion on whether we will be pursuing “Plan A” or “Plan C” so that we 

can move towards a construction start as quickly as possible. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Patrick Smith 

CEO, WestPac Communities 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 966F6E3C-9D7A-498F-8FDD-9243A7401A3F



I 
u ' 

I I -" 
- --,-----
= 

(PUBUC - PLATIED 66' WIDE R.O.W.) 

ZONED PO 

~ 

I 
I 

I 
I 

-4 --

BLD6 SETBACK 

3 BLOCK 1 

" I 

t 4 REQUIRED 25' 
lit-~.,_,- ~ LOG SETBACK 

,...., 
2 

- - r-- - -/ 

,, L _ _ J_ l4 I _ _ _l __ J " 

l3J 

l) 

t----- -REOUIRED 100 
r--;: d LDG SETBACK 

-- i i 

REQUIRE[ 85 / 
BLDG SEI ~ 

( 

3 

( 

3 

.,. 

l 

) 

-,v~~· ,~ - - - - r-- - .---

~ 
, 

r 

ARDMORE A VENUE 
(PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' WIDE R.O.W.) 

, - - T fn T - - 7 /,,,-0:===;r",, , 111 
1----, 

ZONED PO i \\[STERLY R.0. W. LINE,----­
OF ARDMORE AVENUE 

WALL 

APPROVED WAl'vfRS 
SECTION REQUIREMENT REASON 

86-4(12 (l)o. 25' BLDG. SETBACK FROM R.O.W. 
CLJNTON ST. . ARDMORE AVE., 

O' SETBACK 

& METJ-,OQIST ST. 

85' BLOG. SETBACK FROM CL 
HAMILTON RO 

49.77' SETBACK 

100' BLDG. SETBACK FROM CL 
OKEMOS RO 

49.97' SETBACK 

86- 4-02 (17) 70% MAX IMPERVIOUS SURFACE 82.19% IMPERVIOUS 
SURFACE 

86-404 (b)(3) BLDG. 100' FROM 
RESIDENllAL ZONED 
PROPERTY 

SOU TH BLDG SETBACK 
66' TO RESIDENllAL 

86-440 (f)(l)(b) 45' MAX BLDG HEIGHT(MUPUD) 60' BLDG HEIGHT 

86- 755 REQUIRED PARKING SPACES 

86- 756 (11) 20' PARKING SETBACK 
FROM ROAD R.O.W. 

ur«YQI'$ HAJE$; 
1. This pion was mode at the direction of the parties named hereon and is intended solely 
for their immediate use. Survey prepared from fieldwork performed in September 2018. 

2. All bearings <.md distances on the survey are record ond measured unless otherwise noted. 
All bearings ore Michigan State Plane South Zone grid bearings obtained from GPS 
obserV<ltions using corrections obtained from the Lansing C.O.R.S. 

3. All dimensions ore in feet ond decimals thereof. 

4. All elevctions ore North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NA',088). 

5: By sca led map location and graphic plotting on ly, this properly lies port ly within Fl ood 
Zone "AE", areas within the 1% annual chance floodplain and portly wi\hin Fl ood Zone ·x·, 
areas outside the 1% annual chance floodplain, according to the Notional Flood Insurance 
Program, Flood Insurance Rote Mop for the Charter Townshlp of Meridian, Ingham Coun t y, 
Michlgon, Community Panel No. 260093 0158 D, doted August 16, 2011. 
Scaling from ovoilob le cross- section dote from Federa l Emergency Mopping Agency dote, 
floodplain contour in th is oreo is 843.2 feet (NAV088 datum). Elevolion contour with said 
elevotion is shown and labeled on the survey mop. 

EX. LEGEND 

O' PARKING SETBACK 

SET 1/2" BAR '111TH CAP 

FOUND IRON AS NOTED 

DISTANCE NOT TO SCALE 

FENCE 

ASPHALT 

CONCRETE 

GRAVEL 

DECK 

ADA PLATE 

EXISTIN G SPOT ELEVAllON 

EXISTIN G CONTOUR ELEVATI ON 

BU ILDING OVERHANG 

PROPOSED LEGEND - - G- - = GAS LINE 

~ ~ PROPOSED WATER MAIN 
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 
PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

e MANHOLE (N EW) 
■ PROPOSED C.8. 
0 MANHOLE (EX.) 

-- -- UTILITY EASEMENT 

------y - -- - ---t- CENTER LINE OF ROAD 
ROAD RIGHT OF WAY 

- - PROPERTY LINE 

JI. T/C 800.00 

FIRE HYDRANT 

WATER VALVE 
THRUST BLOCK 

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEV. 

--w - - = UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE 

-- C -- = UNDERGROUND TELEVISION 

--rn-
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC 

OVERH EAD WIRES 

GUARDRA IL 

DECIDUOUS TR EE 

CONIFEROUS TREE 

I 
ZONED C2 

APPROVED WAIVER 

25' WAIVER 

35.2J' WAIi/ER 

50.0J' WAIi/ER 

17.81% WAIi/ER 

J4' WAIVER 

15' WAIVER 

92 SPACE WAIVER 

20' WAIVER 

Q­

• 
ff 
◊ 

• 
P'. 

( -

- - --:-;-

SAN ITARY MANHOLE 

DRAINAGE MAN HOLE 

ELECTRIC MANHOLE 

TELEPHON E MANHOLE 

CATCHBASIN 

DOWNSPOUT 

SAN ITARY CLEANOU T 

FI RE HYDRANT 

VALVE 

UTILITY POLE 

LI GHT POLE 

GROUND LIGHT 

TRAFFFI C SIGNAL 

GUY WIRE 

UTILITY PEDESTAL 

TRANSFORMER 

HAN DH OLE 

ELECTRIC METER 

GAS METER 

WATER METER 

SIGN 

POST 

AIR CONDITI ON ING UN IT 

.., 
w 
N 

7 
I 
' 

~'\ I 

~ ~ 
~ ~ I 
~ (1 I 

~ I 

: I 

~ I 

= 

Ll 

[g] 

11 

BENC!1MARI( /P 

11 

MUPUD PLANS FOR: 

Village of Okemos 
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

= PROF'. 50.11' 
EIW6SETBAGK 

~ 
' ~ 
I 
' 

I 

-

(9 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
L_ 

( 

l 

-- ,, 

- S25'07'10"W (M)3 .1 Q' __........BENCHMA!!K f1 

I I 7 r 

• L__J L_ L__J L_ L__J L__J 

V 

C, C, 

I (3) BLOCK 2 
3 3) 

) 

13 
'--

~iZ ~~ ARDMORE AVENUE 
(PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' MJE R.O.W.) 

,,.. 

-
~.S1.o1' 

/ 

~ 

L_ 

::'~;Z~~~ I 

~Fl'~ 
I 2 i • 

C.,.,, 16" 

I 
I 

H 

~ 
H 

I 
I 

l3 

I ''---1~/,. 

I 

EQ IRED 25 
LD SETBA 

-- -

I 

, ' I REQUIRED 100' 1_:-:_:=:=1---t o BLDG SETBACK 

( 6 ) 
l8 

ZONED RB 
I---- -----l 

1----•~•~33 OKE~os.--=•=□ c---J I 
,- - - ,w 

~'----,,1 ' f1 

i ( I ~I 
~-"'4----f.~, REQUIRED 25 ' I REQU IRED 30' 

,,, I \ BLDG SET --~ --1 I BLDG SETBACK 

r t- ,-.';l',~ -'-'-'i'c,el= REQU IRED 40 ' 
- 0 ( )N")~,.,_ "",, ...... •,.;,; ; OC ,7ETBACK 

; 
8 :=:~::. l8 -- - 7 ~I 

>-1!1 LONED RB 
t:l !J I---+- -----l REQUIRED 7' I 
l:!=io 1 2149 CLINTON~ S~T---1 
u, ~ 

z ~ ~a , , ~I 12< i, L _J ~ 
3~ ~ _ _ N25-06'45•E 162. _ _ ffil 
ug lf'-,--: 

i ---li 

ZONED RB 

[ZONED RB 

r 
I 

~ LJ "' 
,,.-11''-- - I 

" 
Jf 

I 

rv 
20. 7'± 

.... 
........ 

-.. 

REQUIRED AMENITIES 
MUPUD PROJ ECT 
DEN SITY/H EI GHT BONUS 
# OF WAIVERS 
REQU IRED AMENITIES 

BENOIUARKS 

4 
0 
11 

8EN0-IMARK f1 B..EV. = 852.30 (NAV088) 

.... ---1n 
-- - -J I 

PK NAIL, WEST SIDE UTILITY POLE, WEST SIDE Of 
OKEMOS ROAD, ±42' SOUTH OF BUILDING f4661 
OKEMOS ROAD. 

BENOiMARK f2 B..EV. - 846.57 (NAVD88) 
PK NAIL. SOUTHEAST SIDE UTILITY POLE. WEST 
SIOE Of ARDMORE A'v91UE, all LINE WITH 
SOUTHERLY PARCEL LINE. 

BENOiMARK f3 B..EV. - 856.S9 (NAVD88) 
RAILROAD SPIKE. NORTHWEST SIOE UTILITY POL£. 
NORTHEAST QUADRANT OF ARDMORE AVENUE AND 
HAt.llLTOO ROAO. 

1211'116 
/3 ~/~ OAYSJ 

fl1(1IE Y(IJ fJl6 
&No lil!6 f)/6 
81>)42-1111 
(TOU.-

I 
I 

S ITE AMEN ITIES 

LOV's FLOV's PLUMBIN6 F IXTURES (1) 

PUBLIC. OUTDOOR SEATIN6 ADJACENT TO STREET (2) 

ELECTRIC. C.AR C.HAR61N6 STATIONS (2) 

VERTICAL MIXING OF LAND USES (3) 

OUTDOOR GATHERING SPAC.E (L IYERANC.E PARK) (SJ 
SEE ATTACHED PARK PLAN 

i 

\ 

; 
a 

" 

~E r 
i 

ZONED RB 

,o·f •• 

a 

! 
3 
u 

~ 
STREET ac 

SCALE 1" = 40' 

~ 
SITE 

LOCATION MAP 
NO SCALE 

o· 40' 80' 

LEGAL QESCRIPDONS; 
Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 5, Vill age of Okemos (formerly Vil loge of Homi lton), 
Meridian Townsh ip, Ingham County, Michigan. 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 6, Village of Okemos (formerly Villoge of Homi lton), 
Meridian Townsh ip, Ingham County, Michigan. 

ZONED RB 

DEVELOPER: 
DOWN TOWN OK EMOS, LLC 
2362 JOLLY OAK RD . 

OK EM OS, Ml. 48864 
PH, (517) 290- 4650 
c/o JOHN PECKH AM 

$IE DATA 

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR: 
KESS, Inc. 
2116 HASLETT RD . 

H AS LETT, Ml. 48840 
PH, (517) 339- 1014 
FAX : (517) 339-8047 

PROPOSED MIXED USE DEVELOPM ENT (PHASE 1) 
TOTAL SITE AR EA = ± 3.99 ACRES (173,989 S. F.) 
ZONED C- 2 (DOWNTOWN OVER LAY DISTRICT) 
TOTAL UNITS = 156 
TOTAL BEDS = 220 
TOTAL RESIDENTIAL AREA = 111,099 S. F. 
TOTAL COMM ERCIAL AREA = 8,909 S.F. 
OVERA LL DENSITY = 156 UN ITS/3.99 ACRES = 39.10 UN ITS/AC 

BLOCK I (1.99 ACRES) 
UN ITS = 78 
BEDS = 110 
DENSITY = 78 UN ITS/1.99 ACRES = 39.2 UN ITS/AC 

BU ILDIN G D/E 
1 ST FLOOR AREA 

COMMERCIAL AREA 
RESIDENTIAL AREA 

COMMERC IAL AREA (BASEMENT) 
RESIDENTI AL AR EA 

BLOCK 2 (2,00 ACRES) 
UN ITS = 78 
BEDS = 110 

18,744 S. F. 
2,500 S.F. 

13,436 S. F. 
3,909 S. F,. 

55,505 S.F. 

DENSITY = 78 UN ITS/2 ACRES 39.0 UN ITS/AC 

BU ILDING A/B 
1 ST FLOOR AREA 

COMMERCIAL AREA 
RESIDEN TIAL AR EA 

RESIDENTI AL AREA 

18,744 S. F. 
2,500 S.F. 

13,436 S. F. 
55,594 S.F. 

BU ILDIN G COVERAGE 
RESIDEN TIAL 1ST FLOOR 26,961 S.F. 
COMM ERC IAL 1ST FLOOR 5,000 S. F. 
BLDG COVERAGE = 37,488 SF./173.989 S. F. = 21.55% 

PARKING PATA; 
RESIDENTIAL: 

156 UN ITS x 2 
COMM ERC IAL: 

(8,909) x 0.85 7,573 S. F. 
7,573 USABLE S. F. @ 5/1000 MIN. 

TOTAL 

PARKING REDUCTION FOR BIKE PARKING 
1 SPACE REDUCTI ON/2 BIKE SPAC ES 
50 BIKE SPACES/2 = 

REQU IRED PARKING PER ORDINANCE 

TOTAL REQUIRED PARKING 

PARKING PB9'tUP 
9" X 20' 
B. F. 
INTERNAL PARK IN G 

197 SPACES 
lii SPACES 

213 SPACES + 

28 SPACES 
44 SPACES 

312 SPACES 

38 SPACES 
350 SPAC ES 

- 25 SPACE REDUCTION 

325 SPACES 

92 SPACE WAIVER 
= 233 SPACES 

52 BIKE PARKING 

KORREY PROP ERTY 
ON - STR EET (8" x 23') 
TOTAL SPACES PROVIDED = 285 SPACES ( INCL. 16 B.F.) + 52 BIKE PARKING 

PARKING WAl'vER CALQ.ILADON 
RESIDENTI AL; PER ORD INANCE 
USE 1 SPACE/BED x 220 BEDS 

312 SPAC ES 
220 SPACES 
92 SPACE WAIVER 

PLANA 

120· 

REVISIONS KESS INC KYES ENOINEERING 
t • BRYAN LAND SUR'vEYS 

4-15-24 MUPLJD 
i---------, 2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, Ml 48840 

PH. 517-339-1014 FAX. 517-339-8047 

Marshall Office 
Ph. 2S9-781-9800 

Village of Okemos 
PLAN A - MUPUD SITE PLAN 

DATE: 4-14-19 

AUlHORIZED BY: 

DESIGNER: 
AJP 
PROJECT MGR. 
AJP 

D011,NTOWN OKEMOS, LLC 

APPROVED BY: 
AJP 

SHEET OF 2 

JOB If: 
102453 



~ 

I 
I 

I 

; ~T-
: ~~ 

(IIJ ILOING 

~ ,,___ I / I'-. 
%..~___,,,; I ('---+-.........._---'---'-----L.--'-..................... ---;!;---"---;!~I~) 

I 
I 

..., I 

,,,___ 1 
L 

BLOCK 1@ 

l) 

'-

( l 

( ) 

-r-- __ r __ _ __ ____ _ 

MUPUD PLANS FOR: 

Village of Okemos 
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

V 

_J 
[g] ,,.. 

,, L _ _ l_ _ _ J_ __ _l __ J " 

I I 

, II :j' 

; "' > "- ""' "'-'-='W~ I ""® / ~ -' = BENC!1MARI( 

i 

PROPOSED LEGEND 
~ ~ PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 
PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

e MANHOLE (N EW) 
■ PROPOSED C.8. 
0 MANHOLE (EX.) 

- - UTILITY EASEMENT 

-----, - -- - ---t- CENTER LINE OF ROAD 
ROAD RIGHT OF WAY 

- - PROPERTY LINE 

"cy" FIRE HYDRANT 

GI WATER VALVE 
b, THRUST BLOCK 

.a. T/C 800.00 PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEV. 

ARDMORE A VENUE 
(PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' WIDE R.O.W.) 

1----, 

\\[STERLY R.0.W. LINE,----­
OF ARDMORE AVENUE 

EX. LEGEND 
e = SET 1/2" BAR '111TH CAP 

C = FOUND IRON AS NOTED 

~ = DISTANCE NOT TO SCALE 

I"''''''''''' I = ASPHALT 

l·'·r·; ~:· I = coNCRETE 

I" I = GRAV EL 

= DECK 

= ADA PLATE 

-,,'b""Q = EXISTIN G SPOT ELEVAllON 

'-. __,.,.,1;,<>'::,,--- ""- = EXISTIN G CONTOUR ELEVATI ON 

---------- = BU ILDING OVERHANG 

- - G- - = GAS LINE 

--w - - = UN DERGROUND TELEPHONE 

-- C -- = UN DERGROUND TELEVI SION 

-------EU- - = UN DERGROUND ELECTRIC 

--EO - - = OVERH EAD WIRES 

-~~~~ = GUARDRA IL 

0 = DECIDUOUS TR EE 

;;fr: = CONIFEROUS TREE 

~ 
@ 

® 
a, 

• • 
Oro 

Q-

• 
ff 

◊ 

• 
P'. 

( -

0 

!:J 
e 
0 

• 
• 
~ 

0 

= SAN ITARY MANHOLE 

= DRAINAGE MANHOLE 

= ELECTRIC MANHOLE 

= TELEPHON E MANHOLE 

= CATCHBASIN 

= DOWNSPOUT 

= SAN ITARY CLEANOU T 

= FI RE HYDRANT 

= VALVE 

= UTILITY POLE 

= LI GHT POLE 

= GROUND LIGHT 

= TRAFFFI C SIGNAL 

= GUY WIRE 

= UTILITY PEDESTAL 

= TRANSFORMER 

= HANDHOLE 

= ELECTRIC METER 

= GAS METER 

= WATER METER 

= SIGN 

= POST 

= AIR CONDITI ON ING UN IT 

E 

I 

rv 
20.7'± 

' "-
" ---1n 

- - - -J I 

BENOIUARKS 
8EN0-IMARK f1 B..EV. = 852.30 (NAV088) 
PK NAIL, WEST SIDE UTILITY POLE, WEST SIDE Of 
OKEMOS ROAD, ±42' SOUTH OF BUILDING f4661 
OKEMOS ROAD. 

BENOiMARK f2 B..EV. - 846.57 (NAVD88) 
PK NAIL. SOUTHEAST SIOE UTILITY POLE. WEST 
SIDE Of ARDMORE A'v91UE, all LINE WITH 
SOUTHERLY PARCEL LINE. 

BENOiMARK f3 B..EV. - 856.59 (NAVD88) 
RAILROAD SPIKE. NORTHWEST SIDE UTILITY POL£. 
NORTHEAST QUADRANT OF ARDMORE AVENUE AND 
HAt.llLTOO ROAD. 

1211'116 
13 ~/~ .DAYS) 

fl1(1IE Y(IJ fJl6 
&No lil!6 f)/6 
81>)42-1111 
(TOU.-

I 
I 

ARDMORE A VENUE 
(PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' MJE R.O.W.) 

S ITE AMEN ITIES 

LOV's FLOV's PLUMBIN6 F IXTURES (1) 

PUBL IC- OUTDOOR SEATIN6 ADJACENT TO STREET (2) 

ELECTRIC- GAR GHAR61N6 STATIONS (2) 

VERTICAL MIXING OF LAND USES (3) 

OUTDOOR GATHERING SPACE (L IVERANCE PARK) (3) 
SEE ATTACHED PARK PLAN 

Jf 

i 111 11111 11111 1 F"~=- - - - T 
I C.,.,, 16" 

I 
I 

H 
I 
I 

H 
I 
I 

, 

i 
J 

' 

' 

I 
I 

I I 
; I 

( I I 
I I 

~ ~ ~ -=~~;-_-1 __ -
I 7 
I I 
' 
I I 

_J ' L_ 
r 

L 
r 

LJ "' 
.--11''-- - I 

I 

" 
i 

\ 
I ~E 

r.­
i 

'°"f •• 
a 

! 
3 
u 

" ~ Vt· 
~ Va• 

7 
I 
I 
I 

_J 

©,# 
,/ ~ 

MOORE STREET ac 

SCALE 1" = 40' 

~ 
SITE 

LOCATION MAP 
NO SCALE 

LEGAL QESCRIPDONS; 

o· 40' 80' 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 5, Village of Okemos (formerly Villoge of Homi lton), 
Meridian Townsh ip, Ingham County, Michigan. 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 6, Village of Okemos (formerly Village of Hami lton), 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan. 

PLANA 

120' 

REVISIONS KESS INC KYES ENOINEERING 
t • BRYAN LAND SUR'vEYS 

4-15-24 MUPUD 
1--------1 2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, Ml 48840 

PH. 517-339-1014 FAX. 517-339-8047 

Marshall Office 
Ph. 2S9-781-9800 

Village of Okemos 
PLAN A - AMENlllES PLAN 

DATE: 4-14-19 

AUlHORIZED BY: 

DESIGNER: 
AJP 
PROJECT MGR. 
AJP 

D011,NTOWN OKEMOS. LLC 

APPROVED BY: 
AJP 

SHEET 2 OF 2 

JOB If: 
102453 



MUPUD PLANS FOR: 

Village of Okemos 
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

-----

1:1 
I 
I 

OKEMOS ROAD 
(PUBLIC - PLATIEO 66' WIDE R.O.W.) 

Bl..D6 SeTBAGK 

--
1111111111 ~ t--/'-/'J~.,,,·'~✓- --t---~-"'-'- '=-" --s-25-·5_1·•_5•_w_r_•l_J>_o.o_r __ -+----------1l=:- j\ 

REQUIRED 100· PROP. 4<'1.CIS' ·-- ~~-\\=======if-~~ 
,-,-,-,-,-"Ct---------,--,--BL.,.DG-,-sET_B.,.A_cK-,-"'-""-,--,-SE.,.TBAGK-, , ~ I 111 111 11 

ZONED PO 

llf" 

--- PROP. O' BLDIS 4 i~ 6_..,4::__PAR_~ 5ET6ACK ~ -- -- --

REQU IRED 85' 
BLOG SETBACK 

-- -- -

E E 
lf-+-+-+--+--+--+-+-+-+-+--,□□1-+-+-+--+--+--+-+-+-+-+--, 

F 

"' 

c----
11 
~ 

~B L_O C ~ 1,..,,,...-.!Yli-.,-,. ,---,., --~,. 

, 
pt;!,Op.6'EILD6 
SETBACK 

I 
" "' 

ARDMORE A VENUE 
{PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' WIDE R.O.W.) 

I 

/2 

..... 

I 

6 

V 

BENCHMARK fJ 

,... __ _ 

i I 1,..,, l'IESTERLY R.0.W. LIN Cc __ _ 

~8') 

r:::::~7L~--~-------~~=-~~-o-~=--.:;~ 
I 

ZONED C2 

ZONED PO OF ARDMORE AVENUE 

REQUESTED WAIVERS 
SECllON 

86- 402 (1)a. 

86- 402 (17) 

86- 404 (b)(3) 

REQUIRD,IENT 

25' BLDG. SETBACK FROM R.0.W. 
CLINTON ST .. ARDMORE AVE.., 
&. METH ODIST ST. 

es· BLDG. SETBACK FROld CL 
HAM ILTON RD 

100' BLDG. SETBACK FROl.l CL 
OKEl,40S RD 

70X MAX IMPERVIOUS SURFACE 

BLDG. 700' FROM 
RESIOENll AL ZONED 
PROPERTY 

PROPOSED 
0' SETBACK 

49.95' SETBACK 

50' SETBACK 

80.15X IMPERVIOUS 
SURFACE 

SOU TH BLDG SETBACK 
56' TO RESIDENll AL 

86- 440 (f)(1)b. 45' MAX BLOC HEIGHT(MUPUD) 47' BLOC HEIGHT 

86- 755 

86- 755 (11) 

ur«YQI'$ HAJE$; 
1. This pion was mode at the direction of the parties named hereon and is intended solely 
for their immediate use. Survey prepared from fieldwork performed in September 2018. 

REQUIRED PARKING SPACES 
MULTI-FAM ILY RESIDENTI AL 
2 SPACES/UNIT + 

25,C EXPANSION CAPACITY 

20' PARKING SETBACK 
FROl,I ROAD R.0.W. 

EX. LEGEND 

• 
D 

-----¾-- ~ 

1 SPACE/BED 

0' PARKING SETBACK 

2. All bearings ond distances on the survey ore record ond measured unless otherwise noted. 
All bearings ore Michigan State Plane South Zone grid bearings obtoine<J from GPS 
observations using corrections obtained from the Lansing C.O.R.S. 

SET 1/2" BAR '111 TH CAP 

FOUND IRON AS NOTED 

DISTANCE NOT TO SCALE 

FENCE 

ASPHALT 
J. All dimensions ore in feet ond decimals thereof. 

4. All elevctians ore North American Vertical Ootum of 1988 (NA',088). 

5: By scaled mop location and graphic plotting only, this properly lies port ly with in Fl ood 
Zone "AE", areas wi thin the 1% annual chance floodp lain and partly wi\hin Flood Zone ·x·, 
oreos outside \he 1% annual chance floodplain, occarding to the Notional Flood Insurance 
Program, Flood Insurance Rate Mop for the Charter Tawnshlp of Meridian, Ingham County, 
Michlgon, Community Panel No. 260093 0158 0, dated August 16. 2011. 
Scaling from ovoilable cross- section dote from Federal Emergency Mopping Agency data. 
floodplain contour in th is oreo is 843.2 feet (NAV088 datum). Elevotion contoor with said 
elevotion is shown and labeled on the survey mop. 

PROPOSED LEGEND 
~ ~ PROPOSED WA TER MAIN 

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 
PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

e MANHOLE (N EW) 
■ PROPOSED C.8. 
0 MANHOLE (EX.) 

-- -- UTILITY EASEMENT 

----, - -- - --t- CENTER LI NE OF ROAD 
ROAD RIGHT OF WAY 

- - PROPERTY LINE 

.a, T/C 800.00 

FIRE HYDRANT 

WA TER VALVE 
THRUST BLOCK 

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEV . 

CONCRETE 

GRAVEL 

DECK 

ADA PLATE 

EXISTING SPOT ELEVAllON 

EXISTING CONTOUR ELEVATI ON 

BU ILDING OVERHANG 

- - G- - = GAS LI NE 

--TU - - = UNDERGROUND TELEPHON E 

-- C -- - UNDERGROUND TELEVISION 

--rn -
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC 

OVERH EAD WIRES 

GUARDRA IL 

DECIDUOUS TR EE 

CONIFEROUS TREE 

BUILDING 

REQUESTED WAIVER 
25' WAIVE.R 

35.05' WAIVER 

50' WAIVE.R 

10.15X WAIVER 

34• WAIVE.R 

2' WAIVE.R 

111 SPACE WAIVE.R 

20' WAIVE.R 

($1 SAN ITARY MANHOLE 

@ ORAINAGE MAN HOLE 

® ELECTRIC MANHOLE 

Cf) TELEPHON E MANH OLE 

• 
ff 

( -

llll CATCHBASIN 

OOWNSPOU T 

SAN ITARY CLEANOU T 

FI RE HYDRANT 

VALVE 

UTILITY POLE 

LI GHT POLE 

GROUND LIGHT 

TRAFFFI C SIGNAL 

GUY WIRE 

UTILITY PEDESTAL 

TRANSFORMER 

HAN DH OLE 

ELECTRIC METER 

GAS METER 

WATER METER 

SIGN 

POST 

!ll AIR CONDITI ON ING UN IT 

I 111 ':"i II 111 Ill 
I I Ill 

I / O"· !!! L ,,;,J; I 111 

;i--Y I __)II 
>~- -j f- Ill 

i1-=46 7! 
f'c I 124" Ill 

REQUIRED AMENITIES 
MUPUD PROJECT 

DENSITY/H EI GHT BONUS 4 

# OF WAIVERS 6 
REQU IRED AM ENITIES 11 

EIENCHYARK$ 

BENCHMARK f1 ELEV. = 852.30 (NAV088) 
PK NAIL, WEST SIDE UTILITY PCLE, WEST SIDE Of 
Ol<EMOS ROAO, ±42' SOUTH OF BUILDING lf4El61 
Ol<EMOS ROAO. 

BENCHMARK #2. ELEV. = 846.57 (NAW88) 
PK NAIL, SOUTHEAST SIDE UTILITY Pa.E, \lt£ST 
SIDE Of ARDMORE AVENUE, ON LINE WITH 
SOUTHERLY PAACEL LINE. 

BENCHMARK #3 ELEV. = 656.59 (NA\-068) 
RAILROAD SPIKE. NORTHWEST SIDE UTILITY Pa.E. 
NORTHEAST QUADRANT OF ARDMORE A\OIUE AND 
HAMIL TON ROAD. 

1Jlfll5 
/1'~JH6PAT'$) 

/fFQIE Ya//)/6 
&.'JJ./4$/)/6 
NN2-111/ 
o-ou..-

(6 

REQUIRED 85' 
BLDG SETBACK 

... --
- S25-07'1 O"W (M)3 .10' BENCHMARK f1 

REQU IRED 100' 
--BLDG SETBACK 

\\'\\ \\ ~ \ \ \ \\~~ \\ \ \ \ ~ \ \ \ \ \\ 
PROP.10'BL06 
SEmAGK ARDMORE A VENUE 

(PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' \CIE R.O.W.) 

S ITE AMENITIES 

LOV'l FLOV'l PLUMBING F IXTURES (1) 

PUBLIC. OUTDOOR SEATING ADJAC.ENT TO STREET (2) 

ELEC.TR IC. C.AR C.HARGING STATIONS (2) 

YERTIC.AL MIXING OF LAND USES (3) 

OUTDOOR GATHER ING SPAGE (LIYERANC.E PARK?) (3) 
SEE ATTAC.HED PARK PLAN 

11 11 11 111 

i 
STREET O:'. 

SCALE 1" = 40' 

~ 
o· 40' 

, \. I REQUIRED 100· 1-...::==-"t---i, BLDG SETBACK 

( 6 J 
(8 

ZONED RB 
I--- - ---l 

ZONED RB 
""I 14633 0KE1-.1os RD m 

.__~1-'1 --+-, _, ~I 
I ~, 

,;;,'-'f----+
1
"', REQUIRED (?25[·1

1

= 1---.t..-' REQUIRED 30' .,, I '- BLDG SET I BLDG SETBACK 

r l:-- I REQUIRED 40' 
N~•~ 99.CO BLDG SETBACK 

r--;::1;,.:;- 25 ··•fi' 16200 V 7 
~ ( J l 8 J - - 7 ~I 
e LONED RB 
" I--+- __ __, REQU IRED 7 I 

'
l.,J;; 1 2149 CLINTON ST BLOG SETB>CK w 

~ I €1 ;~ L _ _r__ __ \ _J m, 
s __ ~2~4[L 1~--i\.: __ __J 

r 
I 

~E r 
: 
i 
i 
i 
' ZONED RB i 
i 
i 
: 
i 

I :~•• 

80' 120' 

L£GAL QESCRIPTIONS; 

SITE 

LOCATION MAP 
NO SCALE 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 5, Vi ll age of Okemos (formerly Vi ll age of Ham il ton), 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Mich igan . 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 6, Vi ll age of Okemos (formerly Vi ll age of Ham il ton), 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Mich igan. 

Lot 1 and North 1 rod of Lot 4 & Lot 2 except south 3ft in Block 10, Vi ll age of Okemos 
(formerly Vi ll age of Hamilton) 

Lot 2, 

DEVELOPER: 
DOWN TOWN OKEMOS, LLC 
2362 JOLLY OAK RD. 
OK EMOS, Ml. 48864 
PH:(517) 290- 4650 
c/o JOHN PECKHAM 

$IE PATA 

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR: 
KESS, Inc. 

2116 HASLETT RD . 
HAS LETT, Ml. 48840 
PH,(517) 339- 1014 
FAX: (517) 339 - 8047 

PROPOSED MIXED USE DEVELOPM ENT (PHASE 1) 
TOTAL SITE AR EA = ± 3.99 ACR ES (173,989 S. F.) 
ZONED C- 2 (DOWNTOWN OVER LAY DISTRICT) 
TOTAL UNITS = 198 
TOTAL BEDS = 285 
TOTAL RESIDENTIAL AREA = 197,951 S. F. 
TOTAL COMM ERCIAL AREA = 5,000 S.F. 
OVERA LL DENSITY = 198 UNITS/3.99 ACR ES = 49.62 UN ITS/AC 

ZONED RB ElbQQ< 1 l1 99 ACBES} 
UN ITS = 96 
BEDS = 138 
DENSITY = 96 UNITS/1.99 ACRES = 48.24 UN ITS/AC 

BU ILDING C/D 
1 ST FLOOR AREA 

COMM ERCIAL AREA 
RESIDENTI AL AREA 

RESIDENTI AL AREA 

BLOCK 2 (2.00 ACRES) 
UN ITS = 102 
BEDS = 147 

24,247 S. F. 
2,694 S.F. 

21,553 S. F. 
94,294 S.F. 

DENSITY = 102 UN ITS/2 ACRES 51.0 UN ITS/AC 

BU ILDING A/B 
1 ST FLOOR AREA 

COMM ERCIAL AREA 
RESIDENTI AL AREA 

BASEMENT (RESIDENTI AL) 
RESIDENTI AL AREA 

BU ILDING COVERAGE 

24,247 S. F. 
2,694 S. F. 

21,553 S. F. 
9,363 S. F. 

= 103,657 S.F. 

RESIDENTI AL 1ST FLOOR = 43,106 S. F. 
COMM ERC IAL 1ST FLOOR = 5,388 S. F. 
BLDG COVERAGE = 48,494 SF./173,989 S.F. = 27.9% 

PtiBKING PAT/r 
RESIDENTIAL: 

198 UNITS x 2 
COMM ERC IAL: 

(5,388) x 0.85 4,580 S. F. 
4,580 USABLE S. F. @ 5/1000 MIN. 

TOTAL 

PARKING REDUCTION FOR BIK E PARKING 
1 SPACE REDUCTI ON/2 BI KE SPACES 

396 SPAC ES 

23 SPACES 
419 SPACES 

50 BIKE SPACES/2 = 

REQUIRED PARKING PER ORDINANCE 

- 25 SPACE REDUCTION 

394 SPACES 

TOTAL REQU IRED PARKING 

PARKING PRQ\:IIEQ 
9' X 20' 
B. F. 
INTERNAL PARKING 

186 SPAC ES 
U SPACES 

11 1 SPACE WAIVER 
= 283 SPACES 

198 SPAC ES + 52 BIKE PARKING 

28 SPACES 
23 SPACES 
50 SPACES 

KORREY PROP ERTY 
ON - STR EET (8' x 23') 
ON - STR EET (9' x 20') 
TOTAL SPAC ES PROVIDED = 299 SPACES ( INCL. 12 B. F.) + 52 BIKE PARKING 

PARKING WAl\oER CALWLATION: 
RESIDENTI AL: PER ORDINANCE 
USE 1 SPACE/B ED x 285 BEDS 

394 SPACES 
285 SPACES 
111 SPACE WAIVER 

PLANC 
REVISIONS KESS INC KYES ENOINEERING 

t • BRYAN LAND SUR'vEYS 
4- 15- 24 MUPUO 
1-------1 2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, Ml 48840 

PH. 517-339-1014 FAX. 517-339-8047 

Marshall Office 
Ph. 2S9-781-9800 

Village of Okemos 
PLAN C - MUPUD SITE PLAN 

DATE: 3 - 20- 2 4 

AUlHORIZED BY: 

DESIGNER: 
AJP 
PROJECT MGR. 
AJP 

DO\l,NTOWN OKEMOS. LLC 

APPROVED BY: 
AJP 

SHEET OF 2 

JOB If: 
102453 



MUPUD PLANS FOR: 

Village of Okemos 
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

SCALE 1" = 40' 

~ 
BUI LOI NG 

_::::::-_ -- -- -- _J_ _ _L o· 40' 80' 120' 

SITE 

OKEMOS ROAD 
(PUBLIC - PLATIEO 66' WIDE R.O.W.) 

- -- -_ - _- -- PUBUC - PLATIED 66' WIDE LOCATION MAP 
NO SCALE 

OUTDOOR 
/' /' J ff ,:; == SEATIN6o 

' ~ PLAZA 
--

'---1\,1111111111 ~ t---------'s·-'-""-'· --"-"· -"'"--------------Jt--JI~ {@ 
'---rl-\ hln1 fl'fmm 111 rm'm-lllJnTTTi ic,--, 

llf" 

~ 

' I 
I 
f­
l 
I 
L 

~ 

F 

, 

~B L_O C ~ 1,..,,,...-.!Yli-.,-,. ,---,., --~,. /2 

' 
L 

I 

L __ _ 
- -- - - - - r-- - - - - _J 

I 
I/ r \ 

\ 

\ 

.,i, 

,,, ,,, ,,..-,.,_ .. ,,, Fl .,.-... -.. ,,, , , ..... 
~-----..._~ L_._ __ ...._ ...... ~ I c__,._ _ _._..._-" L-'l.-.L.....IL L...-..JI 

i 

PROPOSED LEGEND 
~ ~ PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 
PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

e MANHOLE (N EW) 
■ PROPOSED C.8. 
0 MANHOLE (EX.) 

- - UTILITY EASEMENT 

----y - -- - ---t- CENTER LI NE OF ROAD 
ROAD RIGHT OF WAY 

- - PROPERTY LINE 

"cy" FIRE HYDRANT 

GI WATER VALVE 
b, THRUST BLOCK 

.a. T/C 800.00 PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEV. 

\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ 
ARDMORE A VENUE 

{PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' WIDE R.O.W.) 

,... __ _ 
l'IESTERLY R.0.W. LIN cc -­
OF ARDMORE AVENU E 

EX. LEGEND 
e = SET 1/2" BAR '111 TH CAP 

C = FOUND IRON AS NOTED 

~ = DISTANCE NOT TO SCALE 

I"''''''''''' I = ASPHALT 

l·'·r·; ~:· I = coNCRETE 

I" I = GRAVEL 

= DECK 

= ADA PLATE 

-,,'b""o = EXISTIN G SPOT ELEVAllON 

'-. __,.,.,1;,<>'::,,--- ""- = EXISTIN G CONTOUR ELEVATI ON 

---------- = BU ILDING OVERHANG 

- - G- - = GAS LINE 

--w - - = UN DERGROUND TELEPHON E 

-- C -- = UNDERGROUND TELEVISION 

-------EU- - = UN DERGROUND ELECTRIC 

--EO - - = OVERH EAD WIRES 

-~-~~ = GUARDRA IL 

0 = DECIDUOUS TR EE 

;;fr: = CONIFEROUS TREE 

• 

~ = SAN ITARY MANHOLE 

@ = DRAINAGE MAN HOLE 

® = ELECTRIC MANHOLE 

a, = TELEPHON E MANHOLE 

• = CATCHBASIN 

= DOWNSPOU T 

Oro = SAN ITARY CLEANOU T 

Q- = FI RE HYDRANT 

• = VALVE 

ff = UTILITY POLE 

◊ = LI GHT POLE 

• = GROUND LIGHT 

P'. = TRAFFFI C SIGNAL 

(- = GUY WIRE 

0 = UTILITY PEDESTAL 

!:J = TRANSFORMER 

e = HANDHOLE 

0 = ELECTRIC METER 

• = GAS METER 

• = WATER METER 

~ = SIGN 

= POST 

0 = AIR CONDITI ON ING UN IT 

BENCHMARK fJ 

I 111 ':"i II 111 Ill 
I I Ill 

I / O"· !!! L ,,;,J; I 111 

; i---Y I __)I I 
>~- -j f- Ill 

:i i ~ 11 , ---it0 Ill 
~ I 124" Ill 

EIENCHYARK$ 
BENCHMARK f1 ELEV. = 852.30 (NAV088) 
PK NAIL, WEST SIDE UTILITY PCl..E, WEST SIDE Of 
Ol<EMOS ROAO, ±42' SOUTH OF BUILDING lf4El61 
Ol<EMOS ROAO. 

BENCHMARK #2- ELEV. = 8-46.57 (NAW88) 
PK NAIL, SOUTI-IEAST SIDE UTILITY Pa.E, \lt£ST 
SIDE Of ARDMORE AVENUE, ON LINE Will-I 
SOUTI-IERL Y PARCEL LINE. 

BENCHMARK #3 ELEV. = 656.59 (NAW66) 
RAILROAD SPIKE. NORTI-IWEST SIDE UTILITY Pa.E. 
NORTI-IEAST QUADRANT OF ARDMORE A\OIUE AND 
HAMIL TON ROAD. 

1Jlfll5 
/1'~JH6PAT'$) 

/fFQIE Ya//)/6 
&.'JJ./4$/)/6 
NN2-111/ 
O"OU.-"""" 

I 

.,. -- .. 

BENCHMARK f1 

' Ill[ 

- 6.DG. A' .r -
-- - -- -- -

I 
----l 

I,------, 

- 7· ( =-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=i- -
'.,. II IILWll llilll l ff+--_,I , ' I 

- 0 30" 

i 
J 

' 

I 
' 

I 
I 
I 

~~ 
I I 

( I I 
r-Af--- ,....,.11 ; I 

- I I.....L,-------1 __ I 
-

[ 

' 
I 

- _J 

I,, 
7 

I 
I 

H 
I 
I 

1-J 

'Si 

"' I I --7 d 
"' I 

8; e I I 
~ • ~ I 

i! 1; ~ ~--~----_-_J_ 
0 u IP--,- - ~ 

i - _li 

L 
\\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \\ \\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \\ r ARDMORE A VENUE 

(PUBLIC - PLATIED 66' \CIE R.O.W.) 

S ITE AMENITIES 

LOV'l FLOV'l PLU!v!B IN6o F IXTURES (1) 

'-- 7 

-----i I 
-- - --7 I 

PUBLIC- OUTDOOR SEATIN6o ADJACENT TO STREET (2) 

ELECTR IC- GAR C-HAR6olN6o STATIONS (2) 

VERTICAL !v!IX IN6o OF LAND USES (3) 

OUTDOOR 6-ATHER ING SPAGE (LIVERANCE PARK) (3) 
SEE ATTACHED PARK PLAN 

I 

7 
I 
I 
I 

_ _j 

L£GAL QESCRIPTIONS; 
Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 5, Village of Okemos (formerly Vi ll age of Ham il ton), 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan. 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Block 6, Village of Okemos (formerly Vi ll age of Ham il ton), 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan. 

Lot 1 and North 1 rod of Lot 4 & Lot 2 except south 3ft in Block 10, Vi ll age of Okemos 
(formerly Vi ll age of Hamilton) 

Lot 2, 

PLANC 
REVISIONS KESS INC KYES ENOINEERING 

t • BRYAN LAND SUR'vEYS 
4-15-24 MUPUD 
1--------1 2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, Ml 48840 

PH. 517-339-1014 FAX. 517-339-8047 

Marshall Office 
Ph. 2S9-781-9800 

Village of Okemos 
PLAN C - AMENITIES PLAN 

DATE: 3-20-24 

AUlHORIZEO BY: 

DESIGNER: 
AJP 
PROJECT MGR. 
AJP 

D011,NTOWN OKEMOS, LLC 

APPROVED BY: 
AJP 

SHEET 2 OF 2 

JOB If: 
102453 



LEGEND OF PROPOSED PLANTS AND MATERIALS 

6 

CANOPY TR 

V RGR N TR 

WA K NG PAT 

COMPACT D AGGR GAT BAS 
MDOT 2 1 AA CRUS D STON 

IW d 
5 W D GRAV WA K NG PAT 

S PANS BY RC ORR STORAT ON 
S OMX NBOR T NT ONBASN 

■------ ■ TR PROT CT ON NC 

AWN 

XST NG 
SUBGRAD 

CD ~AR~~~~ WALKING PATH SECTION 

ART CA TU R 

NVRO N 

OP NGRAD D - , 
AGGR GAT WT 

NO N 5 
COMPACT D TO 90% 

MN. 2 

GOT XT ABR C 

NOTE, 

STAP OR NA TUR TO 
COMPOST WOOD BOARD 

- - si 2'--ci' ~'.;::::=,':/- 2 X 4 COMPOST WOOD 

0
0

0
0

0 
P RM T R BOARD 
AST N D TO CONCR T 

M N. 4 D PT CONCR T 

COMPACT D X. SU BG RAD 

NSTA ANDS AM TUR WT ADAC NTPC SRUNNNG NT SAM D R CTON;G U 
5 AMS WT SU TAB 5 AM NG G U AND 5 AM NG C OT NOT AD 5 V TAP . 

CD 

CD 

ARTIFICIAL TURF SECTION 
SCA:1 1 0 

SECTION 

PLAN 

NOTES: 
4 TA PO Y AM NAR SNOW 

NC TO B NSTA D 
AROUND DR P N O TR 5 
TO B PR S RV D PR OR TO 
ANY AND C AR NG OR 
CONSTRUCT ON. 

NO CUTT NG NG OR 
TR SPASS NG 5 A OCCUR 
NS D NC D AR AS 
W T OUT OWN R 
APPROVA. 

( XST NG TR DRP N 

~ 
4 TA PO Y AM NAR 
SNOW NC 

XT NT O 50 D $TURBAN( 

NOT TO SCALE 

4 TA PO Y AM NAR SNOW NC 

ST POSTS V RY 10 T 5/8 x 6 R BAR 
OR QUA NST A POSTS 2 N GROUN D 

I 1~~==1 
I,~, 

,--- ~ 

~ XST NG TR DRP N 

NOT TO SCALE 

TREE PROTECTION FENCE DETAILS 
NOTTO SCA 

I 
I 

'1) 

SAN 

I 

r t X. DG 0 

I 

- I 
33 B ACK wA NUT 

I ) 

I 

f 
I 

GRAV 

\ 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I ; 
/ 15 CR MSON K 

/_ i-/ ---\-Ji-'1- N- O_R~ AY MAP 

I 
I 
I 

I I I 

I I 11 

I I ~ 
I I I 
I I I 

I I 
:;_:; 7C 

'b ' 
I ,x; 

♦ 
/ ♦ 

I 

I 
( 

TW N 21 
SCALED 

I, ♦ ♦ \ 
♦ I 

I 
N 
7C 
CX] 0 \ 

/ 
/ 

L SUGAR MAP 
LOCATION OF I 

) I 

♦ 

I' 
\ 

♦ 
♦ 

\ 

' ~ I 

I 
I 

' I , 

\ 

FLOODWAY 

18 N6RWAY 
SPRUC 

I 
I 

Lt) 
V 

QJ 

I 
&c;, I 

1101 

V 
V 

QJ 
' 

' 
I 

I I 
I 

\ 

I 

I I 

i '- 1 I 
' I 

I 
I I FLOOD PLAIN 

/ CONTOUR 
I/ ELEV ~ 843. 2 

I I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

/ 

I 
I I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

XISTING DG 0 
UNO RBRUSH, TYP. 

\p n XISTING TR , 
~ TYP. 

/\ 
0 

/ ~ 

DJ 
l.N 
CD 

I 

\ 

I 

I 
j 

C) 

~ 
I 

A>X3: 
5,P~~MAP 

I 

/ 
/ 

0 

0 

~@ ·~c ~ 
·~o \ 

\ I 
Ol 
") 
CX] 

I 

0 

r-r--1,L_J/Glill_ __ ,::.., , 

"" X. OUS "" \ 
, I I 

\,:--1---l 
"o 

I 
\ 

I 

\ 'I' -s::=:::~==i -
1 

I 
I 

I 
I 
( 

' 

X. TR TO ~, 

R MAN TYPl ~ 

MU T ST M 5 V R ,, 
MAP R MOV ------------, 
D AD BR~ NC $ ~ - , , , , t 

~ I, 

0 

"'---::-~r7 -

I 
I 

I 

I 
0 

I ,0 
I 

I 

CARRSD f\ 

MXW/ __/17 
YDROMU C :J 

~ A DSTURB D 
/ SOARAS I 

TYP. ---~ 
3 DIA. HARDWOOD 
MULCH RING, TYP. 

1 0 

•/4, 
c • 

\p , "'.'I / 

• 
/ 

/)!; 
3'. 

• 'lo 

' ' \p :-Q 
") . 

'c> 
c 

' o /4. • 

LANDSCAPE PLAN 
SCALE: 1" 20' 

SCALE IN FEET: O' 10' 20 ' 40' NORTH 

3 WORK NG DAYS / 

B OR YOU D G 

CALL MISS DIG 

1 800482 7171 • 

0 

0 

'Y 
er I <I>, 

I ,,. 

'"' 

-, 

"' -;. <SJ \Y 
") / ~ 
7:;;: 

<Z ~ 6) 

0 

DJ 
l.N 
DJ 

I 
I 
\ 

( - ~ \.Q / 
\p 

·~ ./ 
,Y 

8 

u w 
C o 
·- ~ 

a 

o g 
- I 

0 ~ 
w 

:) ~ 
f-- 1; 

(J) ~ 
N 
~ -~ 
m 

'J) 
m 
~ 

I- 0 R - -~ Sc\ z "' .,. 
~ 

l,U :le -

~ 
M 0 C C • 0 C 

l,U • ~ 
0 

wo ,.; "' • > E < 0 
C E 

•□ 
~ 0 

" "' i ~ 
0 
~ 

CLIENT: 
Downtown Okemos C 
2362 o y Oak Rd. 
Okemos M 48864 
Phone: (517) 580 2550 

>-' 
'J) f-

O s 
~ 8 
I.I.I~ 
:::-=: <( 

0 c§ 
z u.. -0 c,_' 

I I.I.I V) 
1;..:, z 
<C ~ ...I f-
....1 z 
- <( >o 

ISSUED: 

1/31/22 

z 
<r: 

0 C: 
z I.I.I 
<r: Q. 

z <r: _u 
IJ'l IJ'l 
<r: 0 
CQ z 
z <r: 
0 ...I 

;::: :I: 
z~ 
I.I.I Q. 

~u 
~~ 
- ::-=: CQ ...I 

~ 

Subm tta 

8/29/22 MUPUD Pan 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
WC2201 

DRAWN BY: 
K 

CHECKED BY: 
K 

SCALE: 
ASNDCAT D 

SHEET NUMBER: 

L3 
5 T 3 0 3 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~~li 
~ 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Timothy Schmitt, AICP, Interim Township Manager 

May 9, 2024 

Township Supervisor Search Process 

Due to the resignation of Supervisor Jackson, the Township Board faces the task of filling the 
Supervisor's seat. 

14.D 

Under State law, the Township Board has 45 days to fill the vacant seat I've laid out a schedule 
for you to consider that meets the state guidelines. The Board has two options before them. First, 
the Board can consider the attached schedule and begin the search for a new Supervisor. By 
following the schedule, the Board would appoint a new Supervisor on June 4, 2024. This schedule 
could be altered to provide additional application time if the Board wishes, while still meeting 
State deadlines. 

The Board may also consider a second option. The Board could appoint one of their current 
members to fill the seat of Supervisor. If the Board appoints a current Trustee, this would open up 
a Trustee seat and the Board would then adopt a Trustee search process. 

Please consider your options and provide direction to the administration. 

Motions for Township Board Consideration: 

MOVE THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD ADOPTS THE "PROCESS FOR APPOINTING A 
NEW TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR" AND ADOPTS THE "APPLICATION FOR MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR CANDIDATE QUESTIONAIRRE". 

Or 

MOVE TO APPOINT _______ AS MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AND PROCEED WITH THE TRUSTEE VACANCY/ 
APPLICATION PROCESS. 

Attachments: 

1. Process for Appointing a New Township Supervisor 
2. Application for Township Supervisor 
3. Filling Township Board Vacancies from the MTA 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi,U$ 



Process for Appointing a New Township Supervisor 

May 9, 2024

The proposed schedule is as follows: 

May 9, 2024

The Township Board accepts the resignation of Supervisor Jackson. 

May 10, 2024

On Friday, May 10, 2024, the township announces the vacancy and requests that 
interested individuals submit a public service application, with resume and 3 
professional references by Thursday, May 23, 2024 at 4:00 P.M. 

May 28, 2024

On Tuesday, May 28, 2024, each committee member is provided with copies of candidate 
applications. 

May 31, 2024

On Friday, May 31, 2024, the search committee convenes to review the applicants. The 
committee selects the top applicants for interviews.  Candidates are notified of their 
interview schedule by the Human Resources Director. Interviews    shall be scheduled 30 
minutes apart and consist of 8-10 questions. 

June 4, 2024

On Tuesday, June 4, 2024 the Board shall convene a Special Board meeting at 4:00 P.M. 
for the purpose of interviewing the finalists. The selection of a new Township Supervisor 
shall be placed on the agenda under Action. The newly appointed Supervisor will be sworn 
in as soon as possible and attend the June 18, 2024 Board meeting.



APPLICATION FOR MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 

Please return this application along with your resume, cover letter and three (3) references 
to: 

ABBY TITHOF, HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5151 MARSH ROAD 

OKEMOS, MICHIGAN, 48864 

Completed applications must be received by 4:00 P.M. Thursday, May 23, 2024.  We 
prefer applications to be emailed to tithof@meridian.mi.us . Incomplete applications will 
be disqualified.  Candidates selected for an interview will be notified on Friday, June 
1, 2024. 

1. Please confirm that you are available to be interviewed at the Special Meridian
Township Board meeting to be held at 4:00pm, on Tuesday, June 4, 2024.

2. In your opinion what are the best qualities of Meridian Township and the areas that
need improvements?

3. Please share your community activities and volunteerism in the community over the
past 5-10 years.

4. A significant amount of your time will be allocated to Township Board
responsibilities, such as planning, zoning, budgeting, re-zonings, land use, economic
development, labor negotiations and audit review.  Please share with us your
experience with, and understanding of, the aforementioned responsibilities.



5. The position of Township Supervisor is an elected position, and the holder of the
office must reside within the township.  How long have resided in Meridian
Township?

6. Have you ever served on a Board or Commission for Meridian Township?  Please be
specific.

7. One of the main responsibilities as Township Supervisor is chairing the Board
meetings.  Please share any experience you have in chairing meetings.

8. In 200 words or less, please provide the Township Board with the reason that you
are seeking the Township Supervisor’s position.



Filling Township Board 
Vacancies 
Due to Death or Resignation 

MTA 
I M1cHIGAN TOWNSHIPS Assoc1ATION 

Michigan Townships Association 
Member Information Services 
December 2015 

Filling Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death / MTA December 2015 I 



Revised Statutes of 1846 (EXCERPT) 
Resignations, Vacancies and Supplying Vacancies. 

41.56 Resignations of officers. 

Sec. 56. 

Resignations of all [township] officers shall be in writing, signed by the officer resigning, and addressed 
to the township board and shall be delivered to and filed by the townsh ip cl erk. The resignation sha ll 
be effective when accepted by the township board. 

MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW (EXCERPT) 

Act 116 of 1954 

168.370 Elective or appointive township office; appointment to fill vacancy; temporary appointment; 
effect of resignation; special election; vacancy in office of township constable. 

Sec. 370. 

(1) Except as provided in section 370a or subsection (2), if a vacancy occurs in an elective or appointive 
township office, the vacancy shall be filled by appointment by the township board, and the person 
appointed shall hold the office for the remainder of the unexpired term. 

(2) If 1 or more vacancies occur in an elective township office that cause the number of members 
serving on the township board to be less than the minimum number of board members that is requ ired 
to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business by the board, the board of county election 
commissioners shall make temporary appointment of the number of members required to constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business by the township board. An official appointed under th is 
subsection sha ll hold the office on ly unti l the official 's successor is elected or appointed and qualified. 
An official who is temporarily appointed under th is subsection shall not vote on the appointment of 
himself or herself to an elective or appointive township office. 

(3) If a township official submits a written resignation from an elective township office, for 
circumstances other than a resignation related to a reca ll election, that specifies a date and time when 
the resignation is effective, the township board, within 30 days before that effective date and time, 
may appoint a person to fi ll the vacancy at the effective date and time of t he resignation. The resigning 
official shall not vote on the appointment. 

(4) Except as provided in subsection (5), if the township board does not make an appointment under 
subsection (3), or if a vacancy occurs in an elective township office and the vacancy is not fi lled by the 
township board or the board of county election commissioners within 45 days after the beginning of 
the vacancy, t he county clerk of the county in which the township is located shall call a special election 
within 5 calendar days to fi ll the vacancy. Not later than 4 p.m. on the fifteenth calendar day after the 
county clerk calls a special election under th is section, the township party committee for each political 

Filling Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death/ MTA December 2015 I 



party in the township shall submit a nominee to fill the vacancy. The special election shall be held on 
the next regular election date that is not less than 60 days after the deadline for submitting nominees 
under this section or 70 days after the deadline for submitting nominees under th is section if the next 
regular election date is the even year August primary or the general November election. Notice of the 
special election sha ll be given in the same manner required by section 653a. A special election called 
under this section does not affect the rights of a qualified elector to register for any other election. A 
person elected to fill a vacancy sha ll serve for the remainder of the unexpired term. 

(5) Subsection (4) does not apply to the office of township constable. If a vacancy occurs in the office of 
township constable, the township board sha ll determine if and when the vacancy shall be filled by 
appointment. If the township board does not fill the vacancy by appointment, the office of township 
constable shall remain vacant until the next general or specia l election in which township offices are 
filled. 

MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW (EXCERPT) 
Act 116 of 1954 

168.370a Filling vacancy in township office; term of appointee; term of elected successor. 

Sec. 370a. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 370, if a vacancy occurs in an elective or appointive 
township office, which vacancy is fi lled by appointment by the township board or the board of county 
election commissioners and the vacancy occurs more than 7 days before the nominating petition filing 
deadline as provided in section 349 for the general November election that is not the general 
November election at which a successor in office would be elected if no vacancy, then the person 
appointed shall hold office on ly until a successor is elected at the next general November election in 
the manner provided by law and qualifies for office. The successor shall hold the office for the 
remainder of the unexpired term. 

MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW (EXCERPT) 
Act 116 of 1954 

168.363 Township officers; oath of office. 

Sec. 363. 

All townsh ip officers shall, before entering upon t he duties of their offices, take and subscribe the oath 
as provided in section 1 of articl e 11 of the state constitution before the township clerk or other officer 
authorized to administer oaths, and fi le the same with the township clerk who shall record t he same; 
and such oath shall be administered without reward and certified by the officer before whom the same 
was taken, with the date of taking the same. 

Filling Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death / MTA December 2015 I 



When a vacancy occurs on the township 
board due to the death of a board member: 

1. The clock starts ticking the day after the vacancy occurs (the day after the board member 
dies). The township board has 45 days to appoint a person to fill the vacancy. (MCL 
168.370(4)) 

2. The official's deputy (clerk or treasurer, optional for supervisor) continues as deputy until 
the new official is appointed. The deputy does not vote, and a deputy supervisor does tt 

. 3. 

not moderate a meeting. (MC Ls 41.61 and 41 .72a(3) (supervisor); 41.69 (clerk); and 
41.77(5) (treasurer)) 

The only statutory requirement for holding township board elective office is that a 
candidate must be a qualified elector of the township and registered to vote. To be a 
qualified elector, a person must be 18 years of age, a U.S. citizen, and have lived in the 
township at least 30 days (property ownership is NOT required). (MCLs 168.11 and 
168.342) 

t 
tt 

4. The person appointed to fill the vacancy must take the oath of office (should be taken 
within the 45 days to fill vacancy to qualify for office). (MCL 168.363) 

5. A new clerk or treasurer must appoint a deputy. The supervisor may appoint a deputy. 
The deputies are also required to take the oath. (MCLs41.69, 41.77(5), and 41 .61) 

6. The salary of the office continues. A person appointed to elective office during the term 
of office receives the currently established salary for that office. (MCL 41.95) This may 
require prorating the salary between the former and new officials according to payroll 
period. 

7. If the vacancy occurs more than 7 days before the 15th Tuesday prior to the August 
midterm primary, a person appointed to fill that vacancy must run in the next primary and 
general election to retain that office. The person elected serves for the remainder of 
the term. (MCL 168.370a) (NEW, PA 94 of 2014, effective April 3, 2014) 

If the vacancy occurs 7 days or less before the 15th Tuesday prior to the August 
midterm primary, a person appointed to fill that vacancy is appointed for the remainder of 
the term. (MCL 168.370a) (NEW, PA 94 of 2014, effective April 3, 2014) 

(All township board members' terms run four years, concurrent with the Presidential 
term of office.) 

8. If the tovvnship board fails to fill the vacancy 1Mthin 45 days, the county clerk must schedule 
a special election on the next regular election date (of the four election days) that is: (1) at 
least 60 days after the deadline for submitting nominees, or (2) at least 70 days after the 
deadline for submitting nomnees if the next regular election date is the even year August 
primary or the general November election . Township/county political parties select nomi­
nees (independent or write-in candidates can also qualify), so no primary election is held. The 
person elected serves for the remainder of the term. (MCL 168.370( 4)) 

Fill ing Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death / MTA December 2015 I 



When a vacancy occurs on the township board 
due to the resignation of a board member: 

To resign, a board member must submit his or her signed resignation in writing to the board. The 
board must vote (at a regular or special board meeting) to accept the resignation for the resignation 
to take effect. (MCL 41.56) 

a) If the resigning official gives an effective date of resignation that comes prior to the board meeting 
where the board accepts the resignation, then the vacancy occurs on the date of the board meet­
ing. The official would serve and be compensated up to that date. 
b) If the resigning official gives an effective date that comes after the board meeting where 
the board accepts the resignation, then the vacancy occurs on the effective date in the resigna­
tion letter. 

c) The board may appoint someone to fill the vacancy up to 30 days prior to the effective date of 
resignation. The new official may take the oath prior to taking office, but is not "clothed" with the 
authority of the office until the resignation takes effect. 

2. The clock starts ticking the day after the vacancy occurs (the day after the resignation takes effect). 
The township board has 45 days to appoint a person to fill the vacancy. (MCL 168.370(4)) 

3. The official's deputy DOES NOT continue as deputy. (MCLs 41.69, 41.77(5), and 41.61) 

The only statutory requirement for holding township board elective office is that a candidate must be a 
qualified elector of the township and registered to vote. To be a qualified elector, a person must 
be 18 years of age, a U.S. citizen, and have lived in the township at least 30 days (property ownership 
is NOT required). (MCLs 168.11 and 168.342) 

5. The person appointed to fill the vacancy must take the oath of office (should be taken within the 45 
days to fill vacancy to qualify for office). (MCL 168.363) 

6. A new clerk or treasurer must appoint a deputy. The supervisor may appoint a deputy. 
The deputies must also take the oath. (MCLs 41 .69, 41 .77(5), and 41.61) 

7. The salary of the office continues. A person appointed to elective office during the tern, of office 
receives the currently established salary for that office. (MCL 41 .95) This may require prorating the 
salary between the former and new officials according to payroll period. 

8. If the vacancy occurs more than 7 days before the 15th Tuesday prior to the August midterm primary, 
a person appointed to fill that vacancy must run in the primary and general election to retain that office. 
The person elected se,ves for the remainder of the term. (NEW, PA 94 of 2014, MCL 168.370a, April 3, 2014) 

If the vacancy occurs 7 days or less before the 15th Tuesday before the August midterm primary, a person 
appointed to fill that vacancy is appointed for the remainder of the term. (NEW, PA 94 of 2014, MCL 168.370a) 

(All township board members' terms run four years, concurre1t with the Presidential term.) 

If the township board fails to fill the vacancy vvithin 45 days, the county clerk must schedule a 
special election on the next regular election date (of the four election days) that is: (1) at least 60 
days after the deadline for submitting nominees, or (2) at least 70 days after the deadline for submit-
ting nominees if the next regular election date is the even year August primary or the general Novem­
ber election. Township/county political parties select nominees (independent or write-in candidates 
can also qualify), so no primary election is held. The person elected serves for the remainder of the 
term. (MCL 168.370(4)) 

Filling Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death/ MTA December 2015 I 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Q Our supervisor resigned November 30. What do we do now? 
First, you need to confirm that the resignation has actually taken effect. 

A resigning township board member must submit a written resignation to the township board, stating the date 
on which his or her resignation w ill take effect-the last day they intend to hold office. At a regular or special 

meeting of the township board, the board must vote to accept the resignation before it can become effective. 
Once the board accepts the resignation, it takes effect either on the date stated in the letter or the date the 
board voted to accept it, whichever comes later. 

For example, let' s say that the supervisor stated his resignation was effective November 1, but the board 
doesn' t meet and vote to accept it until November 15. The resignation is not effective unti l November 15, and 
the supervisor actua lly held office and should be paid through that date. 

If the supervisor stated his resignation date as November 30, and the board voted to accept it at the November 

15 board meeting, then the supervisor holds office until November 30, and is paid through that date. 

Q When do we appoint someone to fill the vacancy? 
The township board must appoint someone to fi ll a vacancy on the township board within 45 calendar days after 
the vacancy is created. The appointee must take the oath of office before assuming the office. 

Q How do we choose the appointee? 
The township board can appoint anyone who is eligible to hold elective township office-basically any person 

who has been registered to vote and a resident of the township for at least 30 days. The board is not required to 
advertise the vacancy or solicit resumes, but doing so may attract a larger or more capable pool of candidates. 
The township board does not consider a slate of candidates- instead, the first person nominated who receives a 
second and a majority vote of the board members present and voting is the appointee. All interviews conducted 

by the township board, and any actions taken by the board to "shorten the list" of candidates, must be done in 
open session at a public board meeting. As always, the vote to appoint must be a voice vote, not a paper or 
secret ballot. 

Q How long will the appointee serve? 
If the vacancy occurs more than 182 days prior to the mid-term general November election (November 4, 2014), 
then the posit ion must be on the 2014 August primary and November general election ballot. The person 
appointed to fi ll the vacancy serves only unti l the election is certified and the w inner takes the oath of office (it 
can be the person appointed to fi ll the vacancy). The winner serves out the remainder of the term. 

Q Our board is divided, and with the vacancy, we have four members voting on the appointment. What if we 
can't agree on a candidate? 

If the township board does not appoint someone to fi ll the vacancy, the county clerk must call a special election 
at the township's expense to fi ll the vacancy. Whoever is elected will fi ll out the remainder of the term; the 

position is not also on the mid-term election ba llot. It is, however, usually in the best interest of the township for 
the board to work together, possibly making compromises or concessions, to do their duty as elected officials 
and fi ll the vacancy within the 45 days. 

Filling Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death/ MTA December 2015 I 



Q If the clerk resigns, is her deputy automatically the new clerk? 
No, w hen an elected official resigns, the appointment of his or her deputy also ends. 

Q Who can write or issue checks if the clerk or treasurer resigns? 
No one. If a clerk or a treasurer resigns, the deputy's appointment also ends. Until a new clerk or treasurer is 
appointed. no checks. payments or disbursements can be issued. In other words. no checks can be written. and 
no paychecks or bi ll payments can be made. 

So it can be important for a township board to consider the implications of voting to accept a clerk or treasurer's 

resignation, especially if he or she does not give the board a lot of advance notice. A township board does not 
have to vote to accept a resignation as soon as it receives it. 

Sometimes a resigning official is just having a temporary "bad day," and a board can consider holding off on 
accepting the resignation to give them time to cool down. 

But even if a resigning official is serious about resigning, and has no intention of staying or working until their 

resignation is accepted by the board, a board can delay the loss of the deputy by holding off on voting until 
potential candidates for a vacancy can be identified. 

How ever, a vacancy is not official until the board has voted to accept the resignation-so the resigning official 
can change their mind and withdraw their resignation if the board has not yet voted to accept it. 

And a resignation does not take effect until the board votes to accept it and the last day has been reached. So 
that means that the resigning official is st ill lega lly entitled to the salary of the office until the resignation takes 

effect, regardless of whether they perform any of the duties of the office in the meantime. 

Q Our treasurer is thinking about retiring, but she wants to be available to help train her successor. Is that 
possible? 
Yes. The resigning official can give any date in the future as the effective date of his or her resignation. The 
tow nship board may appoint the successor up to 30 days prior to that effective date, although the resigning 

official cannot vote to appoint his or her successor. It is important to note that this can only be done within 30 
days prior to the date of resignation and no earlier than that. 

The outgoing treasurer is paid through the date of his or her resignation. The new treasurer is not paid the 
treasurer' s salary until the outgoing treasurer' s resignation takes effect and the new treasurer takes the oath . 

Q May another township board member be appointed to fill a vacancy in another board office? 
Yes. 

Q May a township board member vote to appoint him or herself to another board office vacancy? 
Yes. MCL 168.370, the section of the Michigan Election Law governing vacancies in elective township office, 
states that a vacancy sha ll be fi lled by appointment by the tow nship board. (M CL 168.370(1)) This means that it 
is the duty of each board member to vote on the appointments to the township board. 

There are two exceptions to that rule: 

MCL 168.370(2) specifically states that an official who is temporari ly appointed by the board of county election 
commissioners to restore a quorum w hen enough vacancies occur to prevent a quorum "shall not vote on the 

Filling Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death / MTA December 2015 I 



appointment of himself or herself to an elective or appointive tow nship office" (tow nship board offices are 
"elective" offices) . 

MCL 168.370(3) also specifica lly addresses a situation when a tow nship board member submits a w ritten 

resignation in advance of his or her effective resignation date, and the board appoints a person to fi ll the 
vacancy within 30 days prior to that effective date: 

" If a township official submits a written resignation from an elective township office, for circumstances 
other than a resignation related to a recall election, that speci fies a date and t ime w hen the resignation 
is effective, the tow nship board, w ithin 30 days before that effective date and t ime, may appoint a 
person to fi ll the vacancy at the effective date and t ime of the resignation. The resigning official shall not 
vote on the appointment." 

So the " resigning official shall not vote on the appointment" of his or her successor. According to MTA Legal 
Counsel, this prohibition is limited to voting, and does not require the person to recuse themselves from 
discussions on the appointment, just abstaining from voting. 

Because the Election Law states speci fic exceptions to the rule, and does not speci fica lly prohibit a tow nship 
board member from voting to appoint him or herself to an elective or appointive township office w here the 
vacancy is created by death or resignation and does not involve a temporary appointment to restore quorum, a 

tow nship official may vote to appoint him or herself to fi ll a board vacancy. 

Q If a board member is appointed to fill a vacancy in another board office, can they vote to appoint the 
person to succeed them? 
Yes. Once a board member is appointed to and takes the oath to assume another board office, then he or she no 
longer holds the prior office. They do not have to resign their prior office. MCL 168.370(3) states: "The resigning 
official shall not vote on the appointment." Because the Election Law specifically prohibits the resigning official 

from voting on the appointment of their successor, but does not prohibit an officia l who did not resign, MTA 
Legal Counsel interpret that to mean that the board member w hose appointment created a vacancy may vote 
on fi lling that previously held office. 

Q Must the person appointed to fill a township board vacancy take the oath of office-even if they are 
already a board member? 

Yes. Every t ime a person is appointed (or elected) to tow nship board office, they must take the oath of office to 
qua lify to hold the office. This includes a person who is already a trustee, for example, w ho is appointed to fi ll a 
vacancy in another board office. 

Q Who has authority to administer oaths to township officials? 
The positions that are authorized by law to administer the oath of office are the township clerk/ deputy clerk, 
supervisor/ deputy supervisor, county clerk/ deputy county clerk, notary public, judge/ justice (of any court of 
record), and state senator or representative. 

Filling Board Vacancies Due to Resignation or Death / MTA December 2015 I 


	5.C Community & Senior Center.pdf
	Board Packet 05.09.2024-compressed_Redacted.pdf
	Board Packet 05.09.2024-compressed_Redacted.pdf
	May 9, 2024 Aenda
	5.B RAVE 911 Presentation
	10.A Consent Agenda Board Communications
	10.B Proposed Board Minutes
	April 16, 2024 draft minutes
	April 21, 2024 Draft Minutes

	10.C Bills
	10.D Pride Liquor License
	10.E Pride Outdoor Gathering Permit
	10.F Pins and Pints Ourdoor Asseembly Permit
	10.G Pins and Pints Liquor License Permit
	10.H EDC Appointment
	10.I ZBA Appointment
	10.J FRist Quarter 2024 Investment Report
	10.K 2024 MDOT Right-of-Way Permit.pdf
	12.A Recreational Marijuana Licensing
	13.A Recreational Marijuana Licensing
	13.B Appointment to Ingham Cty Management
	14.A (1) Recreational Marijuana License App Zonde 3 - DNVK 4
	14.A (2) Recreational Marijuana License App Zone 3 - Amsterdam CC
	14.B Community and Senior Center Site Selection
	14.C MUPUD Village of Okemos Concept Plan
	14.D Supervisor Search Process


	Clear Form button: 
	Text1: Meridian Township
	Text2: 
	0: Younes Ishraidi, Township Engineer / Deputy Director of Public Works & Engineering 
	1: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager / Director of Public Works & Engineering 
	2: Caycee Hart, Project Engineer
	3: Jack Hughes, Project Engineer

	Text3: Meridian Township Board
	Text4: Meridian Township
	Text5: Ingham
	Text6: Regular Township Board
	Text7: 9th
	Text8: May
	Text9: 2024
	Text11: 
	Print Signed Name: 


